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Five-Year Financial Summary

T EHMBEBRE

For the year ended 31 December

BET-_A=1t—HILFE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“B-NF ZFTRF —TRmF ZF-=F —T--F

Profitability data BRELHE
(RMB million) (AR®EETR)

Revenue Wz 215.8 171.7 196.8 624.1 1,351.5
Gross profit EF 75.3 429 19.1 186.9 466.0
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER)/ &7l (317.6) (25.7) (31.2) 67.9 153.9
Profitability ratios (%) BFIEE N E(%)

Gross profit margin EFR 34.9% 25.0% 9.7% 30.0% 34.5%
Net (loss)/profit margin F(E1R)/mf % (147.2)% (15.0)% (15.8)% 10.9% 11.4%

Assets and liabilities data BEEREEYE

(RMB million) (AR¥BER)
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,417.0 1,597.4 129.5 138.2 150.6
Current assets MEEE 117.6 870.4 1,2433 1,3135 1,277.5
Current liabilities E) =L 224.8 821.7 278.5 326.2 368.4
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 466.5 517.1 3.1 3.1 3.1
Shareholders equity €L I 843.4 1,129.0 1,091.2 1,122.4 1,056.6
Asset and working BEREELES

capital data g5
Current asset ratios (%) MEEELL (%) 7.7% 35.3% 90.6% 90.5% 89.5%
Current ratios (time) MELL & () 0.5x 1.1x 4.5% 4.0x 3.5x
Gearing ratios (%) BEL R (%) 44.6% 54.2% 20.3% 22.5% 24.6%
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Baofeng Modern International Holdings
Company Limited (“Baofeng Modern” or the “Company”), |
am pleased to present the financial report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2016.

During 2016, the Group focused on the graphene technology
application and the development of graphene application
products and successfully launched graphene-based ethylene-
vinyl acetate (“EVA") foam material. As the graphene-based
EVA foam material has received the market recognition, the
sales performance of the Group has improved in the second
half of 2016. The Group's overall sales performance has
improved by RMB44.1 million or 25.7% to approximately
RMB215.8 million in 2016, with the commencement of the
sales of graphene-based EVA foam material and the increase
in sales in the Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM")
business. Besides, during 2016, the gross profit margin of the
Group increased to 34.9% from 25.0% of 2015 which was
mainly attributable to the commencement of the sale of the
graphene-based EVA foam material with a higher gross profit
margin than that of the traditional products.

Regarding the existing slipper business, as the slippers retail
industry experiences stiff competition from online retailers, the
Group decided to focus on developing a new retail method,
Online-to-Offline (“020") business model for the sales and
distribution of our own branded automated customised
graphene-based slippers (“Graphene-based Slippers”). The
Group has designed and developed the do-it-yourself (“DIY")
automated vending system which is the key machine for
the 020 business model. The Directors consider that the
introduction of the DIY automated vending system is an
innovative business model which combines the new retail
method and customised and personalised features and the DIY
automated vending system is an effective and efficient way of
selling the higher gross profit margin Graphene-based Slippers
and can maximize the profit of the Group.

Chairman’s Statement
FHEHREFE

B EHABER

AANERREERHBERZEREGRAA
(BEgRm]H[ARADEE([EF])
S([EF2 ) REARARENBE AR
([ AEEDBE-_T—RF+-A
=t BLEFENMBRS-

R-FB—RE AEEHIRARARER
iz A NAEARGRERMER LRI
HAERGLE BB IEHEY ([EVA])
M - BN ARG EVAZORM B E T

TR SR AETE

FARAEEHE

RABAAE - BEERAEERRKBEVA
TRME R R EEER ([0EM J) X755

HERIR N AEEEEE

ERERN-ZFE

—NFhE ARBAL4,100,0007T525.7%

Z= %) AR #215,800,0007T °

[l A= e

—RFEM25.0%FFEEL - 2016F K%
EERNEKEFAE349% FTEZ2HAHA
HERARBIGEVAZSEME  MZEREF

RSN ERER-

FARIRBHERY ANEHETEITXHR
REZEBHEREBT  AEERERIN
BR-EHTEHA KLEKRT (1020])
EBEAUHERDHEAREEDEE
ARz A2GHEE (A2 GHRE]) -
AEEDRAMFAZEB (DY) BFHE
BEZR ZEMRO20EBEAN T2 H

B-EERA SIHEDYEH
EaIFNEBER  HHT

EERXGA/—
&7 AL E ATl

B S EAE4E S RADIYB BV E B Rt HH

ERRENXZARBEE

—EAME

BHNAR TR CAEEBFBERAL-

ISR

—-XEFH

5



6

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRES

As the Group targets to expand its business from traditional
industries to high technology industries to create long-
term benefits for the Group, the Group engaged several
independent third parties in the research and development
of manufacturing and application technology of graphene
material on sterilizing chips for air purifiers and air
conditioners, energy storage materials for batteries and
pressure sensitive lighting devices for shoes in 2016. In
the coming years, the Group would continue deploy more
resources on the research and development of graphene
application products in order to enhance the leading position
in this area and gradually transform the Company from a
traditional manufacturing company to a high technology
company. Besides, the Group would focus on promoting
the graphene technology application and the development
of graphene application products in order to develop new
markets and new business. The Board is of the view that
the combination of graphene technology with conventional
industry would enhance the competitiveness and long-term
development of the Group and help the Group to generate
more revenue and profit in the future.

Last but not the least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
thank our management and all staff for their dedication and
contribution to the development of the Group. | would also
like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to
our customers, suppliers, business partners and shareholders
for their continuous commitment and support.

Zheng Jingdong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 July 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

‘ﬁIEFE*TﬂHEl 1%

During the year, the Group focused on the graphene
technology application and the development of graphene
application products and successfully launched graphene-
based EVA foam material with sterilizing, good elasticity
and tear resistant functions (“Graphene-based Products”) in
June 2016. As the Graphene-based Products have received
the market recognition, the sales performance of the Group
has improved in the second half of 2016 and the revenue of
the Graphene-based Products amounted to approximately
RMB43.2 million in 2016. In addition, with the help of
technology improvement to improve the product quality,
the Group recorded an increase of the revenue in the OEM
business, by approximately RMB26.2 million or 18.2%.
Although the Group spent less effort on the marketing of the
own branded products, resulting in a decrease in the sales
of own branded products during the year by approximately
RMB25.2 million, the Group’s overall sales performance has
improved by RMB44.1 million or 25.7% to approximately
RMB215.8 million as compared with last year (2015:
RMB171.7 million), with the commencement of the sales of
Graphene-based Products and the increase in sales in OEM
business.

During the year, the gross profit margin of the Group increased
to 34.9% (2015: 25.0%), which was mainly attributable
to the application of the graphene technology and the
commencement of the sale of the Graphene-based Products
with a higher gross profit margin than that of the traditional
products, when compared with that in 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWKR DM

Despite the substantial increase in gross profit of the principal
business of the Group, the Group still recorded a substantial
increase in net loss from approximately RMB25.7 million in
2015 to RMB317.6 million, which is mainly attributable to
(i) share-based payment expenses of approximately RMB20.7
million (2015: RMB9.5 million) in relation to the share options
granted by the Company on 10 December 2015, 24 June 2016
and 16 December 2016; (ii) amortisation of intangible assets
of approximately RMB105.4 million (2015: RMB6.5 million)
and impairment loss on intangible assets of approximately
RMB325.6 million (2015: Nil) in relation to the acquisition of
certain technological know-how in respect of the application
of graphene and includes one patent in the United States
of America (“US"), four invention patent applications, three
utility model patent applications and two utility model
patents in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), relating
to the manufacturing of graphene-based EVA foam material,
graphene deodorizing and sterilizing chips and graphene-
based pressure-sensitive sensors and the exclusive formula
(collectively as the “Technology Know-how") from Bluestone
Technologies (Cayman) Limited (“Bluestone”) on 16 December
2015, which the amount of impairment was made with
reference to a valuation report conducted by an independent
professional valuer based on various information provided by
the management including but not limited to an independent
market research report, detailed marketing plans, business
plan, financial model and actual sales track records. The
Board has reviewed the available information and supporting
documents and agreed with the position of the management
of the Company that the amount of impairment was adequate;
(iii) the substantial increase in fair value loss on convertible
notes and warrants at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL") of approximately RMB17.7 million; and (iv) offset by
the fair value gain on provision for contingent consideration at
FVTPL of approximately RMB141.9 million (2015: Nil).

During the year, the Group engaged several independent third
parties in the research and development of manufacturing
and application technology of graphene material on sterilizing
chips for air purifiers and air conditioners, energy storage
materials for batteries and pressure-sensitive lighting devices
for shoes (the “New Products”) and recognised the related
deferred development costs as intangible assets. Several
invention and utility model patents arising from the deferred
development costs were either obtained or under application
in the PRC and the New Products would be launched in late
2017 or early 2018, as a result, the Directors are of the view
that future economic benefits will be generated from such
development costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue by Product Category

MIEJEA—THIE& *ﬁ'

Bt % B
RERENBHKES
Increase/
2016 2015 (decrease)
RMB’'000 RMB'000 % change
s/

—g-x% -T-8% (A

ARETR ARETR % 5
Revenue (Boree Products) Wz (EABE®R) 2,698 27,849 (90.3%)
Revenue (Graphene-based Products) Wz (ARGBER) 43,171 - NATEHR
Revenue (OEM Business) %5 (OEMZEETS) 169,962 143,806 18.2%
Revenue (Total) Wit (#%8) 215,831 171,655 25.7%
Boree Products EABER

The continuous slowdown of economic growth of the PRC
and the change of local customers’ shopping habit led to an
adverse operating environment for the retail market in the
PRC. The Boree brand, targeting the medium-to-high-end
market of slippers, sandals and casual footwear, recorded a
revenue for the year of approximately RMB2.7 million (2015:
RMB27.8 million), representing a 90.3% decrease from the
previous year. Decrease was due to less selling expenses
spent on the marketing of Boree Products. The Group also
shifted the resources to the new business segment line for the
development and sales of Graphene-based Products during the
year.

Graphene-based Products

Due to acquisition of Technology Know-how in December
2015, the Group has successfully applied the graphene
technology and launched the Graphene-based Products in
2016. As the products have received the market recognition,
the Graphene-based Products as a new business segment,
contributed approximately RMB43.2 million sales revenue to
the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWKR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

OEM Business

During the year, the sales of Group’s OEM business increased
by RMB26.2 million or 18.2% to approximately RMB170.0
million as compared with last year (2015: RMB143.8 million).
Notwithstanding the labour cost and the raw material cost,
as the major production cost of footwear, kept increasing
during the year, the Group put effort to improve the
technology to reduce production costs, maintaining its pricing
competitiveness in the footwear market. Therefore, as more
competitors were faded out in the market, the performance of
the OEM business improved during the year.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

During the year, selling and distribution expenses decreased
by 28.2% to approximately RMB8.6 million as compared with
that of last year (2015: RMB12.0 million), which accounted
for 4.0% (2015: 7.0%) of the Group’s revenue. The decrease
was mainly attributable to less marketing activities held for the
promotion of Boree Products.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses recorded an increase
of approximately RMB15.8 million or 43.9% during the
year as compared with that of last year (2015: RMB36.1
million), which was mainly attributable to share-based
payment expenses of approximately RMB20.7 million (2015:
RMB9.5 million) in relation to the share options granted by
the Company on 10 December 2015, 24 June 2016 and 16
December 2016 and more research and development costs
incurred during the year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year, net cash inflow from operating activities of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB33.2 million (2015:
net cash outflow of RMB4.3 million). As at 31 December
2016, cash and bank balances were approximately RMB4.8
million, representing a decrease of 99.4% as compared
with the cash and bank balances as at the end of last year
(2015: RMB789.8 million). The decrease was mainly due to
the payment for the cash portion of the second and third
instalment of the acquisition of the Technology Know-how
of approximately RMB659.4 million and the payment for the
deferred development cost for numerous products in relation
to graphene technology during the year. As at 31 December
2016, around 57% and 35% of the Group’s cash and bank
balances were denominated in US dollars and Renminbi. As
at 31 December 2016, the interest-bearing bank borrowings
of the Group were approximately RMB124.0 million (2015:
approximately RMB129.6 million). All bank loans were
denominated in Renminbi, with fixed interest rates and
repayable within one year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Capital Structure

As at 1 January 2016, there were 1,067,579,608 shares in
issue and the Company carried a share capital of approximately
RMB70,555,000. During the year, the Company issued a total
of 16,480,000 shares to share option holders who exercised
their share options. As at 31 December 2016, the Company
had 1,084,059,608 shares in issue and a paid-up capital of
approximately RMB71,629,000.

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals

Saved for the acquisition of the Technology Know-how, 020
distribution vending system and deferred development cost as
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group did not have any other significant investments,
material acquisitions and disposals during the year.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the bills payables were secured
by a pledge of the Group’s time deposits amounting to
approximately RMB4.3 million (2015: RMB2.7 million). The
bank borrowings of the Group were also secured by a pledge
of the Group’s buildings and land use right with a net carrying
value of approximately RMB15.7 million (2015: RMB18.9
million) and approximately RMB33.5 million (2015: RMB34.3
million) respectively.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were no material
contingent liabilities.

Foreign Exchange Risk

During the year, the sales of the Group were mainly
denominated in US dollars and Renminbi. The cost of sales and
operating expenses were mainly denominated in Renminbi.
Management of the Group monitors the foreign exchange
risk and will consider hedging significant foreign currency risk
exposure if necessary.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2016, the gearing ratio of the Group
was 44.6% (2015: 54.2%). Gearing ratio was calculated as
total debt divided by the total equity plus total debt. Total
debt refers to the total liability minus the sum of tax payable,
dividend payable and deferred tax liability.
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EEENWKR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of
approximately 840 employees (2015: 900 employees), with
total staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2016,
including directors’ remuneration, amounted to approximately
RMB70,309,000 (2015: RMB55,732,000). The Group's
emolument policies are based on the merit, qualifications and
competence of individual employee and are reviewed by the
remuneration committee periodically. The emoluments of the
Directors are recommended by the remuneration committee
and are decided by the Board, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. The Company also adopted a share option
scheme on 8 January 2011 (the “Share Option Scheme”) to
motivate and reward its Directors and eligible employees.

Use of Net Proceeds from the Share Offering

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had unutilised net
proceeds from the Initial Public Offering (“IPO") in the amount
of approximately RMB5.4 million, representing approximately
1.4% of the total net proceeds from the IPO (the “Unutilised
Net Proceeds”). As disclosed in the announcement dated
8 September 2016, approximately RMB73.4 million of the
Unutilised Net Proceeds were originally intended to be used
to acquire other branded product business and establish
flagship shops and showrooms. The Company believed that
such intended use no longer met the Group’s imminent
business development needs. In view of the fulfilment of the
third instalment conditions in relation to the acquisition of the
Technology Know-how, the Board had resolved to change the
proposed use of such RMB73,443,000 and apply them for the
partial settlement of the third instalment of the consideration
for the acquisition of the Technology Know-how. Besides, in
order to develop and strengthen the selling and distribution
system, the proposed use of approximately RMB45,026,000
and RMB14,974,000 was changed from increasing production
capacity and strengthening the distribution resource planning
system respectively to settle the payment for the design and
development of the 020 distribution vending system in 2016.
In light of current market conditions of footwear industry in
the PRC and the development of the Group, the Company
believes that the use of the Unutilised Net Proceeds under
the original intended purpose may no longer meet the
Group’s imminent business development needs. In order to
maximise the benefits of the Company and its shareholders,
the Company may change the usage of the Unutilised Net
Proceeds from the original intended purposes to working
capital and other general corporate purposes of the Group.
If this happen, further announcements will be made by the
Company as and when appropriate in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Use of Net Proceeds from the Share Offering (continued)

The ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange on 28 January 2011
with net proceeds received by the Company from the share
offering of HK$453,570,000 (approximately RMB387,666,000)
(after deducting underwriting commission and related
expenses).

The utilisation of the net proceeds as at 31 December 2016 is
set out as follows:

EEENWR DM

Bt ¥ CI B8 (&)
BRORERSREZTERAE (£)
AAa)E@EE (TRH D R=ZFE—F—A
“+HN\BHREBRFER T AQE AR
1B R B9 BT 15 U8 F 58 /4453,570,000
BT (#) A R #387,666,0007T) (&%
BHEMAe MABRY) -

RIE-—RF+ZA=+—H FBERA
FEWEBRBEREINNT

Nature Amount Amount
raised utilised
RMB’000 RMB’000
L= ik %G BAEHE
ARBFTT ARBF T
To increase production capacity 2 INE §E
(approximately RMB45,026,000 was (# AR #45,026,000T 2
changed to “To settle the payment for BERIEE BRI RAE
the design and development of the 020 O200 HHE B RZMRK])
distribution vending system”) 135,683 135,376
Marketing and advertising expenses WMEMTEBX 96,917 96,917
To acquire other branded product business W88 E i R pEE M ¥
(approximately RMB58,150,000 was (49 AR 58,150,000 T 2 &
changed to “To settle the payment of the B A [ EEWEREMAZ
acquisition of the Technology Know-how"”) ) 58,150 58,150
To strengthen design capability R R AT AE 19,383 14,297
To establish flagship shops and showrooms B s FE#E | K& [R5 =
(approximately RMB15,293,000 was (49 AR ™15,293,00070 2 &
changed to “To settle the payment of the BB [ AERERM S~
acquisition of the Technology Know-how"”) 3% /) 19,383 19,383
To strengthen the distribution resource g o B IR B R
planning system (89 AR #14,974,0007TE
(approximately RMB 14,974,000 was BERIEERR RAE
changed to “To settle the payment for 0200 SHE B RHMITFK])
the design and development of the 020
distribution vending system”) 19,383 19,383
General working capital —REEES 38,767 38,767
Total: Bt 387,666 382,273
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EEENWKR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Use of Net Proceeds from the Issue of a Total of
88,000,000 Warrants on 21 April 2015 (the”2015
Warrants”)

The net proceeds from the issue of 2015 Warrants of
approximately HK$6,000,000 was intended to be retained in
Hong Kong as general working capital of the Company and its
offshore subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and overseas
(the "Offshore Group Members”) to settle the expenses such
as administrative expenses, the professional fees and the salary
expenses incurred by the Offshore Group Members. The net
proceeds of approximately HK$6,000,000 from the issue of
2015 Warrants had been fully utilised for general working
capital of the Offshore Group Members to settle the expenses
such as administrative expenses, the professional fees and
the salary expenses incurred by the Offshore Group Members
during the year ended 31 December 2015. All warrants
from the issue of 2015 Warrants have been expired as at
31 December 2016. No 2015 Warrants have been exercised
during both years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

As the Group targets to expand its business from traditional
industries to high technology industries to create long-term
benefits for the Group, after the acquisition of the Technology
Know-how from Bluestone in December 2015, the Group
focused on the graphene technology application and the
development of graphene application products in 2016.
Graphene-based Products were successfully launched in June
2016 and have received the market recognition. In addition,
with the help of technology improvement to improve the
product quality, the Group recorded an increase of the revenue
in the OEM business. Due to these two major reasons, the
sales performance of the Group has improved in 2016 despite
the slow-down of China‘’s economic growth. Besides, due to
the higher gross profit margin of Graphene-based Products,
the gross profit margin of the Group increased to 34.9% in
2016 from 25.0% in 2015.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

In order to develop different types of graphene application
products, the Group engaged several independent third
parties in the research and development of manufacturing
and application technology of graphene material on sterilizing
chips for air purifiers and air conditioners, energy storage
materials for batteries and pressure sensitive lighting devices
for shoes in 2016. The Directors seek the opportunities in
applying the graphene material in products other than EVA
foam material and slippers and plan to launch in the coming
years.

In the coming year, the Group would deploy more resources
in upgrading its technology and cooperate with different
professional parties to develop and launch more and more
innovative graphene application products in order to gradually
transform the Company from a traditional manufacturing
company to a high technology company. Besides, the
Group would focus on promoting the graphene technology
application and the development of graphene application
products in order to develop new markets and new business.
The Group targets to seek for opportunities to cooperate with
different branded sports shoes manufacturers and household
products manufacturers to develop graphene application
products for sports shoes and household products. Besides, the
Group targets to cooperate with textile enterprises to develop
textile products with new functions.

Regarding the existing slipper business, as the slippers retail
industry experiences stiff competition from online retailers, the
Group continuously develops different types of distribution
channels and decided to focus on developing 020 business
model for the sales and distribution of slippers. The Group
has engaged a PRC domestic company to design and develop
the DIY automated vending system which is the key machine
for the 020 business model. The Directors consider that
the introduction of the DIY automated vending system is an
innovative business model which combines the new retail
method and customised and personalised features. The
Directors are of the view that the introduction of the DIY
automated vending system for selling the Graphene-based
Slippers will contribute to the Group in the following three
areas:

1. Market interaction model: The DIY automated vending
system will provide customers with tailor-made interactive
and unique shopping experience;

EEENWR DM
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EEENWKR DM

FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

2.  Business model: The business model of the DIY
automated vending system is likely to replace the
traditional shop sales model with the benefit of lower
operating cost, higher gross profit margin and immediate
cash inflow and establishes another essential and
effective distribution channel for the products of the
Group; and

3. Product technology: The graphene-based sterilizing
foam material of Graphene-based Slippers will provide a
better experience to customers and will establish the core
technical competitiveness of the Group.

The Group considers that DIY automated vending system is
an effective and efficient way of selling the Graphene-based
Slippers and can maximize the profit of the Group. With the
above benefits, the Group focused on the development of DIY
automated vending system for the sales and distribution of
Graphene-based Slippers in the first half of 2017 and decided
to mainly use graphene-based sterilizing foam material for the
production of Graphene-based Slippers and would reduce the
sales of graphene-based sterilizing foam material directly to
customers in the coming years.

In the first half of 2017, the trial run of the first generation
of the DIY automated vending system was completed and
based on the trial run data and feedback from customers,
improvement and upgrade on the automated vending system
hardware and software was made and the second generation
of the DIY automated vending system was launched in
July 2017. Besides, the Group engaged a market research
company to perform a market research on the China's 020
slippers vending machines market. The Group based on the
market analysis data and consumer survey of this report to
position our products and according to the target customers’
preferences to choose the locations of DIY automated vending
system. As the Group targets to greatly increase the number
of DIY automated vending system and will launch marketing
campaign with more resources on the Graphene-based
Slippers, the Directors expect that sales of the Group will
improve in the second half of 2017.

In the coming years, the Group would continue deploy more
resources on the research and development of graphene
application products in order to enhance the leading position
in this area. The Board is of the view that the combination
of graphene technology with conventional industry would
enhance the competitiveness and long-term development of
the Group and help the Group to generate more revenue and

profit in the future.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board and the management of the Company are
committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Company believes that good
corporate governance provides a framework that is essential
for effective management, a healthy corporate culture,
successful business growth and enhancing shareholders’ value.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

The Company has complied with the code provision (the
“Code Provision”) as set out in the CG Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2016, save for the deviations
as discussed below. The Company periodically reviews its
corporate governance practices to ensure its continuous
compliance.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the required
standard for securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and
each of them has confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code during the
financial year ended 31 December 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board members are:

° Executive Directors:
Mr. ZHENG Jingdong

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung (Vice-chairman)

° Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. CHAN Chak Chak Daniel

(Resigned on 12 December 2016)
Ms. LIN Weihuan

(Appointed on 7 January 2016)
Mr. SZE Ching Bor

(Resigned on 7 January 2016)
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CEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
o Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. AN Na
Professor ZHAO Jinbao
Mr. CHEN Shaohua

The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the
section headed "Biographical Details of Directors” on pages
44 to 46 of this annual report. The composition of the Board is
well balanced. Each of the Directors has relevant expertise and
extensive experiences that may contribute to the business of
the Group. The Company has complied with the requirements
under Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules during the
financial year ended 31 December 2016. All independent non-
executive Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of
their independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Every director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the "Articles”).

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among
the members of the Board. All of them are free to exercise
their independent judgement.

The Board is responsible for establishing the overall strategic
development and direction, setting business objectives
and development plans, monitoring the performance of
the business and senior management and making major
investments and funding decisions of the Group.

The daily business operations and administrative functions of
the Group are delegated to the management with department
heads responsible for different aspects of the business and
functions of the Group.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to formulate
overall strategy of the Group, monitor its financial
performance and maintain effective oversight over the
management. Sufficient notice of meetings is given to
Directors prior to a regular board meeting, and each director
is able to request inclusion of matters in the agenda for board
meeting. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings.
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TEERBSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EES(£H)

Details of the attendance of the Board meetings, the annual REZ_E—RF+_A=+—H 18
general meeting ("AGM"”) and the extraordinary general HEEMRTESees REAFARE
meeting ("EGM") held during the financial year ended 31 ([WEAERE ) RIEREERI XS ([IRER
December 2016 are summarised as follows: BRRE ) MERECeFBmmT

Number of EGM
attended/held in

Number of AGM
attended/held in

Number of board
meetings attended/

held in 2016 2016 2016
“E-REHRE/ ZE-AEHE/ —E-AEHE/
BANESSE BAHRE BAHRE
2ENY BAERENY BRAERE
Executive Directors BrE=E
Mr. ZHENG Jingdong BRRELE 14/14 17 17
Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung BIEE 1314 1" i
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Mr. CHAN Chak Chak Daniel REREE(RZE-—1%F
(Resigned on 12 December 2016) +-Rt+-B&#E) 5/12 0N 0N
Ms. LIN Weihuan mEBRL (RZE-RX
(Appointed on 7 January 2016) —BtREZT) 13/13 171 0/1
Mr. SZE Ching Bor LEREE(RZE—RE
(Resigned on 7 January 2016) —A+AEA) N/A N/A N/A
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHTEES
Ms. AN Na 2t 14/14 171 0/1
Professor ZHAO Jinbao HERYK 12114 /1 0/
Mr. CHEN Shaohua ROZER A 14/14 7 0
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS TEERRAEE

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including the duties and responsibilities
as set out in D.3 in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which
include the development and reviewing of policies and
practices on corporate governance and compliance with all
legal and regulatory requirements, monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, development and reviewing of the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors and reviewing the compliance with
the CG Code, and ensuring proper disclosure in the corporate
governance report of the Company.
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CHREARS

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

OF DIRECTORS

All Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. Up to the date of this report,
all the Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by attending training
courses or reading materials on the topics related to corporate
governance and regulations or the Company’s business or their

duties and responsibilities.

The individual training record of each Director received for the
year ended 31 December 2016 is summarised below:

EENRHEERERS

EREFHADEBBEIEEE IEE
REREMB MR BREESENR
BATRESSELIEAFTENTR &
EXARERHR MAEEZRCEB2 NI
iz BEABEEXE R RRIISARE
EBREFEHFRBENENN T A2 A
FEHEEEE-

RBE-F-—AE+-A=+-AL%
B B EFEENEEVCHERNT

Attending seminar(s)/
programme(s)/reading
relevant materials in relation
to the business or Directors’

duties
HERRERS
ESRENERE/
iHE/BERE
ERNER
Mr. ZHENG Jingdong EREL v/
Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung 2Fmfk v
Mr. CHAN Chak Chak Daniel (Resigned on 12 December 2016) BREEE (RZE-—RET-AT-HEHF) v/
Ms. LIN Weihuan (Appointed on 7 January 2016) WEELL (R ~"E-A-HEZ{A) v
Mr. SZE Ching Bor (Resigned on 7 January 2016) PEREE (RZE—R~E-ALARE) v/
Ms. AN Na ZHxt v
Professor ZHAO Jinbao HERAEK v
Mr. CHEN Shaohua ROEEE v

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Company
deviates from this provision because Mr. Zheng Jingdong
has been performing both the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer. The Directors consider that vesting two
roles in the same person provides the Group with strong and
consistent leadership in the development and execution of the
Group's business strategies and is beneficial to the Group. The
balance of power and authorities is ensured by the operation
of the senior management and the Board, which comprise
experienced and high caliber individuals. The Board currently
comprises 2 executive Directors, 1 non-executive Director and
3 independent non-executive Directors and therefore has a

strong independence element in its composition.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at
the Board meetings and scrutinising the Group's performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision, in
particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of the
Group's strategy, performance and control.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive
academic, professional and industry expertise and
management experience and have provided their professional
advices to the Board.

The independent non-executive Directors provide independent
advice on the Group's business strategy, results and
management so that all interests of shareholders can be
taken into account, and the interests of the Company and its
shareholders can be protected.

As at 31 December 2016, the Board has three independent
non-executive Directors, Professor Zhao Jinbao, Mr. Chen
Shaohua and Ms. An Na, one of which, being Mr. Chen
Shaohua, possesses appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management expertise in
compliance with the requirements set out in Rules 3.10(1) and
(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and the Company considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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TERMS OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of 3 years, which will
continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three-
month notice in writing served by either party on the other.

All independent non-executive Directors and non-executive
Directors are subject to re-election on retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors of the Company
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
specific term. Such term is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at an AGM at least once every three years in
accordance with the Articles. The Articles of the Company
provide that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office until the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting, and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next AGM of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company currently has three committees, namely, the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”),
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
Terms of reference of all Board Committees are in line with
the Code Provision and are available on the Stock Exchange's
website and the Company’s website at www.baofengmodern.
com. The Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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PUTTING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the Company secretary of the
Company by mail at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Room 504, 5/F.,, OfficePlus @Sheung Wan, 93-
103 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. The company
secretary forwards communications relating to matters within
the Board’s purview to the Board and communications relating
to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, inquiries and
customer complaints, to the chief executives.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established by the Board on 8
January 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
and supervise our Group’s financial reporting process and risk
management and internal control systems, effectiveness of
the Group’s internal audit function and review and monitor
appointment of the auditors and their independence.

The audit committee comprised three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Shaohua, Professor
Zhao Jinbao and Ms. An Na, and Mr. Chen Shaohua was
the chairperson of the audit committee as at 31 December
2016. The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 have been reviewed by the audit committee.
The audit committee held 3 meetings during the financial
year ended 31 December 2016 to review interim and annual
financial results and reports, significant issues on the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and risk
management systems, the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
audit function and scope of work and appointment of external
auditors. The audit committee has critically reviewed the basis
for disclaimer of opinion in the independent auditor’s report
and the major judgemental areas on the recognition of deferred
development costs as intangible assets and the impairment
assessment of the Group's intangible assets as at 31 December
2016. After reviewing the business plan, the related financial
information and the supporting information, thoroughly
considering the changes of business environment and direction
of development proposed by the management, the audit
committee agreed with the position of the management of the
Company.
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Details of the attendance of the audit committee are as follow:

BERREBENHFELEFBOT:

Members 24} Attendance of Meeting

SRLEER
Mr. CHEN Shaohua (Chairperson of audit committee) ROELRE (BREZEEER) 33
Professor ZHAO Jinbao HeRHEK 23
Ms. AN Na zifit 33

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the remuneration committee on 8
January 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the remuneration committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policies and structure of the remuneration for the Directors
and senior management and to set up a formal and
transparent procedure for determination of such remuneration
policies. It shall also make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management.

The remuneration committee comprised three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. An Na (the chairperson of
the remuneration committee), Professor Zhao Jinbao and Mr.
Chen Shaohua as at 31 December 2016. The remuneration
committee held 2 meetings during the financial year ended
31 December 2016 to review and make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration policy and structure of the
Company, and to determine the remuneration packages of
executive Directors and senior management.

The details of the attendance of the remuneration committee
are as follows:
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Members 124} Attendance of Meeting

SRHERER
Ms. AN Na (Chairperson of remuneration committee) ZHat (FMEEEER) 2/2
Professor ZHAO Jinbao e RHAR 22
Mr. CHEN Shaohua ROERE 2/2
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Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5, the annual remuneration of BIESTAEYEBASE HE T —RF

the members of the senior management of the Company by +-A=+—HIIFEARATSREEA
band for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below: EMEHEROT

Remuneration band (RMB) Number of individuals
e E (ARY) AE
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 2
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 2

Details of remuneration of each Director for the year ended BREEHE_T—AR"F+ZA=+—HI1t
31 December 2016 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated FEOFNFBENERERAE LGS I
financial statements contained in this annual report. WKL -

NOMINATION COMMITTEEE REZEES

The Board established the nomination committee on 8 January EEgER - ——F—A)\HER LM
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with HBIMTEE T PURTE > 2 E 8 TR IR 4
CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The ZEe WHFTEZAERESNE -RELEE
primary duties of the nomination committee are set out below: MEEBREHINOT:

(a) to make recommendations to the Board on the (a) WMEENZIRESSIELEE:
appointment of Directors;

(b)  to review the size, structure and composition of the (b) BN EBEARE BENLEK:
Board;

() to review the terms of reference, to assess the () EBESE FTEB Y IENITES
independence of independent non-executive Directors; EORERVA N
and

(d)  to make recommendations to the Board on the re- (dy HMEREAKRERAFRKZ HIRER
election of Directors to be proposed for shareholders’ B ENEEREESELEE-
approval at the AGM.

The nomination committee comprised the three independent RZE—RNFE+_A=1+—8B EKZLE
non-executive Directors, namely Professor Zhao Jinbao (the EH=ZEBIUIERTEEHDRIXR (I
chairperson of the nomination committee), Mr. Chen Shaohua  &ZZEEXfE) Mo ELE R L +4E
and Ms. An Na as at 31 December 2016. The nomination K-REZEEeRNHE_Z—XF+_A
committee held 2 meetings during the financial year ended =4+— B FBIBRFEERNERTTRAL S -
31 December 2016 to make recommendations to the Board UHEENEZTRNESTSHELHERE B
on the appointment of Directors, review the structure, EREMNRE RERBENARE T IEH
size and composition of the Board and the independence  {TEEMBIM UHARRIEEERS L
of the independent non-executive Directors and make EEEENEETSELHERE-
recommendations to the Board on the re-election of Directors

at the AGM.
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The details of the attendance of the nomination committee are REZLEeHELSEEE0 T
as follows:

Members W& Attendance of Meeting

BELRER
Professor ZHAQ Jinbao (Chairperson of nomination committee)  #HE&RHK (REZEE€TE) 212
Mr. CHEN Shaohua BOZELE 22
Ms. AN Na Tt 212
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY EEERESTILEE

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Group REE2-F—X"F+-_A=+—HBLEFHK

adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) setting out the FERN AEBCDHEMNEESREZ UL

approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in B ([ ]) B AEB REHE

order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board. FeREZTLUARAESS 2ANEM
RERZ Tt

Pursuant to the Policy, the Group considered the diversity of BERE ANEBRAAESEBEERZRE
the Board members can be achieved through the consideration BEBARNER - EH - - XL ER#HE S
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, = TREREE - EELR - B AR
age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional BEE nBERESFEKEZ L
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board will consider to set measurable objectives to EEeBEEREHTFEREEENHEITR
implement the Policy and review such objectives from time to RO U THBRZEECUEREAEE
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress LHETENZEREZERE-

made towards achieving those objectives.

The nomination committee will review the Policy from time to RELZE BT EBE UEEREE
time to ensure its continued effectiveness. T2HW -

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE EEHUKERRNVET
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the EFEBEREBEHEEGIENZEGAMH
financial statements which give a true and fair view of  BIBRRIFS#EER MEE A BERHIHER
the state of affairs of the Group, and in accordance with Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ‘%i&?ivﬁgﬁ@ﬁiﬁﬂiﬁlj$%
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the E’\]?%%ﬁﬁiﬂo$\@ﬂ$§§iﬁfﬁﬁdﬁﬁ¥jﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
=B R A E N AN F A B R B AR

International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure i
= o

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The statement by the auditors of the Company about their
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the
independent auditor’s report contained in this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain an effective risk
management and internal control system in order to protect
the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests. The Group has
an internal audit function. The Board and audit committee also
conduct periodic reviews to ensure the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The
risk management and internal control systems include a well-
established corporate structure and organisation with clearly
defined lines of responsibility and authority. Each department
is responsible for its daily operations, and is also required to
implement and monitor the strategies and policies adopted by
the Board and effective employment of the resources of the
Company, in order to avoid misappropriation of resources and
damages made to the Company’s assets, and prevent against
errors and fraud.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Board
and audit committee conducted a review and assessment of
the effectiveness of the internal control system and procedures
based on information derived from discussions with the
management of the Company and its external auditor. The
Board and audit committee believe that the existing risk
management and internal control systems are adequate and
effective. The review covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions as well as the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget.

The Board has established a clearly defined scope of activities,
responsibility and authority for each department and its
management staff within the Group. The Group has a
defined goal for each department to accomplish, these goals
were discussed in the Board meeting and pass on to the
management through the executive Directors. These goals
will be implemented and closely monitored by the executive
Directors who shall review the operational and financial results
from time to time, and to take any necessary actions for the
improvement of its business activities.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Mr. Sze Ching Bor, Best Mark International Limited (”Best
Mark”) and Capital Vision International Limited (”Capital
Vision”) (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) entered
into a deed of non-competition in favour of the Company
on 8 January 2011 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”). The
undertakings and covenants stipulated under the Deed of
Non-Competition cover any business which is or may be in
competition with the business of any member of the Group
from time to time. The Deed of Non-Competition has become
effective since 28 January 2011. There has been no change
to the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2016. Please refer to the prospectus of
the Company dated 18 January 2011 for details of the Deed of
Non-Competition.

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed in writing to
the Company of their compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition for disclosure in this annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Upon receiving the confirmation, the independent non-
executive Directors had reviewed the same as part of the
annual review process. In determining whether the Controlling
Shareholders had fully complied with the non-competition
undertakings in 2016 for the annual assessment, it was noted
that (a) the Controlling Shareholders declared that they had
fully complied with the non-competition undertakings in
the Deed of Non-Competition for the financial year ended
31 December 2016; (b) no new competing business was
reported by the Controlling Shareholders during the year
ended 31 December 2016; and (c) there was no particular
situation rendering the full compliance of the non-competition
undertakings being questionable. In view of the above,
the independent non-executive Directors confirmed that
all of the non-competition undertakings in the Deed of
Non-Competition were complied with by the Controlling
Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration in respect of audit services
provided by the Company’s auditor, Pan-China (H.K.) CPA
Limited was RMB1,102,754.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Information about the Group has been provided to the
shareholders through financial reports, announcements
and general meetings including AGMs in order to keep
shareholders well informed of the business activities and
directions of the Group. The Group has also established a
corporate website www.baofengmodern.com as a channel to
facilitate effective communication with the shareholders.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Room 504, 5/F, OfficePlus @Sheung
Wan, 93-103 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

Code Provision A.6.7. stipulates that non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors should attend AGM
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of the
shareholders of the Company. The Company deviates from this
provision because the non-executive Director, Mr. Chan Chak
Chak Daniel was unable to attend the AGM held on 8 June
2016 due to his other business commitments.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, there is no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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SHAREHOLDER’S RIGHT

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
members of the Company holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

The same requirements and procedures also apply to any
proposal to be tabled at shareholders’ meetings for adoption.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

Appropriate insurance coverage for Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors and
officers of the Company and its subsidiaries arising out of
corporate activities of the Group has been arranged by the
Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Company strives to safeguard and balance the interests
of each stakeholder and follows the operating principle
“taste of life, happy production”. Facing the changes and
challenges of business environment, the Group never forget
to commit corporate social responsibility while pursuing
growth. In respect of the respective area of product safety,
product quality, energy saving and environmental protection,
social welfare and employee care, the Group will ensure
that the business operations can create value for the social,
human and natural capital, and actively fulfill corporate social
responsibility.

The Board is responsible for determining the environmental,
social and governance risks of the Group, formulating
environmental, social and governance strategies, ensuring
the establishment and maintenance of an effective internal
control system on environment, society and governance and
conducting regular analysis and independent assessment on
the adequacy and effectiveness of the aforementioned system
through internal audit functions.

The production and the major business of the Group are based
in the PRC. Therefore, the information and data included in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report are the
information and data of the Group that originates in the PRC.
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group always pays attention to environmental
protection. In respect of environmental management,
the ISO14001 environmental management system has
been established and implemented since 2006, with
annual review supervised by third-party certification
institutions and regulatory authorities. The Group
formulates appropriate environmental management
operation control procedures, commits to environmental
protection through continuous enhancement on
production technology and product quality, introduction
and promotion of energy conservation, waste
reduction, clean production, improvement on pollution
prevention and control technology, and material
recycling and reuse. In 2016, the Group invested a total
of approximately RMB1.6 million for energy saving,
environmental protection, and emission and waste
reduction. The Group adheres to green and low-carbon
development principle, protects the environment as its
mission, and integrates environmental protection with
enterprise development. The Group strictly follows
relevant national environmental laws and regulations
to minimize the impact of production and operating
activities to the environment to the greatest extent,
strives to achieve resource recycling and non-hazardous
objectives during production and operation process
and continues to build a green and harmonious
environment.

A.1 Emissions Management

The Group strives to carry out clean production,
abides by the “Environmental Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China” and other
relevant laws and regulations, and reduces the
environmental impact of emissions generated
from the production and operation process. The
Group ensures that the wastewater, exhaust gas,
solid waste and noise generated from production
and operation activities are in compliance with
national standards and the requirements of
local environmental protection authorities of the
PRC. In the meantime, the Group formulates
and implements daily inspection of pollution
treatment facilities, and formulates monthly,
quarterly and annual maintenance plans to
ensure emission treatment facilities are under
normal operation, so as to reduce the impact of
emissions on the environment.
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Wastewater

Wastewater generated from the production
process and daily domestic sewage from
employees will be collected for further
processing. No sewage is untreated or illegally
released to external waters. The related
procedures are in compliance with the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution”.

Greenhouse Gases Emission

The main waste gas emissions of the Group are
volatile gas from the production process and dust
particles from production workshop. The Group
is in compliance with the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Atmospheric Pollution” and other relevant
laws and regulations, recycling certain particles
generated during the production process to
minimize exhaust gas emission to the greatest
extent. The Group uses clean natural gas and has
installed exhaust gas treatment equipment on
production boilers to effectively control exhaust
gas and soot generated during the combustion
of boilers and ensure the emission concentration
meets the standard stipulated in the “Emission
Standard of Air Pollutants for Boiler”.

Solid Wastes

The main solid wastes produced during the
production process are remaining materials and
scrap materials of finished products produced
by the Group. To minimize the amount of solid
waste generated during the production process,
the Group strictly abides by the principles of
recycling and reuse, as well as the provisions of
the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste”. The Group carries
out hazard elimination treatment, classification
and recycling on solid wastes pursuant to the
“Solid Waste Management Operations Guide”
of the Group, including (i) recycling and reuse of
grinding powder, scrap; (ii) selling of cardboard
boxes, paper products to other paper mills for
recycling and reuse; and (iii) unified recycling
of domestic wastes for hazard elimination
treatment, etc.
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A2.

Noise Control

The source of noise is mainly from the noise
generated by mechanical operations during the
production process. The equipments with larger
noise are all placed indoor, while noise reduction,
sound insulation, shock absorption and other
measures are adopted in order to comply with
the relevant provisions of the “Emission Standard
for Industrial Enterprises Noise at Boundary”.

Use of Resources

The Group strives to fully recycle resources as
much as possible during product development
and production process, constantly pursuing
energy conservation and emission reduction.

The Group has implemented “Green
Procurement” policy to actively encourage
suppliers to establish production management
system with environmental protection and energy
saving, purchase environmentally friendly raw
materials in higher priority through procurement
mechanism and supply chain management,
so as to facilitate suppliers to reduce waste of
resources and pollution.
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The Group also regularly inspects and reviews
energy consumption, through internal policies
and advanced technologies to prevent wastage
so as to conserve energy and resources. Specific
measures include: (i) reduction of natural
gas consumption through the installation of
boiler thermal oil recycling pipeline for heat
recycling and reuse; (ii) reduction of hydraulic
oil consumption by the use of hydraulic oil
precipitation; and (iii) reduction of raw material
input by recycling the grinding powder of
grinding workshop and the scrap of cutting and
clipping workshop. Other actively advocated
routine resource conservation measures include:
(i) replacing high energy-consumption equipment
with the more energy-saving one; (ii) turning
off unnecessary equipment, lighting and air
conditioning not in use; (iii) strengthening
inspection and maintenance of faucets, water
pipes and water storage facilities and other water
supply systems to avoid any leakage; and (iv)
announcing company information in electronic
form (such as e-mail or electronic bulletin) if
possible and reducing paper use with double-
sided printing.

To meet the energy-saving and emission
reduction targets of the government, the
Group reports and evaluates energy-saving
new technologies and emission reduction, and
develops energy performance indicators to
strictly control energy consumption, improve and
enhance energy management.

In addition, the Group encourages employees to
submit energy-saving proposals actively, reduces
power consumption, promotes continuous energy
management training, etc. in order to enhance
the knowledge on energy conservation and
environmental protection policies and energy
saving awareness among employees, so that the
resources can be used more efficiently.
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RRE HERERBRKE

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

The production and operation sites of the Group
have been evaluated during the initial planning
period in respect of the relevant industrial land
environment and related regulations and the
selected production sites are located in the areas
permitted by the local government. During the
production and operation process, collection
and treatment facilities are installed for proper
treatment of pollutants and emissions in order
to ensure meeting the standard required by
local regulations before discharge. The Group
also assesses the feasibility of environmental
protection facilities from time to time, adopts
effective environmental protection measures
and programs, including the prevention and
control of pollution and exhaust gas emission,
sustainable use of resources and ecological and
environmental protection, more active support
and promotion of social and environmental
sustainable development.

B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR

As a responsible employer, the Group is fully in
compliance with the relevant national laws and
regulations in respect of remuneration, compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversification,
anti-discrimination and other employee benefits and
welfare. The Group also regards employees as its most
valuable asset and strives to provide the competitive
salaries, welfare and working environment for them.

B1. Employment

The Group adheres to fair, impartial and open
employment principles, providing all employees
equal opportunities and fair treatment. The
Group strictly abides by the relevant provisions
of the “Labour Law of the People’s Republic
of China” and the “The Labour Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China”. No
arbitrary dismissal of an employee is allowed;
the rights and obligations of both parties to
the employment contract are clearly stated, the
legitimate rights of employees are protected,
in order to establish a harmonious and stable
employment relationship.
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The Group recruits personnel in line with its
strategic requirements through various channels
like campus interview, social recruitment,
network recruitment in a fair and impartial
way. The Group provides employees with
comprehensive social security benefits, including
basic salary, pensions, incentive bonuses, medical
insurance, injury insurance, maternity insurance
and housing provident fund. The Group will also
provide other employee benefits depending on
job nature, including meals, uniforms and fully
equipped accommodation. The human resources
department of the Group conducts regular
reviews and updates on the relevant company
policies from time to time pursuant to the latest
laws and regulations. Employee performance
appraisal, management position promotion,
and other company policies are implemented to
provide career development path to employees
like internal promotions, on the job training. To
attract high-quality talents and retain outstanding
employees, the Group launches Share Option
Scheme and timely conducts reviews on salary
with reference to market standards, formulates
competitive salary and bonus system, and
provides competitive and fair remuneration
and benefits based on personal performance,
professional qualifications, and experience.

The Group treats all employees equally. No
employees are discriminated against on the
grounds of gender, race, religion, age, disability,
family status, sexual orientation, nationality,
political opinion, ethnic background or any
other non-working related factors. Each newly-
recruited employee is required to sign a labour
contract, which clearly defines the rights,
responsibilities, and obligations of both the
employee and the employer, and all employees
are entitled to terminate the employment
relationship with the related employment
company of the Group. The entering,
amendment, cancellation and termination of
the relevant employment contract are strictly
in compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations.
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B2.

Health and Safety

The Group attaches great importance to the
health and safety of employees and has obtained
OHSAS 18001:2007 Occupational Health
and Safety Management System certification,
Work Safety Standardisation certification. The
Group has set up an occupational health and
safety management organisation and a safety
production committee and strictly abides by
the relevant standards of “Occupation Health
and Safety Management System” and “Basic
Standard for Work Safety Standardisation”.
The Group also adheres to the principles of
safety production management and formulates
the regulatory system of safety production
management and operation rules for all
positions. The safety and health of employees
are effectively protected by the implementation
of various job safety management systems and
the clarification and definition of safe production
responsibilities of all positions.

To provide and maintain a safe and healthy
working environment at all times, the Group
regularly provides various kinds of work
protective gears to employees in accordance
with working requirements of each position and
supervises and educates them to wear and utilize
correctly; appoints responsible staff for the safe
production of each department and implements
various safety education; installs dust removal
and waste discharging devices on facilities
generating dust and exhaust gas; controls noise
transmission of machinery exceeding the noise
limit or provides protective gears to employees.
Fire safety inspection, training, and drills are
reqgularly organized to improve safety awareness
and self-protection of employees.

The Group also strictly abides by the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety”,
“Rule for Storage of Chemical Dangers”, “Special
Equipment Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and other relevant laws and regulations,
to build a safe working environment.
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Development and Training

In respect of human resources training, the
Group provides employees with induction and
continuous training to promote their career
development. For newly-recruited employees,
the Group provides comprehensive orientation
training of corporate culture, operation
processes, work health and safety, management
policies and business development. The Group
also encourages employees to participate in
on the job training and provides appropriate
subsidies to eligible employees. Based on job
nature, the Group offers trainings of different
types and levels to newly recruited employees,
junior supervisors, senior supervisors and key
personnel, like management and production
project training, aiming at constantly improving
the overall quality of employees, so as to
maintain sustainable business development in the
future.

Labour Standards

To prevent illegal employment of child labour,
underage and forced labour, the Group has
established a well-developed mechanism.
The employee manual stipulates that selected
candidates must meet the legal age. Before
confirming the employment, the human
resources department of the Group will require
applicants to provide valid identity documents
to ensure that they are legally employed and
fully in compliance with the latest relevant laws
and regulations prohibiting child labour and
forced labour. The Group also conducts regular
inspection and review of the implementation
of human resources policies to eliminate child
labour and forced labour.
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B5.

The Group strictly abides by the relevant
provisions of the “Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and the “The Labour
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
and set reasonable working hours and leaves
for employees pursuant to local employment
ordinances and employment contracts with
employees. The Group has installed a human
resources computerized attendance system
for effective management of staff working
hours and vacation dates. If overtime work is
required, employees may obtain appropriate
overtime payment or compensatory leave
under the relevant employment contract or
labour legislation. To prevent forced overtime
work, overtime must be agreed by employees
voluntarily. During office hours, employees are
allowed to move freely within the factory or
office area (except prohibited special areas), and
it is not mandatory for employees to live in the
factory quarters.

Supply Chain Management

The Group attaches great importance to
sustainable and reliable supply chain to ensure
sustainable enterprise development. The Group
has formulated and implemented supplier
management system. Regarding supplier
selection, the Group conducts qualification
inspection, factory visit and other assessment
processes on potential suppliers with the
principles of fairness, impartiality, openness and
honesty. Inspection areas include the production
capacity, product quality, service quality,
environmental protection, occupational health
and safety of the supplier.
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In order to avoid issues such as varied quality of
products and non-standardisation of materials,
the goods and materials provided by suppliers
are detected by the internal department of the
Group or third-party testing organisations, so as
to select qualified suppliers. Besides, the relevant
departments conduct annual re-evaluation and
assessment on the qualified suppliers for the
supervision of product quality. At the same time,
the Group closely monitors procurement process
to ensure that the procured products meet the
requirements of production technology and
product quality.

Product Responsibility

The Group attaches great importance to product
quality and safety, strictly abides by the “Product
Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and “Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests”,
formulates and implements quality policies to
ensure product quality. The Group has obtained
ISO9001 quality management system certification
in 2003. During the process of mass production,
quality control personnel performs sampling
tests on raw materials, semi-finished goods and
finished goods for tracking and identification of
any potentially inferior products and preventing
problematic material misuse in production. All
finished products must be specifically checked
before packaging to ensure they are qualified. For
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
did not receive any complaints from regulatory
authorities or consumers regarding product
safety and did not recover any products due to
product safety and health reasons. The Group
is not aware of any material non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations on health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
related to products sold during the year.

The Group maintains close and good business
relationships with product distributors, highly
protects the privacy and business secrets of
distributors and strives to ensure timely response
to the feedback of customers and instant
response to product inquiries.
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B7.

The promotion activities of the Group’s products
are carried out by advertising agencies in
accordance with the Group’s policy of privacy,
its business strategy, and the “Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, the "Anti-
Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic
of China” and the “Criminal Law of the People’s
Republic of China”.

Anti-corruption

The Group adheres to the core value of
integrity and strictly abides by the provisions
of the “Company Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, the "Anti-Money Laundering
Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and the “Interim Provisions on Banning of
Commercial Bribery” and other relevant laws
and regulations. The Group has formulated
“Baofeng Personnel Management Regulations”
and other related systems to standardise various
business activities. An internal monitoring
system is set up for strengthening anti-fraud,
anti-extortion, anti-corruption and bribery
supervision, while a reporting mechanism and
a reward and punishment committee are also
set up to strengthen management and promote
compliance, so as to prevent and eliminate fraud,
extortion, bribery and corruptions on various
aspects of operation and management. The
Group prohibits any acts of fraud, extortion,
corruption and bribery, prohibits employees from
taking advantages of their powers and duties
for corruption, embezzlement, encroachment
of corporate property, acceptance of bribes and
kickbacks, etc. Through various measures like
training and promotion, the Group strengthens
the communication with employees in respect
of internal control and anti-fraud, anti-extortion,
anti-corruption, anti-commercial bribery, so as to
enhance their awareness in this regard.

The Group has formulated supplier relationship
guidelines and government authority relationship
guidelines. Standard professional code of ethics
and conduct is formulated for the communication
with business partners, suppliers, customers, etc.
and employees are required to follow strictly.
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Community Investment

In the meantime of corporate development,
the Group does not overlook the responsibility
of a citizen of the community, and actively
participates in social welfare activities, taking
practical actions to bear its due responsibility
as a corporate citizen. The Group engages in
social welfare activities, such as social welfare
investment, community event participation,
school donation, schooling support of employees’
children, charitable donations, active participation
in blood donations, condolence to vulnerable
groups, etc.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEBEFK

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zheng Jingdong

Mr. Zheng Jingdong, aged 51, is the Chairman of the Board,
the Chief Executive Officer of the Group and an executive
Director. He has been appointed as a Director since 21 July
2008. Mr. Zheng has more than 10 years of experience in
the slipper business in the PRC. He has been appointed as a
director of Quanzhou Baofeng Shoes Co Ltd since 28 March
2007 and as a director of BAOF International Limited since
21 July 2008. He has been appointed as the Chairman of the
Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group on 10 May
2013,

Mr. Leung Tsz Chung

Mr. Leung Tsz Chung, aged 48, has been appointed as
the executive Director, Vice-Chairman of the Board and
the authorised representative under the Listing Rules with
effect from 3 February 2015. Mr. Leung holds a degree of
bachelor of arts in Business Studies from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 1991 and a degree of master in
Business Administration from the University of New South
Wales in 1996. He is qualified as a certified professional
marketer and has over 20 years of extensive experience in
business administration and marketing. Mr. Leung is the legal
representative of Bay Zu Precision Co., Ltd QtFEHEERHL A
R 2 7)) since November 2011. Mr. Leung joined 2D Material
Technology Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, as the chief executive officer in November 2014.
Mr. Leung would focus on developing the business of material
technology and 020 business for the Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEBEFK

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Lin Weihuan

Ms. Lin Weihuan, aged 35, has been appointed as the non-
executive Director since 7 January 2016. Ms. Lin obtained a
bachelor of business degree in financial management from
La Trobe University in Melbourne, Australia in 2005. She
later obtained a master of business degree in professional
accounting from Victoria University in Melbourne, Australia in
2006. Ms. Lin has over five years of experience in accounting.
She is now the sole director and sole shareholder of Total
Shine Investments Limited (“Total Shine”) which is principally
engaged in investment business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. An Na

Ms. An Na, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 June 2010. She has been an executive
editor of A EI# T 2 H fx4t (China Light Industry Press) since
1982. She has also been a vice president of 1t (JmEE)
M54t (Beijing Rayli Magazine House) since 2003 at which
she has been responsible for managing and coordinating the
publication of several fashion magazines. In February 2015,
she resigned her post in Beijing Rayli Magazine House. She
received an editor’s qualification from B %R E A & EEBE
% B9 (State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission) in 2008. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Engineering with a major in the study of leather from Fa1L&E T
% 207 (Northwest Institute of Light Industry) (now known as
BRPE R K E (Shaanxi University of Science and Technology))
in 1982.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEBEFK

Mr. Chen Shaohua

Mr. Chen Shaohua, aged 50, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 3 February 2015.
Mr. Chen graduated from the Open University of China (E
KA E) (previously known as China Central Radio and
TV University (F R EREEHR KE), and obtained a bachelor's
degree in Management majoring in Accounting from Beijing
Technology and Business University (1t 5 T AEZ) in 2010.
He is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (CICPA) and qualified as certified assets valuer,
certified tax agent, certified real estate valuer, certified cost
engineer and certified land valuer in the PRC. Mr. Chen is a
senior accountant and senior economist in the PRC. He has
over 20 years of extensive experience in accounting, audit
and tax matters. Mr. Chen is currently the chairman of the
board of directors and legal representative of auditing firm, tax
company, asset and property valuation company in the PRC.

Professor Zhao Jinbao

Professor Zhao Jinbao, aged 54, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 3 February 2015.
Professor Zhao graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology
(WA T ¥ KZ) of the PRC and obtained a bachelor of
engineering degree in Electrochemistry in 1984 and a master’s
degree in Engineering in 1987. Professor Zhao further obtained
a doctor’'s degree in Engineering from Kyoto University in
Japan in 1996. He has been a professor of Physical Chemistry
in the Xiamen University (EF9KE%) of the PRC since 2011.
He has over 20 years of extensive experience in research and
development in the field of engineering and chemistry and was
recruited as one of the experts in The Recruitment Program
of Global Experts (84h& B X A 3l#EH2]), also known as
Thousand Talents Program (F A 5t 2) in the PRC in 2011.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2016 and a discussion on the Group's future
business development and its principal risks and uncertainties
are provided in the sections “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
The financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group can be found in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year using financial key performance indicators is provided in
the “Five-Year Financial Summary” on page 4 of this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to update the requirement of the relevant
laws and regulations in various countries, particularly in the
PRC and Hong Kong, applicable to it to ensure compliance.
During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on it.
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EEEHE

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS Ei{EE HEEBREFWERZ
AND CUSTOMERS

The Group believes that employees are valuable assets. AKEEE EEREENEE -AKEHS
The Group provides competitive remuneration package to EERMEEBRF HHFM A EHSZE
employees and is periodically reviewed with reference to  fTEBAIRE B RAE M - RIFHEAKRER
industry practice. Discretionary bonuses and share options — HIEFE @ AIRERR T (& B WISIEAL M BB AE -
may be awarded to employees according to the assessment — REEFE AEEZSEEESNBER
of individual performance. During the year under review, the  Rif  BEERKKAIER -

Group considered the relationship with employees was good

and the turnover rate is acceptable.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain ~ AEE AR SERLIMEERHAER
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its ~ HEHEERHLREFERFRIFEAERIRER - K
immediate and long-term goals. The Group has been working & B 48 S JE 75 & (FDAGE R A RHZ 2
continuously with its suppliers to improve the standard of raw ¥ E NAEFXNEEER -MAEIEE
materials and aiming at delivering products with high quality P K& &5 B K 5 B 4 45 27 ) A R R 1)
to its customers. All key customers and suppliers have a close ~ BE -#HE-_FT—R"F+-_A=+—H1It
and long relationship with the Group. During the year ended ~ FE RNEBEEMEER K XEF 2 H
31 December 2016, there was no material and significant I B R4 o

dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS XERRE

The result of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 ~ AEEEB#E=E—T— R F+_-_A=1+—HIt
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that ~ FEMNEEERARRNAEERZEANE
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 68 to ~ BARAHN MK FE8E176H °

176.

The Board does not recommend payment of a final dividend EFS@UTMEHREHE T —RNF+

for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil). A=+—HBLEEFEMRERE (Z2—1h
Fom|E)o
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION MEEREE

A summary of the financial information of the Group for the — ANSEEBE D EM B FENP K E TR
last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this annual ~ BRAFMEIR - EW FLERHBR
report. This summary does not form part of the audited  FHI—#7D -

financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT YR BERRE

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment — FRNEBEYE BB K FH o8 5F
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the  BENERE M H MK LS
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS IR R B8 IR

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share A2 BIRAS N B8 B i 22 B 5 1B B 4R
options during the year are set out in notes 28 and 29 to the &M HIEKMF28%29 -

consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS BrRABERE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the AR RIAIRISH 28 &AM #ARRE
Company’s Articles or the laws of Cayman Islands which would Fo BB IR M) R E B ORAR R AR L B R
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to B REREZHE A -

existing shareholders.
Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2016



PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2016, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law of the Cayman lIslands, amounted to approximately
RMB354,932,000. The amount of RMB354,932,000 includes
the Company’s share premium account and contributed surplus
of RMB811,351,000 in aggregate at 31 December 2016,
which may be distributed provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, sales to
the Group’s five largest customers accounted for 87.7% of
the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to 32.1%.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for 31.0% of the total purchases for the year and purchase
from the Group’s largest supplier included therein amounted to
8.6% of the total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.
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EEEHE

DIRECTORS 5%

The Chairman and the Directors during the year and up to the FRANBEAREBR TELEEAE:
date of this report were:

° Executive Directors: ° HITES:
Mr. ZHENG Jingdong (Chairman and Chief Executive BSRAEE (ERERITEBE)
Officer)
Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung (Vice-chairman) RFHREE(BIERF)
. Non-Executive Directors: . FHITES:
Ms. LIN Weihuan (Appointed on 7 January 2016) MEBEBLTMR_ZE—RF
Mr. CHAN Chak Chak Daniel (Resigned on —A+HEZT)
12 December 2016) BREREE (RZE—RF
+=-A+=-HET)
Mr. SZE Ching Bor (Resigned on 7 January 2016) PEREE(RZE—REF
— At BE1T)
° Independent Non-Executive Directors: ° BIYFEHTEE:
Ms. AN Na i+
Professor ZHAO Jinbao e REUIX
Mr. CHEN Shaohua fRAEE L

Pursuant to Articles 84(1) and (2), at each AGM one-third RIEMAESAN LG NEERERE
of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not K& k=9 — 2 HEEES (KO EZEAK
a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less WIE=QR)2 B8 BINEERA=>—1B"1
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided VPR =ZH— 288 %) BRET ME
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at the AGM REFERIEB=FRE-—RXR-REES
at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be BEBREEET - RIEMANEIL)KRQ)
eligible for re-election. In accordance with Articles 84(1) and G RLELERBESRIIRERIRER
(2), Mr. Chen Shaohua and Professor Zhao Jinbao shall retire FAEG FHABRT -RIELERBESR
from office by rotation at the AGM. Being eligible, Mr. Chen AT EERRIRERAFKE F8IR A
Shaohua and Professor Zhao Jinbao will offer themselves for NIEHITESE

re-election as independent non-executive Directors at the

AGM.

The Company has received from each of its independent  AAFDWB R LB EHTEERE

non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her PRSI ISR B BN EER
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, R ANTRBREBIENITEEY A

and the Company considers the independent non-executive BT At o
Directors to be independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
44 to 46 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
our Company for an initial term of 3 years (other than Mr.
Chan Chak Chak Daniel, for an initial term of 2 years), which
will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three-
month notice in writing served by either party on the other.
The details of the remuneration of each of the Directors are
revealed on note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors had entered, or was proposing to
enter, into any service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years as required by the Articles of Association.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles, and subject to the applicable laws and
regulations, the Directors and officers of the Group shall be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
from or against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain
in or about the execution of their duty in their offices. Such
permitted indemnity provision has been in force throughout
the year ended 31 December 2016. The Company has
arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Saved for transactions as disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements, none of the Directors was
materially interested, directly or indirectly, in any contract or
arrangement during the year which is significant in relation to
the business of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or in existence during the year.
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EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERTETHAERRS - HEE
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN BROREESTWEZRAE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions RZIE—RFE+_A=1+—H EFEZIKXK
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the — AAEZEITHABRARF REBEEE
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company (TEZEREHFLHBEEG ([FHEBEK
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV 1) EBXVE0) KB 15 - FHEE R h R E#EE
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), which R ()VREES M EIEOIEXVIEET X
were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock ~ Z87 ZPAME AR &) K5 32 FT A 2 Sk
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO & (B#ERIEEH & B E & 65 B K0
(including interests and short positions in which they were — E{ERABEANEREKAE) @ (NRIEE
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); 5 N HAE & B 553526 8 58 A G IS BT it /i
(i) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the AR AIFENELMAER AR ki)
register maintained by the Company referred to therein; or  R¥& £ 43 Al M #10F7 & AV IR £ 57 B A9 38
(iii) pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to  TEME AN 7 MR TR MOA B 10
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock ™

Exchange were as follows:

Interests in the Shares and underlying Shares: RROREBROPESS:

Number of Percentage of
Shares/underlying  the Company'’s

Shares (other than issued share
Name of Directors Capacity and nature of interest share options) held capital®
g4, HER
7 (BRELN) (EERTE BT
EEps SO RERME #E RAH DD
Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung Beneficial owner 6,000,000(L) 0.55%
RFHREE BB A
Ms. LIN Weihuan (“Ms. Lin") Interest in controlled corporation 233,155,792(L) 21.51%
(Note 2)
MEERZ £ ([#t]) s EE R
(M$5E2)
Long positions in share options of the Company: REQXBBRETNITE:
Percentage of
the Company’s
Number of share issued share
Name of Directors Capacity and nature of interest options held® capital®
HEATBBHITR
EEp B RERMEE FEBREHRR® B
Mr. ZHENG Jingdong Beneficial owner 10,000,000(L) 0.92%
BRRELE BEmnEAA
Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung Beneficial owner 4,000,000(L) 0.37%
RFHRFEE BEnEAA
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Notes:

The percentage has been calculated based on the total number
of Shares in issue as at 31 December 2016 (i.e. 1,084,059,608
shares).

Ms. Lin is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Total
Shine is interested. Total Shine is wholly owned and controlled
by Ms. Lin and obtained an option granted by Best Mark
entitling it to acquire 233,155,792 Shares. Total Shine gave
option notice to Best Mark on 12 October 2016 to exercise
option to acquire 233,155,792 Shares (the “Option Shares”).
According to the memorandum of understanding signed
between Best Mark and Total Shine on 12 October 2016 (“Best
Mark 2016 MOU"), both Best Mark and Total Shine agreed
that the completion date for the transfer of Option Shares
would be postponed to 45 working days after discharge of the
charge in favour of Haitong International Finance Company
Limited (the “Charge”) or 3 months after signing of Best Mark
2016 MOU, whichever is earlier, or such other time or date as
Best Mark and Total Shine may agree. According to the new
memorandum of understanding signed between Best Mark
and Total Shine on 30 June 2017 (“Best Mark 2017 MOU"),
Best Mark and Total Shine agreed that the completion date for
the transfer of the Option Shares would be further postponed
to 3 months after discharge of the Charge on 29 June 2017
or such other time or date as Best Mark and Total Shine may
agree. Best Mark is wholly owned and controlled by Mr. Sze
Ching Bor (“Mr. Sze").

These represent the number of shares which will be allotted
and issued to the respective Directors upon the exercise of the
share options granted to each of them under the Share Option
Scheme. Accordingly, each of them was regarded as interested
in the underlying Shares.

The letter “L" denotes a long position in the Shares or
underlying Shares.
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EEEHE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 8 January
2011. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses the outstanding share options
under the Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2016:

Report of the Directors
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Bt El
ARER-T——F— BN\ ERABRE
sl BAER B E RN S MR
R FE29 ©

TREBER-F—AR"F+-_A=+—HE
PRt 8T8 T A i AR 1T 158 P RO

Number of share options
EREYA
Outstanding
Outstanding ~ Granted  Exercised ~ Cancelled  Forfeited asat3l Exercise price
asat1 duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe  December  Exercise per share
Date of grant " January 2016 year year year year 2016 period ? (HKS)
H=%-A% H=8-rE
-A-8 R SRir&E
Name or Category of participants ~ $EANEZZER Riag HATE EARE  EAGR  EAEE ERRN BAGR  AREY (BT
Executive Directors yrEs
ZHENG Jingdong g8% 30812011 2,750,000 - - - [2,750,000) - A 118
101212015 1,500,000 - - - - 1,500,000 B 081
101212015 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 ( 081
101212015 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000 D 081
101212015 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 t 081
101212015 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 f 081
LEUNG Tsz Chung 24) 101122015 6,000,000 - (6,000,000) - - - B 081
101202015 4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000 ( 081
Non-executive Director FinEs
CHAN Chak Chak Danel RER 101212015 150,000 - - - (150,000) - B 081
(resigned on 12 December 2016) (M-B-nE
+-A-REf)
101212015 200,000 - - - (200,000) - ( 081
101212015 250,000 - - - (250,000) - D 081
101212015 200,000 - - - (200,000) - t 081
101212015 200,000 - - - (200,000) - F 081
Sub-tota gt 23,750,000 - (6,000,000) - 3,750,000 14,000,000
Employees and consultants of FREEERERSS
the Group in aggregate
30872011 1,500,000 - - - {1,500,000) - A 118
1011212015 21,000,000 - (10,480,000) - (180000 10,502,000 B 081
101212015 15,200,000 - - - (40000 15,176,000 ( 081
101212015 3,000,000 - - - (300000 2,970,000 D 081
1011212015 2,400,000 - - - (40000 2,376,000 t 081
101212015 2,400,000 - - - (40000 2,376,000 f 081
24/6/2016 - 52,245,000 - - - 52,245,000 0 0.67
24/6/2016 - 36,060,000 - - - 36,000,000 H 0.67
24/6/2016 - 3,075,000 - - - 3,075,000 | 0.67
24/6/2016 - 2460000 - - - 2,460,000 | 0.67
24/6/2016 - 2460000 - - - 2,460,000 K 0.67
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Number of share options
EREgA

Outstanding
Outstanding ~ Granted  Exercised  Cancelled ~ Forfeited asat 31 Exercise price
asat1 duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe  December  Exercise per share
Date of grant ' January 2016 year year year year 2016 period ? (HKS)

H-8-nE H-8-nE
-A-8 tZRZ1-8 Shi%R
Name or Category of particpants ~ $EANKEZHEH REAg WAGE ERRE  ERGE  EREE  ERRN  BAGE  AEEC (B0
16/1212016 - 1425000 - - - 1,425,000 L 0.99
16/1212016 - 1,900,000 - - - 1,900,000 M 0.99
16/1212016 - 2375000 - - - 2,375,000 N 0.99
16/1212016 - 1,900,000 - - - 1,900,000 0 0.99
16/1212016 - 1,900,000 - - - 1,900,000 P 0.99

Sub-total Ihg 45,500,000 105,800,000 (10,480,000) - (1,620,000) 139,200,000

Total 2 69,250,000 105,800,000 (16,480,000} - (5,370,000) 153,200,000

Notes: i 5t -

1. The closing prices of the Shares immediately before the date 1. [i& 3 E’\\E%Tz@c?ﬁ A Hﬁfgffi)\ﬂ

of grant on 30 August 2011,10 December 2015, 24 June 2016
and 16 December 2016 were HK$1.17, HK$0.79, HK$0.69
and HK$0.99 respectively.

2. The respective exercise periods of the share options granted

are as follows:

A: From 30 August 2012 to 29 August 2016,

B: From 10 December 2015 to 9 December 2020;

C: From 10 December 2016 to 9 December 2020;

D: From 10 December 2017 to 9 December 2020;

E: From 10 December 2018 to 9 December 2020;

F: From 10 December 2019 to 9 December 2020;

G: From 24 June 2016 to 23 June 2027,
H: From 24 June 2017 to 23 June 2021;

From 24 June 2018 to 23 June 2021;

J: From 24 June 2019 to 23 June 2021;

K: From 24 June 2020 to 23 June 2021;

L: From 16 December 2016 to 15 December 2021;
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M: From 16 December 2017 to 15 December 2021,

N: From 16 December 2018 to 15 December 2021;

O: From 16 December 2019 to 15 December 2021; and

P: From 16 December 2020 to 15 December 2021;

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
grant until the commencement of the exercised period.

3. Exercise conditions:

(i) Provided always that a grantee of share options shall
remain as a Director, an employee or a consultant of
the Company or its subsidiaries, at the time of exercise
of his or her share options; and

(i) Performance target for share options with exercise
period A: the Company’s Profit (as defined below)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 is higher than
RMB150,000,000.

“Profit” is defined as the Company’s consolidated net profit
attributable to owners of the Company as shown in the
audited accountant’s report for the corresponding fiscal year,
excluding the impact of (i) after-tax employee expenses arising
from the grant of the share options and (i) non-operating
gains and losses.

4. The number and/or exercise price of the share options may be
subject to adjustments in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other changes in the Company’s share capital.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section of “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures” and “Share Option Scheme” above,
at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Report of the Directors

EEEHE

M: —ZE—+tF+-_A+HE-Z
——®+=-A+HA:

N: —“ZE—\F+-_A+BE-ZT
——F+=A+HEAB:

0: ZE-NFE+ZA+AREZ=T

——F+ZA+tHERA X

P: ZEZFF+ZA+AREZ=F
——Ff+=ZRA+HAB-
ZERBENEBHAER L AHER

ETEHMASBLE-

3. T 161

(i) BB AR A AT LR AR A I
MAERARNTRILAMBATNE
E - REESKER: R

(i)  ATTEEIBEENERER: AQ
AHE—Z——F+-_A=+—
BEFEMEMN(EERTX)
B @ A R ¥150,000,0007T °

D& A | RE BB RFEERR G
B ¥R & PR AR B A ARG AR R 4R
BFNE - NEREOREE L BRES 2
BREEEERZ RINFEE BN

40

=
=

4. EIRMROBE R ST E RS
SABBTRARFRA LR S D
B T AR -

EERERNIEEZHZH

FREXTEEREZITHRABRERMD
HERDREREETFOES AR ] R
(B FMABmEEIN RER
FARE TERTEANEFXRFTS
BHEBIAKNFEFLEBBBELARA
By kEREEMESNGE &M KEF
R EITEEMAREEN: BEARF
HER AR SZEEMNEBRFRRAR
MEBARBE LCEEAERFEM
Hi A ANBEEEREENZ sk

HighFE —T—AFER

57



58

Report of the Directors

EEEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, so far as was known to the Directors
and chief executives of the Company, the following persons
or corporations (other than the Directors or chief executives
of the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have
interests and short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company were as

follows:

Interests and short positions in the Shares and

underlying Shares:

Capacity and nature of

FERRREMALTRES RE
EROTNEZERXR

RZE-—RE+-A=+t—H BEEK
ARBEBITHRABMM AT ALTIOR
(BEZRARREBITHABRIN R
MR DT EE IR SR EFER
RIEE 7 R E RGP EXVERE2 30 7B
EXARAR AR R ELRRIEEF K
HERGIF3B6HRATHFENELMAA
RITHEARRZEEFIRBIT -

REROREEROTHEZR KRR

Percentage of the
Number of Shares/ Company’s issued

Name interests underlying Shares share capital™
HARDATEEHITRA
7B BORRERME B, FHEE R DB E a4
Mr. Sze @ Interest in controlled 519,035,767 (L) 47 .88%
corporation 233,155,792 (S) 21.51%
SHEHEO FryE &l A B =
Ms. Tsang Shuk Ping @ Spousal Interest 519,035,767 (L) 47.88%
LRSE L @ Aic (5 4 2 233,155,792 (S) 21.51%
Best Mark @ Beneficial owner/Other 473,876,157 (L) 43.71%
BExEAEA S HM 233,155,792 (S) 21.51%
Haitong International Finance Security interest 523,035,767 (L) 48.25%
Company Limited @
BBEERYEERAR BEREDR
Haitong International (BVI) Interest in controlled 523,035,767 (L) 48.25%
Limited ©® corporation
Friz &= B R R
Haitong International Securities Interest in controlled 523,035,767 (L) 48.25%
Group Limited © corporation
BRERELSEEBRAFO FriE sl A B i =
Haitong International Holdings Interest in controlled 523,035,767 (L) 48.25%

Limited @

SERERERERAT O
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Capacity and nature of
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Percentage of the
Company’s issued

Name interests underlying Shares share capital™
EARD T BITRA
= SO RERMEE B, HEEA R 10 & B Bk
Haitong Securities Co., Ltd ® Interest in controlled 523,035,767 (L) 48.25%
corporation
BRBELFRNHDAERAR® FryE sl =B R e
Total Shine @ Beneficial owner 233,155,792 (L) 21.51%
EnlE A
Bluestone (19 Beneficial owner 220,000,000 (L) 20.29%
EER[00 oA A
Mr. Zhuang Chaohui 19 Interest in controlled 220,000,000 (L) 20.29%

FEEARE SE 00

Notes:

(M

corporation

PAT4%E 1 K (B ) #E 25

4

Mr. Sze is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Best Mark and Capital Vision International Limited ("Capital
Vision" ). Best Mark and Capital Vision are wholly owned
and controlled by Mr. Sze and are interested in 473,876,157
Shares and 45,159,610 Shares respectively, representing
approximately 43.71% and 4.17%, respectively of the issued
Shares. Best Mark has granted an option to Total Shine, a
company wholly owned and controlled by Ms. Lin, to acquire
233,155,792 Shares in aggregate, representing 21.51% of the
issued Shares.

Ms. Tsang Shuk Ping, the spouse of Mr. Sze, is deemed to be
interested in Mr. Sze's interests in the Company.

Best Mark is wholly owned and controlled by Mr. Sze.

Among the security interest in 523,035,767 Shares held by
Haitong International Finance Company Limited, the security
interest in 519,035,767 Shares is related to the pledge of an
aggregate of 519,035,767 Shares by Best Mark and Capital
Vision to Haitong International Finance Company Limited and
the pledge was discharged on 29 June 2017.

Haitong International (BVI) Limited wholly owns Haitong
International Finance Company Limited and is deemed to be
interested in the Shares in which Haitong International Finance
Company Limited is interested.

it -

(1

% 348 B K Best Mark & Capital
Vision International Limited ([ Capital
Vision | ) AT #5 B {0 1 #E B # &5 © Best
Mark & Capital Visionfi 2 Sc = 2B A
K126l o B 3473,876,157 0% B 15 &
45,159,6 108 i 7 i BB #E 5 - 9 Bl 48
ERBEITRMDNA3.71%RA17% °
Best Mark2 ¥ T Total Shine' k&£
EEBMBRES 2 AT —DEERE A
Ughg & $£233,155, 792 % 15 - IHERE
BITARDEI21.51% ©

SEREZEENFLLHRBESLE
GRS RIN/NCI -

Best MarkeR 2 sc E 2 B A STl

105 BB R B 75 B R A R1FA 523,035,767
I& A% 1D 15 B B E Rz - 519,035,767
% A% 19 B 42 (R # 25 0% M Best Mark &
Capital Vision## T /8 BEIR BB R
A T4 519,035, 76 7R AL 1 - IR —
E—+FE AT LH@EK-

Haitong International (BVI) Limited& &
BESABRMBERAR HE/R
BREEMEERDRMMEROPES
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(10)

(12)

Haitong International Securities Group Limited wholly owns
Haitong International (BVI) Limited and is deemed to be
interested in the Shares in which Haitong International (BVI)
Limited is interested.

Haitong International Holdings Limited owns 66.38% of
Haitong International Securities Group Limited and is deemed
to be interested in the Shares in which Haitong International
Securities Group Limited is interested.

Haitong Securities Co., Ltd wholly owns Haitong International
Holdings Limited and is deemed to be interested in the Shares
in which Haitong International Holdings Limited is interested.

Total Shine is wholly owned and controlled by Ms. Lin and
obtained an option granted by Best Mark entitling it to acquire
233,155,792 Shares. Total Shine gave option notice to Best
Mark on 12 October 2016 to exercise option to acquire the
Option Shares. According to the Best Mark 2016 MOU, both
Best Mark and Total Shine agreed that the completion date
for the transfer of Option Shares would be postponed to 45
working days after discharge of the Charge or 3 months after
signing of Best Mark 2016 MOU, whichever is earlier, or such
other time or date as Best Mark and Total Shine may agree.
According to the Best Mark 2017 MOU, Best Mark and Total
Shine agreed that the completion date for the transfer of the
Option Shares would be further postponed to 3 months after
discharge of the Charge on 29 June 2017 or such other time
or date as Best Mark and Total Shine may agree.

Bluestone is interested in 220,000,000 underlying Shares
under the convertible notes which was issued to it pursuant
to the terms of the acquisition agreement as detailed in the
circular dated 25 November 2015. Mr. Zhuang Chaohui,
who wholly owns and controls Bluestone, is deemed to be
interested in the underlying Shares in which Bluestone is
interested.

The percentage has been calculated based on the total number
of Shares in issue as at 31 December 2016 (i.e. 1,084,059,608
shares).

The letters “L” and “S” denote the person’s long and short
position respectively in the Shares or underlying Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company was
aware of any other person (other than the Directors or the
chief executives of the Company) or corporation which had,
or was deemed or taken to have, an interest or short position
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and be recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company.

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2016

(6) BEEERESEEERARTEREA
Haitong International (BVI) Limited’ #%4%
A Haitong International (BVI) Limited
FIFsR PR o

)  ERERERARATEGSBERSE
548 4 1R 24 71 066,38 % i 26 + 155
WERERE S EEERA ARG
h A 3 o

@ BEREFRNHBERARZEAKASBER
BRERARAR RESRSBERE
BERARFAFRODEEER -

(9) Total ShinefAMZ 2 & H MIEH -
B HV {5 Best Mark#% #E 0 HE AR 4 - AU HE
233,155,792 g {7 © Total Shineid ==&
—7NF+ A+ = BMBest MarkZ H 85 %
B LATTEREAR R B IR AR 1 -
R Best Mark = — N F i 5w ik
Best MarkE2Total Shinelf i @ EiE K
R B TR B B IEE = R R E IR &
AS{ETEH % EBest Mark = Z — X4
MEETHERIEA (ABREHEE)
o Best Markf2Total Shine®] 8217 & HY &
B B 3k B RS © iR #5 Best Mark —Z —+
FIRR B 8% Best MarkETotal Shine
W - EEERER DRSS B B E —
SHEE T —+F A+ HLBRER
B 3R 1%31E A = Best MarkfiTotal Shine
Al BE 7 E B9 E ftb B HR SR A -

(10) ELARRBEWREHGE 2GR (FHER
RBBHA-_ZT—AE+—HA_-+HHE
ZEREEMEBTHNABRREERT
220,000,0004% 8 BA A& {0 7 B #E 2= o §F
HEEERERBREFER WRA
RERFFBEBEROPEA#EZ -

\

(1) ZE2LIDBER_Z—X4F
B=+—HE®TKRMHEH
1,084,059,608f% ) 5t & -

(12)  FEILI RISIAHIRERZALTARER
AR MR RORE -

BREXFEEEIN R-_T—RF+_H
=t+—B EBFERARAETBTRAEH
TRABEMEMAL (EEFHARAETE
TTBRABRIN) SOEBH G R BAR B EE
BARBEESRRRGROIEXVEF2RES
7 BRI A R AN A A B Ko iR 8 R 1B E
H REIEGDIE336IKATIFENZ LM
HBINBHARB I HEBERDNE
BEHERIORE

[

-

+
(

NN
R+
Sm

1

[




CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No connected transaction was entered into or in existence
during the year. The related party transactions disclosed in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements do not
fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the remuneration committee periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee and are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

The Company adopted a share option scheme to motivate
and reward its Directors and eligible employees. Details
of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited retire and a resolution for their
re-appointment as the Company’s auditor is to be proposed at
the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

ZHENG Jingdong
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 July 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % BR )RS

To the members of Baofeng Modern International
Holdings Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Disclaimer of opinion

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of Baofeng Modern International Holdings
Company Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries
(together the "Group") set out on pages 68 to 176, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of
the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion
paragraphs, we are unable to form an opinion as to whether
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016
and of the Group's financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the "IASB"). In all other respects,
in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Basis for disclaimer of opinion

Limitation of scope — Recognition of certain of
the Group’s intangible assets in accordance with
International Accounting Standard 38 (IAS 38),
“Intangible Assets” issued by the IASB

As disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had incurred certain amount of costs
of RMB92,378,000 during the year ended 31 December 2016
and capitalized these costs as intangible assets (labelled as
“deferred development costs” in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements) (the “Deferred Development Costs”).
The management of the Company represented to us that the
Deferred Development Costs were incurred in relation to the
research and development of manufacturing and application
technology of graphene material on sterilizing chips, energy
storage materials for batteries and pressure sensitive lighting
devices for shoes and that the payments made in respect of
these costs were made during the year ended 31 December
2016 to parties not considered as related parties in accordance
with IAS 24 Related Parties Disclosures.

During the course of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016, we were not provided with sufficient appropriate
documentary evidence to satisfy ourselves about the bona
fide nature of the costs incurred and details of the related
development projects for which the costs were incurred.
We were not provided with satisfactory explanations about
the commercial substance of why such development costs
were necessary to be incurred and the nature of the related
development projects. Furthermore, IAS 38 requires a number
of criteria to be satisfied before an entity can recognise
development costs as an intangible asset (e.g. technical
feasibility of completing the related project and how the costs
incurred will generate probable future economic benefits
etc.). Due to the lack of supporting documentary evidence,
we were not provided with sufficient appropriate evidence
regarding how the specified criteria set out in IAS 38 to justify
the recognition of the Deferred Development Costs as an
intangible asset had been satisfied and hence were not able
to justify whether the Deferred Development Costs should be
recognised as an intangible asset in accordance with IAS 38.
There were no alternative audit procedures to satisfy ourselves
concerning these matters.

Any adjustments that might have been found necessary in
respect thereof would have a consequential effect on the net
assets of the Group as at 31 December 2016, the results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the related
disclosures thereof in the consolidated financial statements.

B % AR E

TRERBENER

BERY - ZBRERE T ENEEER
fib 1Y B R 2 71 2E R 26385 (B RR & a1 2
RIE38%) [BEEEE R BXBEE
TEEEE
WEREMBHREMT7ARE - E5ER
HE_ZT—A"F+-A=+—BLFEE
HE TR ARK92,378,0007T * I # %
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Basis for disclaimer of opinion (continued)

Limitation of scope — Impairment assessment of
the Group's intangible assets under International
Accounting Standard 36 (IAS 36), “Impairment of
assets” issued by the IASB

During the year ended 31 December 2016, an impairment loss
of approximately RMB325,616,000 in respect of Technology
Know-how intangible assets was recognised by the Group.
The recoverable amounts of the Technology Know-how and
020 distribution vending system intangible assets were
determined based on the management’s estimate of the value-
in-use of the cash generating unit in which the Technology
Know-how and 020 distribution vending system intangible
assets belonged, taking into account a valuation using a
discounted cash flow approach. The recoverable amount of
the Deferred Development Costs was determined based on
the management’s own estimate of the value-in-use of the
Deferred Development Costs, as described in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements. After the impairment loss
recognised by the Group, the aggregate carrying amount
of the Group’s intangible assets (labelled as “Technology
Know-how"”, “020 distribution vending system” and
“Deferred Development Costs”) as at 31 December 2016
amounted to RMB1,302,378,000 with the impairment loss of
RMB325,616,000 being fully allocated by the management of
the Company to the Technology Know-how.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, as represented by
the management of the Company, the business models on
how to realise the Technology Know-how intangible assets
had been changed from manufacturing and supplying of EVA
foam materials to shoes, slippers and luggage manufacturers,
to manufacturing and sales of plastic slippers through 020
distribution vending machines. We have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves
that the key assumptions (e.g. bases regarding the related
forecasted revenue including the estimated sales prices and
estimated sales quantity) adopted in the valuation of the
cash generating unit referred to above were reasonable and
supportable. The forecasted revenue was based on limited
market data and in our view the other key assumptions used
in the valuation did not adequately take into account the
challenges in the operating environment that the Group will be
facing in the future. Also, details on feasibility aspects of the
marketing plans of the intangible assets provided to us were
very limited.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Basis for disclaimer of opinion (continued)

Limitation of scope — Impairment assessment of
the Group's intangible assets under International
Accounting Standard 36 (IAS 36), “Impairment of
assets” issued by the IASB (continued)

Any deficit of recoverable amount compared to carrying
amount would represent an impairment loss in accordance
with IAS 36. However, in the absence of sufficient appropriate
evidence regarding whether the key assumptions adopted
were reasonable and supportable, we were unable to satisfy
ourselves as to the appropriateness and sufficiency of the
amount of impairment loss made in the consolidated financial
statements as well as the allocation of the impairment losses
to different classes of intangible assets. Any adjustments that
might have been found necessary in respect thereof would
have a consequential effect on the net assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2016, the results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and the related disclosures thereof
in the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, as the intangible assets as stated above were held
by various subsidiaries of the Company, any adjustment on the
carrying amounts of these assets found to be necessary would
also affect the carrying amounts of the Company’s interests
in subsidiaries, which amounted to RMB893,338,000 as at 31
December 2016 as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements and the amount of the Company’s loss for
the year then ended as disclosed in the Company’s statement
of changes in equity disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Material uncertainty in relation to going concern

We draw attention to note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements which indicates that the Group incurred a net
loss of approximately RMB317,578,000 for the year ended
31 December 2016 and, as of that date, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB107,196,000. As explained in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements, these conditions indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is
not disclaimed on this matter.
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Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for
the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and to issue
an auditor's report. We report solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Because we have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence as described in the basis for
disclaimer of opinion section of our report, it is not possible
for us to form an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants ("the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

PAN-CHINA (H.K.) CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Kin Wai

Practising Certificate Number P05342

11/F., Hong Kong Trade Centre,
161-167 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong

28 July 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REREREMEZE RS X

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—EB-KR¥ —T-hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
K et ARET T AREFTT

REVENUE Uk & 6 215,831 171,655
Cost of sales SHER A (140,529) (128,746)
GROSS PROFIT EF 75,302 42,909
Other net income and gains H ALK A R W 25 558 6 3,506 13,091
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO HEFAX (8,591) (11,968)
General and administrative expenses —RRRITHFRS (51,916) (36,078)
Amortisation of intangible assets B & EEE 17 (105,401) (6,501)
Impairment loss on intangible assets mEEREEE 17 (325,616) -
Finance costs A& AN 7 (7,933) (7,848)
Fair value loss on convertible notes and  ZAFEE AEZ 2T

warrants at fair value through profit R R LRI E

or loss ZRNFEBL 25 (31,173) (13,451)
Fair value gain on provision for BAFEFABR 2K

contingent consideration at fair value ARERE2LFE

through profit or loss &S 26 141,915 -
LOSS BEFORE TAX MRBLATE A 8 (309,907) (19,846)
Income tax expense FriS i > 11 (7,671) (5,823)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AND TOTAL KAREBEABEER

COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES FOR EBEERFEFAZEMX

THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO e

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 12 (317,578) (25,669)
LOSS PER SHARE EREE 14
— Basic (RMB) —ER(AEE) (0.29) (0.02)
- Diluted (RMB) —#E(ARE) (0.29) (0.02)
Details of the dividends are disclosed in note 13 to the  BREFBERBENGEMEHRERMTI3

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRIk R &R

As at 31 December 2016 R-ZFE— X NF+_-_H=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—h%F
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
e AR¥T T AREBTIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ R NEE 15 82,010 87,341
Prepaid land lease payments BN E 16 32,640 33,485
Intangible assets B EE 17 1,302,378 1,476,616
1,417,028 1,597,442
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories 7E 18 24,922 31,366
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BR IR 19 76,132 39,034
Prepayments, deposits and other AN RE REMERKIE
receivables 20 7,437 7,451
Pledged deposits BERER 21 4,283 2,723
Cash and bank balances B RIRTTHER 21 4,789 789,836
117,563 870,410
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEeE
Trade and bills payables EHESERRENER 22 53,889 38,679
Deposits received, other payables B S - H R I8 KBS
and accruals ZH 23 33,518 630,259
Interest-bearing bank borrowings TRRITIEE 24 124,000 129,570
Warrants R 25 5,067 21,590
Income tax payable FERTFT1S IR IR 8,285 1,640
224,759 821,738
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS #EI(EE) EEFE (107,196) 48,672
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERADER
LIABILITIES 1,309,832 1,646,114

miny —2-xe58 O



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRIk R &

As at 31 December 2016 R—-ZE— X NF+_-_A=4+—H

2016 2015
—B-AF i
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
HiaE ARET T AREBTIT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Convertible notes AR R 25 194,824 91,717
Provision for contingent consideration sk AR E B 26 268,565 422,285
Deferred tax liability EERIESE 27 3,071 3,071
466,460 517,073
NET ASSETS EEFRE 843,372 1,129,041

EQUITY e

Share capital (i 28 71,629 70,555
Reserves =] 30 771,743 1,058,486
TOTAL EQUITY ESEEE 843,372 1,129,041

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 176  F63E176EMGEAMBHEALEETERN

were approved and authorised for issue by the board of —Z—+F+ A=+ N\BH#EREZT
directors on 28 July 2017 and signed on its behalf by: ZEWHATATRKREE :
ZHENG Jingdong LEUNG Tsz Chung
BRX RFH
Director Director
BF EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ReEkEagB X

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

Statutory  Exchange  Capital  Share
Share Share Contributed  surplus fluctuation redemption  options  Retained Total Total
capital ~ premium  surplus fund  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  reseves  equity
tEEn EXRD AxEE  BRE
Bx  RHER REEE e i i B REEN RREE RaLE
Notes RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000
kit \R%Tr ARMTn ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARMTR

(note 26) (ote30)  (note30)  (note30)
(Hitss) (ki) (Wd%) (W)

At 1 January 2015 NE-1F-F-R 67,258 350935 141376 95478 155 54 2819 432638 1023985 1,091,243
lssue of shares upon conversion o~ RERTAREER

convertble notes Lty 391 50704 - - - - - -S04 5400
Loss and total comprehensive expense  EREERZ AR

for the year g - - - - - - - (5669 (5669 (25,609
Fquity-sttled share option NREESHERE

arangements e 09 - - - - - - 7809 1,657 9,466 9,466
Tianfer tostatutory suplus fund.~—— EEZAE BB NES - - - 860 - - = (860) = =
At 31 December 2015 and HN-%-1E

1 January 2016 tZAZ1-BR

ZE-AE-B-R 10555 401,639 141,376 96,338 155 54 10,688 407,766 1,058,486 1,129,041

lsue of shares upon exercise of share ~ F\/7 (B TRIER:

options iR 1074 14,686 - - - - (458) -0 1
Loss and total comprehensive expense  EMERRZAER

for the year g S 3 3 = = - - (317578) (317578)  (317,578)
Fquity-settled share option IS RE

arrangements ¢ 29 - - - - - - 20,112 - 2,112 2,112
Forfeiture of share options RERE W4 - - - - - - (14 14 - =
Transfer to statutory surplus fund SRR TR RS - - - (860) - - - 860 - -
At 31 December 2016 RZ8-n%

tZR=t-§ 769 416325 141376 95478 155 54 25,363 05 T 33N

migry —2-—xEEg /1



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—-FT—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING BRETEEBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BRIERIEE (309,907) (19,846)
Adjustments for: BB IEFE
Interest income FEHBA (1,072) (4,454)
Interest expenses FERXZ 7,933 7,848
Depreciation e 7,922 8,069
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TE 70 S B 8
payments 845 845
Amortisation of intangible assets I & EE 105,401 6,501
Loss on disposals of items of property, HEYE  BEMEBEEER
plant and equipment B8 6 1
Impairment loss on intangible assets B AERERIR 325,616 -
Impairment loss on other receivables H A R IB R E BT 18 165 -
Impairment loss on trade receivables JEW B 5 AR FURM B & 18 2,065 218
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of T & MUR, (B 17 SRR
inventories 2,003 (5,410)
Equity-settled share option expenses AR 4 B R BB AR i 2 20,712 9,466
Fair value loss on convertible notes and BAFEFTAEBLZ 2 IR
warrants at fair value through profit or R NRABREEZ N TE
loss PN 31,173 13,451
Fair value gain on provision for BAFEFT ABR 2 AR
contingent consideration at fair value BRE 2 AP ER
through profit or loss (141,915) =
Operating cash flow before changes in EEEREIAIKE
working capital REmE 50,947 16,689
Decrease in inventories FER> 4,441 5,011
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables FEUE SERFR (38 0), S/ (39,163) 2,281
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, FENZIE e R E A EI
deposits and other receivables B M), B (151) 6,583
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills FER B 5 RN K PN
payables #m, Ok ) 15,210 (9,618)
Increase/(decrease) in deposits received, Bz 5 - E4th A~ F0E K fE
other payables and accruals BE- Gk YIS ) 1,874 (27,710)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations s ()RS 33,158 (6,764)
Interest received EF A 1,072 4,454
PRC taxes paid BT IE (1,026) (2,032)
Net cash flows generated from/(used RETBRE(FTRARER
in) operating activities BEH 33,204 (4,342)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETIT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBHFRBEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEYE BWEMXEER
equipment (2,597) (1,959)
Purchases and addition of intangible assets BE ML EL & E (152,378) (362,197)
Payment of contingent consideration for U BB 1 & B FT S A R s A
acquisition of intangible assets KRB (659,410) -
Proceeds from disposals of items of HEWE  WEMKEEEE T
property, plant and equipment (EF Qe - 1,762
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits BEE®FROEE M), w (1,560) 2,973
Net cash flows used in investing REFTBHFIARSREFE
activities (815,945) (359,421)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METEBFBRSRE
ACTIVITIES
New shares issued upon exercise of share T B AR R IR 31T R AR
options 11,197 =
Proceeds from issuance of warrants BITRIRER TS A - 4,880
New bank loans FIGIRTTER - 170,778
Repayments of bank loans BERITER (5.570) (163,092)
Interest paid 2 FE (7,933) (7,848)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated MEITEB(AA) FEEREER
from financing activities EFHE (2,306) 4,718
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH REeRREEEWHDFHE
EQUIVALENTS (785,047) (359,045)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FURE MBS EEY
year 789,836 1,148,881
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FRESRREEEY
OF YEAR 4,789 789,836
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReRBREEB/WERDWN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances He MIRTT4E R 4,789 789,836
BN —T—REER
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Baofeng Modern International Holdings Company
Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office
address and principal place of business of the Company
as disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of
the annual report. The shares of the Company were listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 28 January 2011 (the
“Listing Date").

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) during the year.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
immediate holding company and the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Best Mark International
Limited (“Best Mark”), which was incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). Its ultimate controlling party
is Mr. Sze Ching Bor.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—-FT—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

The Group has applied new and revised IFRSs, which
include IFRS(s), International Accounting Standards
("IAS(s)") and Interpretations, issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") for the first time in
the current year:

Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying
IFRS 12 and IAS 28 the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle

The application of the new and revised IFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—-FT—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

IFRS 9

[FRS 15

IFRS 16

[FRIC* 22

Amendments to IAS 7

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

Amendments to IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 40

Amendments to IFRSs

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'
Leases?

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

Disclosure Initiative*

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Clarifications to IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers!

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses*

Transfers of Investment
Property!

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle®

* IFRIC represents the International Financial
Reporting Standards Interpretation Committee

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2016
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined.

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 has introduced new requirements for a)
classification and measurement of financial assets, b)
impairment of financial assets and c) general hedge
accounting.

Specifically, with regard to the classification and
measurement of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires all
recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
IFRS 9 to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of each of the subsequent
accounting periods. Debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair value at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Further, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss and that cumulative
fair value changes will not be reclassified to profit or loss
upon derecognition of the investment.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), IFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in
the fair value of a financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of such changes in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability's credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of
the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as FVTPL is presented in profit or loss.

With regard to impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9
has adopted an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model required under IAS 39.
In general, the expected credit loss model requires an
entity to assess the change in credit risk of the financial
asset since initial recognition at each reporting date and
to recognise the expected credit loss depending on the
degree of the change in credit risk.

With regard to the general hedge accounting
requirements, IFRS 9 retains the three types of hedge
accounting mechanisms currently available in IAS 39.
Under IFRS 9, greater flexibility has been introduced to
the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible for
hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test
has been overhauled and replaced with the principle of
an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.

The Group is still in the process of assessing the impact
of IFRS 9. The directors of the Company believe that it is
impractical to disclose the impact in these consolidated
financial statements until the Group has completed the
assessment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the clarifications to IFRS 15

IFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18
Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, IFRS 15 introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by IFRS 15.

The Group is still in the process of assessing the impact
of IFRS 15. The directors of the Company believe that it
is impractical to disclose the impact in these consolidated
financial statements until the Group has completed the
assessment.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 will supersede the current lease guidance
including IAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

With regard to lessee accounting, the distinction of
operating leases and finance leases, as required by
IAS 17, has been replaced by a model which requires
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability to
be recognised for all leases by lessees except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
Specifically, the right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any re-measurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at
the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments.

Furthermore, the classification of cash flows will also be
affected as operating lease payments under IAS 17 are
presented as operating cash flows; whereas, under the
IFRS 16 model, the lease payments will be split into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented
as financing and operating cash flows respectively.

With regard to lessor accounting, IFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease
either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, IFRS 16 requires extensive disclosures in the
financial statements.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of
IFRS 16. The directors of the Company believe that it is
impractical to disclose the impact in these consolidated
financial statements until the Group has completed the
assessment.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

The amendments clarify the following:

e In estimating the fair value of a cash-settled share-
based payment, the accounting for the effects of
vesting and non-vesting conditions should follow
the same approach as for equity-settled share-based
payments.

o Where tax law or regulation requires an entity to
withhold a specified number of equity instruments
equal to the monetary value of the employee’s tax
obligation to meet the employee’s tax liability which
is then remitted to the tax authority, i.e. the share-
based payment arrangement has a ‘net settlement
feature’, such an arrangement should be classified
as equity-settled in its entirety, provided that the
share-based payment would have been classified as
equity-settled had it not included the net settlement
feature.

o A modification of a share-based payment that
changes the transaction from cash-settled to
equity-settled should be accounted for as follows:
the original liability is derecognised. The equity-
settled share-based payment is recognised at
the modification date fair value of the equity
instrument granted to the extent that services have
been rendered up to the modification date. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the
liability at the modification date and the amount
recognised in equity should be recognised in profit
or loss immediately.

The Group does not have any cash-settled share-
based payment arrangements or any withholding tax
arrangements with tax authorities in relation to share-
based payments and hence the directors of the Company
do not anticipate that the application of the amendments
in the future will have a significant impact on the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

This Interpretation addresses how to determine the date
of the transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to be used on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration in a foreign currency. The Interpretation
concludes that the date of the transaction for the
abovementioned purpose is the date on which an entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of
advance consideration.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the Interpretation will have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with
situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses
resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does
not contain a business in a transaction with an associate
or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity
method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and
losses resulting from the re-measurement of investments
retained in any former subsidiary (that has become an
associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using
the equity method) to fair value are recognised in the
former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or joint
venture.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the Interpretation will have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require an entity to make disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.
The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments will have a material
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments provide a number of guidance to help
entities assess and estimate whether sufficient taxable
profits will be available against which it can utilise a
deductible temporary difference. The directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment
Property

The amendments clarify that an entity should transfer a
property to, or from, investment property when, and only
when, there is a change in use. The amendments state
that a change in use occurs when the property meets, or
ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and
there is evidence of the change in use. The amendments
emphasizes that a change in management’s intentions
for the use of a property, in isolation, does not provide
evidence of a change in use. Further, the amendments
clarify that the list of circumstances set out in paragraph
57 of IAS 40 are examples only.

The amendments require an entity to apply the
amendments to changes in use that occur on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the amendments (i.e. the date of initial
application). At the date of initial application, an entity
should reassess the classification of property held at that
date and, if applicable, reclassify property to reflect the
conditions that exist at that date.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments will have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
convertible notes, warrants and provision for contingent
consideration which are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policy set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of IAS 17, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS
36.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 # £ —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement
date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Going concern

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB107,196,000. The Group incurred a loss for the
year of RMB317,578,000. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern and therefore, the Group may not be
able to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group will
be able to finance its future working capital and finance
requirements. Certain measures have been taken to
manage its liquidity needs and to improve its financial
position which include, but are not limited to, the
following:
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—-FT—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESFHHBERM#)
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued) BB (E)
Going concern (continued) BFELE(E)

1. The Group obtains facilities from financial
institutions to extend existing borrowings upon their
maturities. The Group will actively negotiate with
the banks in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
for the renewal of the Group’s PRC bank borrowings
when they fall due to secure necessary facilities
to meet the Group’s working capital and financial
requirements in the near future. The directors of
the Company have evaluated all the relevant facts
available to them and are of the opinion that the
Group has a good track record or relationship with
the banks which will enhance the Group’s ability
to renew the Group’s PRC bank borrowings upon
expiry;

2. The Group will implement operation plans to control
costs and generate adequate cash flows from the
Group’s operations; and

3. As detailed in note 38, the Group obtained a
new facility of RMB40,000,000 from a financial
institution.

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's
cash flow projections prepared by management. The
cash flow projections cover a period of not less than
twelve months from the end of the reporting period. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that, taking
into account the above-mentioned plans and measures,
the Group would have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due within the next twelve months
from the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 on a
going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as
a going concern, adjustments would have to be made
to write down the value of assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for further liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-
current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 # £ —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investee;

—  is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—-FT—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEX#E
(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued) BEANREXE(E)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions

ERAASBEKEZRRZNMERE
ARARWEENAE - WA

between members of the Group are eliminated in full on SRR ERERGEE ARRREE
consolidation. §H ©

Investments in subsidiaries R BATNERE

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement S I PNGIESES S =8 dp Y R R Gl

of financial position of the Company at cost less any
identified impairment loss. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company as the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-makers (“CODM"). The CODM, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the executive directors that make strategic
decisions.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes. Revenue from the sale of goods is
recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have
passed, at which time all the following conditions are
satisfied:

— the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

—  the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

—  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

- it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

—  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting
policy for leasing below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease.

Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease. To the extent the allocation of
the lease payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid land lease payments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)
Exchange differences on monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
fluctuation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

Retirement benefit cost

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are recognised as an
expense as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’'s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates
in Mainland China are required to participate in central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The subsidiary is required to contribute
a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to defined
contribution housing, medical and other benefit plans
organised by the PRC government. The PRC government
undertakes to assume the benefit obligations of all
existing and retired employees under these plans.
Contributions to these plans by the Group are expensed
as incurred. The Group has no further obligations for
benefits for their qualified employees under these plans.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax. The tax currently
payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 # £ —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, as the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-
occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development
for production or for administrative purposes, the
amortisation of prepaid land lease payments provided
during the construction period is included as part of
costs of buildings under construction. Buildings under
construction are carried at cost, less any identified
impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings commences
when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management).

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on a systematic
basis with reference to projected sales volume, upon
future sales volume of related products.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in
the period when the asset is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the consolidated
statement of financial position comprise cash at banks
and on hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of
three months or less. For the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are loans and receivables.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, pledged deposits and
cash and bank balances are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

—  breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

—  disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—-FT—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of three months, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or
loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into either
financial liabilities at FVTPL or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at FV/TPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liabilities are either held for trading or those
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term; or

— on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

— it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

—  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

—  the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note 36.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and bills
payables, deposit received, other payables and
accruals and interesting-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 # £ —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than those financial liabilities classified as at
FVTPL, of which the interest expense is included in net
gains or losses.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by
the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes entitle the note holder to convert the
note into equity instruments, other than into a fixed
number of equity instruments at a fixed conversion
price, are regarded as combined instruments consist of a
liability and a derivative component.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Convertible notes (continued)

On initial recognition, the convertible notes with the
derivative component as a whole are designated as
financial liabilities at FVTPL. The entire convertible notes
are initially recognised at fair value on the date of
issue and are subsequently measured at fair value until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. Changes
in the fair value of the entire convertible notes are
recognised in the profit or loss as they arise. Interest on
convertible notes designated as financial liabilities at
FVTPL is included in the fair value gain or loss for that
period. Upon conversion of the convertible notes, the fair
value of the convertible notes converted is reclassified to
equity.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of the convertible notes designated as financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the profit or loss.

Warrants

Warrants which meet the definition of a derivative are
initially recognised at fair value at initial recognition and
are subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in the
fair value of warrants are recognised in the profit or loss
as they arise.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in share options reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of share options that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment losses on assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating unit, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or the cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the amounts of assets, liabilities,
that are not readily apparent for other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the directors
of the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates
cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for use in the supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If
these portions could be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold
separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as an investment

property.

Certain properties of the Group comprise a portion that
is held to earn rentals and another portion that is held
for use in the supply of goods and for administrative
purposes. As the portion that is held to earn rentals
is small and could not be sold separately and the
portion that is held for use in supply of goods and for
administrative purposes is significant, the properties are
not classified as investment properties.

Withholding taxes arising from the distributions
of dividends

The Group's determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes from the distribution of dividends from
a subsidiary in the PRC according to the relevant tax
jurisdiction is subject to judgement on the timing of the
payment of the dividend, where the Group considered
that if it is probable that the profits of the subsidiary in
the PRC will not be distributed in the foreseeable future,
then no withholding taxes should be provided.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Building

Despite the Group has paid the full purchase
consideration as detailed in note 15, certain of the
Group's rights to use of the building and land were
not granted formal titles from the relevant government
authorities. The directors of the Company are of the
opinions that the risks and rewards of using these assets
have been transferred to the Group and the absence of
formal titles to these buildings and land use rights do not
impair the value of the relevant properties to the Group.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant
and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
Management will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different to the ones previously estimated,
it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant
and equipment (continued)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment at the end
of each reporting period. Property, plant and equipment
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs to sell is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment was approximately RMB82,010,000
(2015: RMB87,341,000).

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible asset is tested for impairment if there is
any indication that the carrying value of these assets
may not be recoverable and the assets are subject
to impairment loss. The recoverable amount is the
value-in-use. The value-in-use calculation requires
the directors of the Company to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the relevant cash
generating unit and a suitable discount rate is used
in order to calculate the present value. As at 31
December 2016, the carrying amount of the Group’s
intangible asset was approximately RMB1,302,378,000
(2015: RMB1,476,616,000), net of impairment loss of
approximately RMB325,616,000 (2015: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses. These estimates are based on the
current market conditions and the historical experience
of selling merchandise of a similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer
taste or competitor actions. The Group reassesses these
estimates at the end of the reporting period. As at 31
December 2016, the carrying amount of inventories was
approximately RMB24,922,000, net of allowance for
write-down inventories approximately RMB4,809,000
(2015: RMB31,366,000 with allowance for write-down of
RMB2,806,000).

Impairment allowances for trade and other
receivables

The Group estimates the impairment allowances for
trade and other receivables by assessing the recoverability
based on credit history and prevailing market conditions.
This requires the use of estimates and judgements.
Allowances are applied to trade and other receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will affect the carrying amounts of trade and
other receivables and thus the impairment loss in the
period in which such estimate is changed. The Group
reassesses the impairment allowances at the end of the
reporting period.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of trade
receivables was approximately RMB76,132,000 (2015:
RMB39,034,000), net of allowance for doubtful debt of
approximately RMB3,426,000 (2015: RMB1,361,000).

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
other receivables were approximately RMB4,038,000,
net of allowance for doubtful debt of approximately
RMB165,000 (2015: RMB2,130,000 with no allowance
for doubtful debt).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

As at 31 December 2016, no deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of such tax losses due to
unpredictability of future profits streams. Tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

Valuation of convertible notes and warrants

As described in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements, the convertible notes and warrants are
designated as financial liabilities at FVTPL The Group
engaged independent firms of professionally qualified
valuers to assist in determining the fair value of
convertible notes and warrants. The fair value of the
convertible notes and warrants are determined using the
binomial model. The significant inputs into the model
included risk-free interest rate, conversion price/exercise
price, stock price, expected volatility, expected life and
expected dividend yield. When the actual results of the
inputs differ from management’s estimate, it will have an
impact on the fair value gain or loss and the fair value of
the convertible notes and warrants.

Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled
transactions with employees by reference to the fair value
of the equity instruments at the date which they are
granted. Estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions requires determining the most appropriate
valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and
conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires
determining the most appropriate inputs to the valuation
model including the expected life of the share options,
volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions
about them. The assumptions and models used for
estimating the fair value for share-based payments are
disclosed in note 29.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy for research and development costs
in note 3. Determining the amounts to be capitalised
requires management to make assumptions regarding
the expected future cash generation of the assets,
discount rates to be applied and the expected period
of benefits. At 31 December 2016, the best estimate of
the carrying amount of deferred development costs was
RMB92,378,000 (2015: Nil). Further details are included
in note 17.

Provision for contingent considerations of
acquisitions

Acquisition of intangible assets has involved post-
acquisition performance-based contingent considerations.
The Group recognise the fair value of those contingent
considerations for acquisitions, as of their respective
acquisition dates as part of the consideration transferred
in exchange for the acquired intangible assets. These
fair value measurements require, among other things,
significant estimation of post-acquisition performance of
the acquired intangible assets and significant judgment
on time value of money. Contingent considerations shall
be remeasured at their fair value resulting from events
or factors emerging after the acquisition date, with any
resulting gain or loss recognised in the consolidated profit
and loss account.

The contingent consideration reflects a specified multiple
of the post-acquisition profitability of the acquired
intangible assets. Consequently, the actual additional
consideration payable will vary according to the future
performance generated from the intangible assets, and
the liabilities provided reflect estimates of such future
performances.

Due to the variety of bases of determination, it is not
practicable to provide any meaningful sensitivity in
relation to the critical assumptions concerning future
profitability of the acquired intangible assets and the
potential impact on the gain or loss on remeasurement of
contingent consideration payables.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the directors of the Company,
being the CODM, for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating
segments are as follows:

(@) the Boree branded products segment manufactures
and sells Boree branded slippers, sandals and casual
footwear (“Boree Products”);

(b) the Baofeng branded products segment
manufactures and sells Baofeng branded slippers
("Baofeng Products”);

(c) the Graphene-based products segment applied the
Technology Know-how by applying graphene in
the production of graphene-based ethylene-vinyl
acetate (“EVA") foam material with sterilizing, good
elasticity and tear resistant functions (“Graphene-
based Products”); and

(d) the Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM")
segment produces slippers for branding and resale
by others.

CODM monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment result, which is a measure of adjusted result
before tax.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. The segment profit or loss represents the
profit earned by or loss from each segment without
allocation of interest income, other unallocated net
income and gains, amortisation of intangible assets,
impairment loss on intangible assets, fair value change on
convertible notes, warrants and provision for contingent
consideration at FVTPL, finance costs as well as corporate
and other unallocated expenses.

Segment assets exclude property, plant and equipment,
prepaid land lease payments, intangible assets, raw
materials, work in progress, prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, pledged deposits and cash and bank
balances as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude trade and bills payables,
certain other payables and accruals, interest-bearing
bank borrowings, convertible notes, warrants, income tax
payable, deferred tax liability and provision for contingent
consideration as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis.

Regarding the brand licensee business segment presented
for the year ended 31 December 2015, it is not reported
in the current year since it ceased operation in 2015.

Regarding the Baofeng branded products segment
presented for the year ended 31 December 2015, it
ceased operation during 2016.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. THRPER
Segment revenues and results pan 6y E
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The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment.

Year ended 31 December 2016 BE—E—AE+-A=+—RHILEEE

Graphene-

Boree  Baofeng based
Products Products Products OEM Total

BAR i g A%
Em Em ER ok
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Segment revenue
Sales to external customers

Segment results

Reconciliation:

Interest income

Other unallocated net
income and gains

Corporate and other
unallocated expenses

Amortisation of intangible
assets

Impairment loss on
intangible assets

Fair value loss on
convertible notes and
warrants at FVTPL

Fair value gain on
provision for contingent
consideration at FVTPL

Finance costs

Loss before tax
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment revenues and results (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2015

Boree
Products
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Segment revenue
Sales to external customers

Segment results

Reconciliation:

Interest income

Other unallocated net
income and gains

Corporate and other
unallocated expenses

Amortisation of intangible
assets

Fair value loss on
convertible notes and
warrants at FVTPL

Finance costs

Loss before tax
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5172

25,769

30,941

ISR

4,454

8,637

(36,078)

(6,501)

(13,451)

(7,8438)

(19,846)

—2-xEFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. DEERE)
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEERER
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and AR BT 23 M &L D8 D ARE
liabilities by reportable and operating segment: BREENMBEDN
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z—ARE+=-A=1+—HLEFE
Graphene-
Boree  Baofeng based
Products Products Products OEM Total
BAR B ak-Yi
Em Em Em mE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR AR%®TrR

Segment assets THEE 1,497 - 33,011 48,340 82,848
Reconciliation: k-
Corporate and other rEREMAKDE

unallocated assets BE 1,451,743
Total assets BEHRS 1,534,591
Segment liabilities SHEE 300 - - - 300
Reconciliation: #HR -
Corporate and other rEREMKDE

unallocated liabilities BE 690,919
Total liabilities BEEE 691,219

1 1 6 Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 7EPER(E)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PTEEEREE(E)

Year ended 31 December 2015 BE—Z—AHFt+-A=1t—HLFE

Graphene-

Boree Baofeng based
Products Products Products OEM Total

EUN Eig yay--Y
Em Em Em B

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETRL ARETR

Segment assets STHEE 9,734 - - 42,940 52,674
Reconciliation: HE
Corporate and other EEREMRDE

unallocated assets BE 2,415,178
Total assets BEEE 2,467,852
Segment liabilities SHEE 150 150 - - 300
Reconciliation: HEE -
Corporate and other rEREMKSE

unallocated liabilities BE 1,338,511
Total liabilities BER%E 1,338,811

ey —2-xeeg |17/
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Other segment information
Year ended 31 December 2016

Boree
Products
BEAR
Em
RMB'000

5. ZHRPER )
Hfth 5 AR
BE—Z—AF+-A=+-BLEE

Graphene-

Baofeng based
Products  Products OEM Total

i {9 &5
Em ER e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR

Included in arriving at EE D EER,
segment profit/(loss) are: (EB)KEGA :
Impairment loss on trade  JEUNE HBEX
receivables BEEE 109
Write-down of inventories 17 & iR 2,003
Year ended 31 December 2015
Boree
Products
B AR
Em
RMB'000

1,956

2,065
2,003

4,068

BE-_Z-AF1+-A=1T—HLHFE

Graphene-

Baofeng based
Products Products OEM Total

Bl ARG
EE Z s
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTE ARETT ARBETT ARBTR

Included in arriving at EEA R
segment profit are: A
(Reversal of impairments loss)/ & I & 5 Bk 2 (# 5]

impairment loss on trade RMEBE),/

receivables REEE (693)
Reversal of write-down of #8117 & 5

inventories (5,410)

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 # £ —

e MR RN

E-—NFT_H=1—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 7EPER (&
Geographical information i EE R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) KREIIREFEH Kz
2016 2015
—B-RF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARETIT
PRC (principal place of operations) FRE(EEZEZEME) 49,369 27,561
United States of America (“US") TG RE([EE]) 162,750 128,416
South America FEE 402 800
Europe B 335 1,087
South East Asia REgo 471 10,111
Other countries Hth Bz 2,504 3,680
215,831 171,655

The revenue information above is based on the

locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

A EWSEREREPUES

éj\

(b) ¥FHBEE

2016 2015

—B-RF —T—RF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥ T ARETIT

PRC (principal place of operations) RE(FELEME) 1,417,018 1,597,420

The non-current assets information above is based

on the locations of the assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are

A EFRBEEERIENEE

EE D

FEFEFHNESR

REBEFEE  RERF 2WmhAE
B/AHEFE10% A EENT ¢

as follows:

2016 2015
S —H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ET T
Customer A ZEA 69,330 71,475
Customer B ZFB 22,359 19,798
Customer C ZEC 32,717 18,079
Customer D* ZED* 51,185 16,380

& Revenue from Customer D contributed less than 10%

of the total sales of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2015.

*  REAXFDZUBEAEEHZE
—E—AF+-A=+—HItF
[EHRSHETPMR10% °

BN —T—AFEFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 # £ —

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5.

E—NF+-_A=1+—HIFE

Information about major customers (continued)

Except Customer C in the Boree Products and Graphene-
based Products segments, the Group’s other major

customers are in the OEM segment.

6. REVENUE, OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS 6.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for

returns and trade discounts.

An analysis of revenue, other net income and gains is as

DEER (4

TEREFNER(E)

BREPCREEAMEMRAORBE
ma N REBEEMERERFKA

OEM % &f »

sk - EAb U R Wi R

WA A KB E X HER
HRREREZTNBENEES

I HER o

2
T

Yoas ~ B WA R W e 7% B R 0 A 40

follows: N
2016 2015
—E—RE —hHF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETTT ARETIT
Revenue W=
Manufacture and sale of goods FEMHEE MR 215,831 171,655
Other net income and gains Hity A K Wiz R 1R
Interest income FEYA 1,072 4,454
Sales of scrap material SHERER 646 1,912
Sales of semi-products SHE A - 188
Rental income He WA 515 462
Subsidy income* N 190 500
Exchange gain BE 5 U5 7 917 1,976
Others Hip 166 3,599
3,506 13,091

* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies

relating to these subsidies.

1 ZO Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 # £ —

E-—NFT_H=1—HIFE

FINANCE COSTS 7. BB
2016 2015
—E-XRF —h&F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AR®ET T
Interest on bank loans repayable within ~ ZBR A ERNE RN RIT
five years &S 7,933 7,848

LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

8. BRBLAIEIR

AEEOBRBATERE k(G A):

(crediting):
2016 2015
—E—REF —hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Cost of inventories sold* B EFERA* 138,526 134,156
Depreciation* e~ 7,922 8,069
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TE A + 3 7H & B 5
payments 845 845
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERE 105,401 6,501
Minimum lease payments under BETHEEFELHEON
operating leases in respect of land and (K S F*
buildings* 475 3,457
Employee benefit expenses (including BRERAMAX(BEESZMH
directors’ remuneration — note 9)*: ®— M) * -
Wages and salaries TERF® 47,844 44,490
Equity-settled share option expenses LA PR et 4 &5 ) BE IS AR B 2 20,712 9,466
Staff welfares B BN 275 314
Contributions to retirement benefits RIKE R E B TR
schemes 1,478 1,462
70,309 55,732
Auditors’ remuneration ZERN 2 1,103 1,467
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EBERERE 325,616 -
Impairment loss on other receivables H bW R IBREEE 165 =
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEWE 5 R FOBEE R 2,065 218
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of  TZ&HUR, (B E1F & HiUR)
inventories 2,003 (5,410)
Loss on disposals of items of property, HEME BENMKXEIHAEB
plant and equipment EtE 6 1
Exchange gain, net bE H W F 58 (917) (1,976)
Research and development costs** A EE i A< > * 5,436 2,231
I8 B i —REFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 # £ —

8. LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued)

*

* *

The cost of inventories sold for the year ended 31
December 2016 includes approximately RMB37,202,000
(2015: RMB38,607,000) relating to direct staff costs,
depreciation of manufacturing facilities and operating
lease payments in respect of land and buildings, which
are also included in the respective total amounts disclosed
above for each of these types of expenses.

The research and development costs were included
in “General and administrative expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executives’ remuneration for the
years, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and the

E—NF+-_A=1+—HIFE

F%ﬁﬂuEﬂa( &)

* %

HE-_Z—X"F+=-A=+—H1
FEDETEXNABRBOARE
37,202,0007T (ZE—HF : ARK
38,607,0007T) M EZEEEKA - &
BE SR M HT B LA Re 3 R A A AR
HAMR HWEBEREFALX
P B S fa A X AR RA B 58 -

MBERARDFAGEBEREME
A ER [ —RRITHRAX] -

EERFETHAEME

R £ R R R EE R RHGEBIFT % R

MEREEREER

TTHA BB <0

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows: s ¢
2016 2015
—E—XKE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AR®ET T
Fees (note a) & (note b) we (Mata) % (Hatb) 650 682
Other emoluments: B e -
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in — %% EANEY
kind (note c) &A(ftate) 1,294 1,454
— Contributions to retirement benefits — RIRERET IR
schemes (note ¢) (Ktatc) 30 30
— Equity-settled share option expenses — AR EEE R
R 2,854 2,661
4,828 4,827

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2016
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E-—NFT_H=1—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 # £ —

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9. EERFEMTHBAEME (B
REMUNERATION (continued)
Notes i &
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIUFBTES
The fees paid or payable to independent non-executive REEENHENBIIFNTES
directors during the current year are as follows: R
2016 2015
—E-REF —hF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTT
Professor Bai Changhong HRO#AK (R=ZZT—AF
(resigned on 3 February 2015) —A=H&T) - 14
Mr. Lee Keung (resigned on bk (R-_E—HRE
3 February 2015) —A=ZH&MT) - 14
Ms. An Na L+ 172 161
Professor Zhao Jinbao WEREHE (R —REF
(appointed on 3 February 2015) —A=HEZEMT) 103 88
Mr. Chen Shaohua BRAOZELRE (R_Z—RF
(appointed on 3 February 2015) —A=HEZEMT) 172 147
447 424

(b)

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year

FR YEENBILIFKTEEN
Hitpie (—F—RF:\) -

(2015: Nil).
Non-executive directors (b) FHITES
The fees paid or payable to non-executive directors during ANEEENHENIENTEETNE
the current year are as follows: o N
2016 2015
—E-REF —hF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR T AREET T
Mr. Sze Ching Bor (resigned on EEREE (RZT—RF
7 January 2016) —AtHEE) 3 161
Mr. Chan Chak Chak Daniel REREE(RZE—KRF
(resigned on 12 December 2016) +-A+=-B&IET) 98 97
Ms. Lin Weihuan (appointed on 7 January #MEEBZ L (R-ZT— R F
2016) —RBEtBREEE) 102 -
203 258
HIERY —T—NEFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—-FT—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
REMUNERATION (continued)

Notes (continued)
(b) Non-executive directors (continued)

The equity-settled share option expenses paid to non-
executive director during the year are as follows:

9. ESERFEMTBAEME(H)

et (&)

(b)

FHTESE (&)

FARRFATEEN 2 ARES
HOBRERIT

2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
Mr. Chan Chak Chak Daniel (resigned on BRERRELE (R —RF
12 December 2016) +=—A+=HEE) - 58

Save for the above, there were no other emoluments
payable to the non-executive directors during the year

Br bt & Oh - £ R R SR
TEENHEAME (ZF—2F:

(2015: Nil). ) o
() Executive directors and chief executive officer () BTEERTHAR
Salaries, Contributions
allowances  Equity-settled  to retirement
and benefits share option benefits
Fees in kind expenses schemes Total
He BER  URE&EEN BIER
ik BNEH BRERX HE Ji5 AR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEET TR AEETT AEET TR AEETR ARBTT
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-2-R"E12R
Zt-ALEE
Mr. Zheng Jingdong’ PRRAE - 557 1,537 15 2,109
Mr. Leung Tsz Chung? D7 i A = 737 1317 15 2,069
- 1,294 2,854 30 4178

1 24 Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

REMUNERATION (continued)

Notes (continued)

() Executive directors and chief executive officer

(continued)

Fees

ok
RMB000
ARETT

9. ESERFEMTBAEME(H)

ftat (&)

(0 BTEBRTHRAR (&)

Salaries, Contributions

allowances Equity-settled to retirement

and benefits share option benefits
in kind eXpenses schemes Total

Ge BER  NREREEY ERGET
Bl BRERR B BE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT

Year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ-E-1%1-R

Zt-BLEE
Mr. Zheng Jingdong! PRRAE - 535 575 14 1,124
Mr. Leung Tsz Chung? DT b 2 - 691 2,028 14 2,733
Mr. Zhang Aiguo? REELE - 228 - 2 230
- 1,454 2,603 30 4,087

L Mr. Zheng Jingdong has been appointed as the chief

executive officer of the Company on 10 May 2013 and

his emoluments disclosed above include those for services

rendered by him as the chief executive officer.

2 Mr. Leung Tsz Chung was appointed on 3 February 2015.

g Mr. Zhang Aiguo was resigned on 3 February 2015.

There was no arrangement under which a director and
chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year (2015: Nil).

! BRREER_T—=FHA
THEZRERARBITHAE
£ H e BREERT
BAAE PR RS 2 B & -

2 BRI HREER-—_ZE—HE_H
“HEZE-

E REREENR_Z—HFE_H
= H#tffEe

FA-BELEF RITHRAENK

ERRAERETAME 2B (=
T—hF E)-

miny —2-xeg8 125
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—-FT—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. AEESFHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included FRN hEamaFEERPEMA(ZE
two (2015: two) directors and the chief executive officer, —hFE:  MB)AEERITHRER K
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 S-S B E N E X9 - AR R]
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of E#RFEEERIFTHRBREN RS FE
the remaining highest paid employee who is neither a ERAEEHNMESFBNT :
director nor chief executive officer of the Company are as
follow:
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 « 28 R EWEF 320 164
Contributions to retirement benefits RIREAFT B R
schemes - -
Equity-settled share option expenses VARR e 45 5 H) B I i A 2 4,184 4,805
4,504 4,969
The number of non-director and non-chief executive MENFIATEEZIEES RIETTH
officer, highest paid employees whose remuneration fell BHMEEEES AT :

within the following bands is as follows:

Number of employees

EEZE
2016 2015
—E-REF —ZT—hF
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AER#1,000,0017T
= AR #1,500,0007T 2 =
RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 ABR#1,500,0017T
= AR #2,000,0007T 1 3
3 3

1 26 Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FiIsHAX
2016 2015
—F-A"F —T0F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥ETT

Current - PRC BNHA —

Charge for the year FEREF 7,569 3,399
Under-provisions in prior years BAFERBTE 102 2,424
Total tax charge for the year FRTIBERERE 7,671 5,823

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group’s tax losses brought forward from prior years
exceeded the assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for
the year (2015: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable in the
PRC have been calculated at the prevailing rates, based
on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC
being effective on 1 January 2008, the PRC income tax
rate is unified to 25% for all enterprises.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the “loss
before tax” per consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as below:

HRAEEEBAEFELEE 2 HIBEE
Eﬁﬂi@&%%?imfﬁﬁ%
A A EIEL B BRI SREEH(Z
—ﬁizﬁ%#l%ﬁ%mﬂﬂmﬁ
Bﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%~%%&%ﬁ
REAMEGE

RER-_ZFZNF—A—-BERHTH
BEAENE REMAEHREE R

Loss before tax

Tax at the applicable tax rates
Under-provisions in prior years
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Tax effect of tax loss utilised

Income tax expense for the year

BEER—FE25% o
FAHRBEA ]RGS BEEREME
R ERTE5M [BRFLATEE | 58k
W
2016 2015
—E—AEF —a4E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
bR R E R (309,907) (19,846)
BEBAR R EIRIE (48,546) (2,048)
BEFEREBETIR 102 2,424
H/E Rt A (19,414) (213)
I b3 75,615 5,793
EBRREEENRETE (86) (133)
FAMBRAX 7,671 5,823
mry —e-xeeg |7/



128

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z—=F

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Pursuant to the income tax law of the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the PRC. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the
PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rate for the withholding
tax is 5% (2015: 5%). In estimating the withholding
taxes on dividends expected to be distributed by
those subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008, the directors
of the Company have made assessment based on the
factors which included dividend policy and the level of
capital and working capital required for the Group’s
operations in the foreseeable future. No deferred tax
liability has been provided for the remaining of such
profits of approximately RMB547,564,000 (2015:
RMB524,098,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2016, there were no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities (2015: Nil) for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of the Company’s subsidiary
expected to be distributed, after considering the
abovementioned factors, in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

At 31 December 2016, the Group has unused tax losses
of HK$1,491,000 (2015: HK$2,103,000) equivalent
to RMB1,275,000 (2015: RMB1,762,000) available for
offseting against future profits, no deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of such tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2016
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11. FIBHAZ (&)

BRIBEFRBFTERE - £ BIA S /951
BHERIINEKEESTROKREES
10%TEMF - WIERERZZZN
F-—A—BRBAER BRAR_ZZt
F+_A=Z+—HENEF - HPEH
BEINRIEEEMB R EEERT AR
TAEA) - B B R TR R B R AT REBR
Ko AEERBREHNHMRE B5%
(ZE—RF : 5%)c fHatEPRKL
B AR AR —EENF—A—
B B P BRER & F) 5 K B9 B% B, BT 78 45 4R
MIENRE  ARRESEEENRSE
E=ELTE BEAEBENKREK
BERRAIRBRAEELEEMETNE
S REBERNKFE - AEEWERZ
LR #%m 54 A R¥547,564,0007T
(ZZ—hF: AR¥524,098,0007T)
FHIREEHRBEAE  NEAAEER T
%\J%é@iﬁﬁ%#%ﬁé’w—iﬁ BERERE
FAR] B AR SRR ] BE & B [a] o

RZE—R"F+ZA=+—H &=
B L RERIR - g A B R IEE o R
RN E B 2 B R R EE H B ) FE A
BB E - W BB ARERELED
REE(ZE—RF &)

7% 7N ) 180 L R SRR 1 0 AR 836 8 i #
PSR -

RZZE—RE+-_A=+—8 K&
B ) K &) A 1% 15 & 181,491,000/ 7T
(ZZE—FR % : 2,103,000 )(HE
MARRE1,275,000 )(Z B — R4 -
AR #1,762,0007T ) 7] F3 7 8 K 2R
i A BB R 2R g B AN AT TEOR - I
EREARESERRECHES
E-HBEEEEREE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2016
includes a loss of approximately RMB345,844,000 (2015:
RMB33,747,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 39(i)).

The loss of RMB345,844,000 (2015: RMB33,747,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2016 included a
management fee of RMB411,000 (2015: RMB461,000) to
a subsidiary of the Company.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was proposed for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015 and since the end of the
reporting period.

12.

13.

RRAAERABRMGEER

HE-_Z—FXFT+_A=+—HIF
B -ARaHEEARBGREAEBERR
538 49 A R #£345,844,0000( = &
—RF : AR¥33,747,0007T) B
AR B Ak R BE 3 (M RE39() )

BHE_ZE-—RFT_A=+—HIF
[E B 18 A R #5345,844,0007L(=F
—hF: ARM33,747,0007T ) B &
TR EEEARKAL411,0000( =
—hF : AR¥461,0007T) FARQF
—MMB A -

8N
BE-ZT—"Ek=FT-—H%+=A
=+ BLEFEAKREZ2HRARIAR
W R EIREALE, °

BN —T—AFEFER
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14. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
consolidated loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,080,827,914 (2015: 1,043,644,473)
in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
to calculate the basic loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2016 included the 1,067,579,608 ordinary
shares in issue as at 1 January 2016, and 16,200,000
ordinary shares and 280,000 ordinary shares issued on 9
March 2016 and 17 October 2016 respectively in respect
of the exercise of share options.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
to calculate the basic loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2015 included the 1,013,720,833 ordinary
shares in issue as at 1 January 2015, and 31,194,997
ordinary shares and 22,663,778 ordinary shares issued on
8 June 2015 and 18 June 2015 in respect of the exercise
of the conversion rights attached to the convertible
notes.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise of
the Company’s share options and convertible notes as the
exercise of the Company’s share options and convertible
notes would result in a decrease in loss per share, and is
regarded as anti-dilutive.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—-FT—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE
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e BRRME

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ¥ -BERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

Furniture
fixtures
Plant and Motor andoffice  Leasehold Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles equipment improvements in progress Total
B 2ER
BF HERHE RE WAERE HEEB ERIE 3
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Cost: KA
At 1 January 2015 R-Z-1E-A-H 72,543 21,569 2,454 6,538 41,908 4,094 149,106
Additions by - 837 263 58 - 801 1,959
Disposals il - (1,097) (805) (401) (1,433) - (3,736)
Transfer B - - - - 320 (320) -
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RETZA
=1-A 72,543 21,309 1912 6,195 40,795 4,575 147,329
Accumulated depreciation: 2iHE:
At 1 January 2015 R_E-HF-A-H 23,033 13,811 1913 3,237 11,898 - 53,892
Provided during the year EnkE 3,265 1415 198 9% 2,249 - 8,069
Eliminated on disposals HERHE - (936) (7113) (289) (39 - (1,973)
At 31 December 2015 RZT-RETZR
=1-A 26,298 14,290 1398 3,890 14112 - 59,988
Net carrying amount: REFE:
At 31 December 2015 RZE-R1%+-A
== 46,245 7,019 514 2,305 26,683 4,575 87,341
Cost: A
At 1 January 2016 RZE—E-f-H 72,543 21,309 1912 6,195 40,795 4,575 147,329
Additions £ = 1,698 - 447 346 106 2,597
Disposals e - - - (1) - = (1)
At 31 December 2016 RZF-AE+ZA
==E 72,543 23,007 1912 6,531 N4 4,681 149,815
Accumulated depreciation: ZithE:
At 1 January 2016 RZE—E-A-H 26,298 14,290 1,398 3,890 14112 - 59,988
Provided during the year ERNEE 3,265 1,260 176 856 2,365 - 7922
Eliminated on disposals HERHE - = - (105) - - (105)
At 31 December 2016 R-E-~E+-A
=1+-A 29,563 15,550 1,574 4641 16,477 - 67,805
Net carying amount; BREFE:
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-RETZA
=1-A 42,980 71457 338 1,890 24,664 4,681 82,010
HigEFE —T—ANFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—-FT—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are

depreciated or a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 20 years

Buildings

Plant and machinery 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and 5 years

office equipment
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 5 years

The Group’s buildings are situated in the PRC and are
held under medium term leases.

At 31 December 2016, included in “Buildings” is
a property for self-use with a carrying amount of
approximately RMB27,300,000 (2015: RMB27,300,000)
for which the Group has not yet obtain the building
ownership certificate. The Group is in the process of
applying the building ownership certificate.

The Group has pledged buildings with a net carrying
value of approximately RMB15,680,000 (2015:
RMB18,945,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

15. V¥ BERR®E &)

E¥E  BE REREEE A TIE
EIREOATE -

BF FAEA N 20 2
BRE

BB Kt Es 104F

B 5=

HE-KEBER 5F

N

HERE A NMSFEZ

BRE

AEENEFHMNFE - RIEH H
ISR

NR-EBE—XRE+-_A=1+—H K&
BEHMADRNSEEEONARE
27,300,0007C( —E—HF: AR¥E
27,300,00070) K B B ¥ 8= ZE Pt
EERB Bt AIEF - AEEBRIE
HEEEMAREE -

AEBEEBFEMFEHNARE
15,680,000 ( —E— 1% : ARK
18,945,000 ) MIEFIEA RSB E
B—MIBITRAE FHELR o

16. L #HE

2016 2015

—E-XRE —ET—0F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R AREFIT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—B8EREE 34,301 35,146

Amortisation during the year F N (845) (845)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—BrkEE 33,456 34,301

Current portion included in prepayments, &t ATENI3IE - 124 & Hth g

deposits and other receivables WRIER R B3 5 (816) (816)
Non-current portion FETRENEL S 32,640 33,485
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16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)

The leasehold land is situated in the PRC and the
respective prepaid land lease payments are held under

17.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 # %

medium term leases.

The Group has pledged the land use right with a net
carrying amount of approximately RMB33,456,000 (2015:
RMB34,301,000) to secure general banking facilities

granted to the Group.

e BRRME

FAEF A=+ —ALFEE

16. AN HEE (&)
&+ i ek B B ARRETE 307
& 2RI A LES -

AEEEEBEDFEHOARE
33,456,000 ( —FE—RE : AR
34,301,0007T ) Hy £ i {5 F3 4 VE AR

SEER —RIRTRENER -

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
020
distribution Deferred
Technology vending development
Know-how system costs Total
0207 84 }Eﬁﬁﬁﬁé
RiAE EEEAR 2% ok
(notes a, ¢)  (notes b, ¢) (note d)
(Midta-c) (HfiEb c) (Kfitd)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETET
Cost: B
At 1 January 2015 R-E—RF—HA—H - - - -
Addition during the year FRHIE 1,483,117 - - 1,483,117
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RA=ZZ—HF+=A
=t+—BR=Z—~F
—H—H 1,483,117 - - 1,483,117
Addition during the year FRFIE 104,401 60,000 92,378 256,779
At 31 December 2016 RZE—~F+=A
=t—~H 1,587,518 60,000 92,378 1,739,896
Accumulated amortisation and impairment:  Z 55 RORE ¢
At 1 January 2015 RZE—RF—H—H - - - =
Provided for the year FEREE 6,501 = = 6,501
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 HN=ZT—HF+_H
=F—HBRZE-—RF
—H—H 6,501 = = 6,501
Provided for the year FREE 105,401 = = 105,401
Impairment loss for the year FERREER 325,616 - - 325,616
At 31 December 2016 RZE—~F+=A
=+—H 437,518 - - 437,518
Net carrying amount: AR HE
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—RET_A
=t+—~H 1,150,000 60,000 92,378 1,302,378
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RE+=A
=t+—~H 1,476,616 — - 1,476,616
BIERY —T—AEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—-FT—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

It represented certain technological know-how in respect
of the application of graphene and includes one patent in
the US (“US Patent”), four invention patent applications,
three utility model patent applications and two utility
model patents in the PRC (collectively as “PRC Patents”),
relating to the manufacturing of graphene-based EVA
foam material, graphene deodorizing and sterilizing chips
and graphene-based pressure-sensitive sensors and the
exclusive formula (collectively as the “Technology Know-
how"), which was acquired from Bluestone Technologies
(Cayman) Limited (“Bluestone”), an independent third
party, in 2015.

The completion date of the transaction (“Completion
Date”) was 16 December 2015. The cost of the
Technology Know-how was determined by the directors
of the Company and represented the sum of the cash
consideration, the fair value of the convertible notes
(note 25) and provision for contingent consideration
at the acquisition date (note 26), and the capitalised
transaction costs arising directly from the acquisition of
the Technology Know-how. During the year, addition of
the Technology Know-how represented the capitalisation
of imputed interest of discounting the contingent
consideration until the commencement of the use of
the Technology Know-how. The Group’s first graphene
application products mass production line was completed
and commenced trial production in late May 2016, and
mass production has already been commenced in July
2016.

The Technology Know-how has definite useful lives and is
amortised over 10 years using the straight-line method.

In July 2016, the Group acquired the design of Online-
to-Offline (“020") distribution vending system at the
consideration of RMB60,000,000 from two independent
third parties. Directors of the Company consider that the
020 distribution vending system would provide customers
with an interactive and unique shopping experience,
enhance the distribution channel of the products
made by the Group and establish the core technical
competitiveness of the Group.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 # %

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@

The directors of the Company consider that the
Technology Know-how and 020 distribution vending
system belong to the 020 cash generating unit (the
“Cash-generating Unit”), being the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets.

The directors of the Company conducted an impairment
assessment on the Cash-generating Unit and considered
that provision for impairment to the carrying amount of
the Cash-generating Unit of RMB325,616,000 was made
as at 31 December 2016, with reference to a valuation of
the value in use of the Cash-generating Unit conducted
by an independent professional valuer, Ascent Partners
Valuation Service Limited (”Ascent Partners”), using
discounted cash flow approach. The discounted cash
flow approach is based on a pre-tax discount rate of
31.21% and cash flow projections prepared from financial
forecasts approved by the directors of the Company.
Since the business model for the Cash-generating Unit is
changed from supplying of EVA foam materials in 2015
to retail of slippers through 020 distribution vending
system and manufacturing EVA foam materials in 2016,
assumption of budgeted sales was changed from the
estimated sales order from shoes, slippers and luggage
manufacturers to daily average sales of slippers from each
020 distribution vending system. Other key assumptions
for the discounted cash flow approach relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include gross
profit margin, such estimation is based on the expected
and forecasted performance generated from the use of
the Cash-generating Unit and management’s expectations
for the market development.

In July 2016, the Group engaged several independent
third parties in the research and development of
manufacturing and application technology of graphene
material on sterilizing chips, energy storage materials for
batteries and pressure sensitive lighting devices for shoes.
The directors of the Company seek the opportunities in
applying the graphene material in products other than
shoes and plan to launch in the coming years.

The directors of the Company estimated the value in
use of the deferred development costs for impairment
assessment purpose using discounted cash flow approach
and concluded that no provision for impairment to the
carrying amount of the deferred development costs was
made at 31 December 2016.

FAEF A=+ —ALFEE

17. B EE (&
WisE: ()

(@

ARBEERR RMAMFZEO20
DHEERRBENRO20REELE
L (TReEEBM])  BEARFY
REMEEZRSMANAIELR
EIMARR/NAI BRI EEAR

ARAAIEEEHHECEAEMETT
MER G E2EB Y BEGERM
NAFEZABRAA ([XFH])
RIRBRE R S MEZH R CEAE BN
MEREBRETHEE RERZ
E-—RE+-_A=+—HBELEL
BAMERAEELDREREARE
325,616,0007T ° AL 3R & mE T &
MRIHATEEIR R 31.21% RIEAR A FE
EEMAENTBEAMSIE RS
MIBA-ANBEELEEMMER
B AT — AFHEEEVAR R
MR R - — R NFHHEB020H
HEBE RS T EHE REEEVAE
AR HEHEREAER  BE
RAApREENIEErEHETEE A
FEO0DHEERAMET AT
EHER -MRBSMENHEME
ERESRETESREA S FH
BREEMNE ZEFDHERFERR
S EEBEMATEAMNTEERTERX
BAREEEEMISEREMNTER-

RZBE-RFLA AEEERH
B2BUBE=THELRBHHRK
ROH  EhREEMHLERER
RAKEMNEERERARM - AR
AEESRHOBEMHEANE
FEIASMNEE G 2 & AT B R
RAEFRN -

ARBEZCHEMERRE AR
FHEEFR KA E B EE A
TTRER G BwmER T —RF
T A=+ BYERREREX
7N B B TE 8 F L ORR (B 348 o

HigEFE —T—ANFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—-FT—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

18. INVENTORIES 18. #&
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®EF T
Raw materials and consumables RV R ROEFE R 7,853 7,075
Work in progress RS 10,353 10,651
Finished goods RUAK o 6,716 13,640
24,922 31,366
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the write- BE_Z—AF+-_A=+—HBI1%F
down of inventories of RMB2,003,000 was recognised in B RIEZANERNFERRAEAR
the profit or loss. #2,003,0007T °

During the year ended 31 December 2015, included HE_ZT—RAF+_A=+—HIHF
in the reversal of write-down of inventories of RMB [E B 28 A FE R HY B B 17 & HURL A
5,410,000 recognised in the profit or loss was a reversal K #5,410,0007T B2 & & B R B E5 18
of impairment loss of RMB8,216,000 which had been AK%8,216,0007T - s KIEE R B E

written down to net realised value in prior period. B MR = Al &30 FE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

19. EWE ZRX

2016 2015

—E—REF —E—0F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT AREFTT

Trade receivables U E 5 BRFK 79,558 40,395
Less: allowance for doubtful debts VB RBRIEEAE (3,426) (1,361)
76,132 39,034

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit. The credit period offered to its customers is
generally for a period of three months. The Group seeks
to apply strict control over its outstanding receivables
and has a credit control department to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade receivable relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, net
of allowance for doubtful debts as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

AEEREFHNESIEREBUEER
ET REFPRHENEES —RA=
@A RNEBBNEBEZEREEN
FEWRIA - SR B EE AT kA
HIEEERR - S HREEEE RS
B B EX At KEI
ZEBESRAERETNRNETFE
B RMYTEEAETEERAR A&
B ERE RN E SRAESHRT BT
fEH MmN AR EENIRR - &
WE BRI TR

ERPR AEERKE S RHH
%%%Tﬁéﬁf&ﬁ’]ﬁz%‘émﬁﬂﬂéﬂ D B B
AT

2016 2015

—B-A"F ZT0F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT AREETIT

Within 3 months 31E AR 38,208 32,845
4 to 6 months 4Z61E A 33,063 1,935
7 to 12 months 7ZE121@ A 4,861 4,254
76,132 39,034

HigFE —FT—NFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—-FT—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of the Group's trade receivables that are
not considered to be impaired is as follows:

19. BWE B IR (4

RNEBY EW R ARERERE SR
REBRE DHTIT ¢

2016 2015

—E—XEF —E—hF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T AREF T

Neither past due nor impaired R TR E 38,208 32,845
Less than 3 months past due B HA3{E A LA 33,063 1,935
Over 3 months past due B HEARE3ME A 4,861 4,254
76,132 39,034

Included in the Group’'s trade receivable balances
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB37,924,000 (2015: RMB6,189,000) which are past
due as at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
mainly represent sales made to recognised and
creditworthy customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good repayment record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

19. BRE SR (2)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REERESH
2016 2015
—E-RF Sl S
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AR®ET T
As at 1 January R—H—H 1,361 1,143
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEWE 5 R BB EE 1R 2,065 218
As at 31 December N+—HA=+—H 3,426 1,361

Included in the impairment loss are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
RMB3,426,000 (2015: RMB1,361,000) which are long
outstanding. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

BEBESIEERIRERNERE SR
FoRERECREREAESR B
# A AN R #3,426,000( —ZF —
F: AR ¥1,361,0007T )0 7N & & I
ERZEERSEAMNERS -

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. ANRIE RERHMLERR

RECEIVABLES b |
2016 2015
—E-XRF —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT

Prepayments: TERTFRIA

— Advanced to suppliers — [t ERETERT K 871 3,743
— Rental deposits —Heke 318 117
— Prepaid land lease payments — A LA 816 816
— Others —HA 1,209 485
Deposits by 185 160
Other receivables A FE SR IE 4,203 2,130
Less: impairment loss on other receivables & : H b & W 7k 18 B (E 518 (165) -
7,437 7.451

Except for other receivables of RMB165,000 (2015: Nil),
none of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default.

Br E b fE U 3 H A R #165,0007T
(2015 : #&) 5N il EEBE B Ei sk
BB st A LAl s SR B EmR
HAY 4B R A0 SRR FEWR B B I -

BN —T—AFEFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—-FT—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

21.

22.

PLEDGED DEPOSITS, CASH AND BANK
BALANCES

Deposits were pledged for bills payable of
RMB14,277,000 (2015: RMB7,825,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (note 22).

At 31 December 2016, the cash and bank balances and
pledged deposits of the Group denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB5,944,000 (2015: RMB791,385,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under the PRC Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Pledged deposits earn fixed
interest rate at 1.55% (2015: 1.55% to 2.35%) per
annum. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

21. EERER RERBRTEER

BE-_ZE—XRE+-_A=+—HIF
B UAERAEARK14,277,0000(=
TR AR¥7,825,0007C)HfE
REBELD R (FIFE22)-

RZZE—RE+-_A=+—8 K&
EUARBENRE RIBITEH K
EE TR A ARKS,944,00070(=
T—FHF: AR¥791,385,0007T)°
ARBIT B A BRKEME A
- AR & R B SNE E M ) B 4 BE
EERMNEETERT AEEEES
BEEETINEEBHRITHEARKE
R EMINE o

IRITRSETHRITERFEMmEN
FENEEREE c BE W EFRIREEF
&1 55%( —F — A F : 1.55%%F
2.35%)FT B RITHEHB R EERFR
THEREZEBAPEERLEAR
170

22. BENESRIRREANRE

2016 2015

—F-A"F —T0F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTIT

Trade payables FETE ZRREK 39,612 30,854
Bills payables ANES 14,277 7,825
53,889 38,679
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued) 22. ENESRRRENSREE#)
An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables REFREAR NEBRENE ZET R
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the FENEHIERZ A HRE S NERE DT
invoice date, is as follows: AR
2016 2015
—E-AF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Within 3 months 3MEAR 36,998 24,240
Over 3 months 3E A E 16,891 14,439
53,889 38,679
The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing ENESRANENEZEE TS B
and are normally settled on six months terms (2015: six —RANSNEA(ZE—RFE : ~EB)
months). The bills payable of RMB14,277,000 (2015: ANEZE - R-_FE—A"Ft+_A=+—
RMB7,825,000) were secured by the Group’s pledged H AEBERBEEHERARK
deposits amounting to RMB4,283,000 as at 31 December 4,283,000 (—E—HE: ARK
2016 (2015: RMB2,723,000). 2,723,0007T ) 7 A R #514,277,0007T
—ZT-hF: AR%7,8250007T)
BN RBREL R -
DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES 23. CWkS HMENRIERE
AND ACCRUALS TEH
2016 2015
—EB-RF —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
Deposits received: Bz :
— Advanced from customers — X PEfEf A 300 300
— Others — HAth 530 418
Other payables H b e 5k18 12,985 16,815
Value-added tax (“VAT") payables FEHIZER ([$Z2ER ) 4,681 -
Accruals fEETE 6,719 5,808
Provision for contingent consideration IAREBRE (M E26)
(note 26) 8,303 606,918
33,518 630,259
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have a credit HiWEMNZRBETGE  EEHARE
term of two to three months. =@A -

BN —T—AFEFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 # £ —

24.

E—NF+-_A=1+—HIFE

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 24. stEBTEE
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFITT
Secured bank loans repayable within one 7B — & A8 & A A K IR
year 1TE 124,000 129,570

(a)

(b)

At 31 December 2016, the bank loans were
denominated in RMB (2015: RMB & US dollars) and
bore interest rates ranging from:

Year ended 4.60% - 6.25% per annum

31 December 2016

Year ended
31 December 2015

1.51% — 7.57% per annum

At 31 December 2016, the secured bank loans of
the Group were secured by a pledge of the Group’s
buildings (note 15) and land use right (note 16),
amounting to approximately RMB15,680,000
(2015: RMB18,945,000) and approximately
RMB33,456,000 (2015: RMB34,301,000)
respectively. In addition, the bank loans were
guaranteed by an independent third party and Mr.
Zheng Jingdong and his spouse.
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25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS 25. TRAREBRARER
Valuation of the Convertible Notes and the AR ZE R R ERLE
Warrants
The movements of the Convertible Notes and the AR R RIREZ R E BT

Warrants were as follows:

2012 2015 2016
Convertible  Convertible  Convertible 2012 2015
Notes Notes Notes Warrants Warrants Total
“%-Zf Z%-1f C®-x"¥ -®-ZF CB-If
TRREE TRREE TRREE ARER ARER an
(note &) (note a) (note b) (note b)

(Wita) — (Wida)  (Widb)  (Wib)
RMBO0D  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMB'000  RWB'OOD  RMBI0Q0
ARETT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

Fair value at 1 January 2015 RIZ-RE-A-A8
N{E 53,123 - - 4137 - 57,260
Issued during the year FRET - 91,717 - - 4,880 96,597
Converted during the year EpEh (54,001) - - - - (54,001)
Fair value loss charged to profit or loss S RRMEZHRRE
during the year NFERR 878 - - 7,009 5,564 13,451
Fair value at 31 December 2015and ~ R=Z—-1F
1 January 2016 TZA=+-Ak
B
—A—-BRATE - 91,717 - 11,146 10,444 113,307
Issued during the year FRET - - 55,411 = = 55,411
Fair value loss chargedi(gain credited) to  SEARBEMBE
profit or loss during the year MBI /GIARA
TEhs) - 25,177 22,519 (6,079) (10,444) 31173
Fair value at 31 December 2016 RZZE—~E+ZR
=T-HMATE - 116,894 77,930 5,067 - 199,891
Represented by: BUTEERR
2016 “EF
Current portion ikl - - - 5,067 = 5,067
Non-current portion it = 116,804 77,930 = = 194,824
- 116,894 77,930 5,067 - 199,891
215 —2-nf
Current portion s - - - 11,146 10,444 21,590
Non-current portion EREES = 91,717 = = = 91,717
- 91,717 - 11,146 10,444 113,307

HigFE —FT—NFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—-FT—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS

(continued)

Valuation of the Convertible Notes and the
Warrants (continued)

Notes:

(a)

In connection with the acquisition of the Technology
Know-how as explained in note 17, the Company
issued zero-coupon unsecured convertible notes (the
“2015 Convertible Notes”) with principal amount of
HK$110,880,000 as part of the initial consideration on
16 December 2015. As a settlement of part of contingent
consideration, the Company also issued zero-coupon
unsecured convertible notes (the “2016 Convertible
Notes”) with principal amount of HK$73,920,000 on 2
February 2016.

The 2015 Convertible Notes and 2016 Convertible Notes
(collectively as the “Convertible Notes”) entitle the holder
to convert them into the ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) at any time from the date of issue of the
2015 Convertible Notes and 2016 Convertible Notes to
the date immediately prior to the maturity date on 16
December 2018 and 2 February 2019 respectively, being
the third anniversary of the date of issue, in multiples
of HK$1,000,000 at a conversion price of HK$0.84 per
conversion share subject to adjustments in certain events.
The shares to be allotted and issued upon conversions
shall rank pari passu in all respects among themselves and
with all other ordinary shares in issue by the Company on
the date of such allotment and issue. Also, the Company
has a right to redeem the Convertible Notes at any time
before the maturity date of the Convertible Notes.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the
Convertible Notes holder did not convert any Convertible
Notes.

The Convertible Notes included a debt instrument with
embedded derivatives. Upon initial recognition, the
Convertible Notes are designated as financial liabilities
at FVTPL since it contains embedded foreign exchange
derivatives. The fair values of the Convertible Notes are
remeasured at the end of each reporting period and any
gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

(continued)

Valuation of the Convertible Notes and the
Warrants (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Valuation

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the fair values of
the Convertible Notes were based on the valuations
performed by Ascent Partners and calculated using the
binomial model and the inputs into the model were as

follows:

25. TRREERABRER (&

TRREERARERLEE)

et : (4&)
@ (#)

fh{E

R_E—ARFER_ZT—AF+=A
=t+t—H ABEREENQAFEETD
BB AFETHGEE LERAZ
BN E  ZE /AR

T

2016 2015
ZE-RF —E-NhF

2015 Convertible Notes TE-AFEUBRRER
Stock price (HK$) BB (ET) 0.99 0.77
Principal amount (HK$'000) A& (FAT) 110,880 110,880
Coupon rate (%) = H I 2 (%) 0 0
Conversion price (HK$) BRE (FBx) 0.84 0.84
Volatility (%) B 8 (%) 81.76 74.08
Risk-free rate (% per annum) &I R R (% - B F) 1.07 0.74
Expected life (years) TEHAGEH (&) 1.96 3.00
Expected dividend yield (%) T8 AR B Em (%) 0 0

2016 Convertible Notes TE-REURRER
Stock price (HK$) @ CET) 0.99 N/A 7~ i F
Principal amount (HK$'000) ReFE(FAET) 73,920 N/A 738 F
Coupon rate (%) ZEFE(%) 0 N/A i A
Conversion price (HK$) BRE (FBx) 0.84 N/A 7 i F
Volatility (%) R IR (%) 80.88 N/A 7 i F
Risk-free rate (% per annum) &b R R (% - BF) 1.10 N/A 1~ 3 B
Expected life (years) TEHIFHR () 2.09 N/A 738 F
Expected dividend yield (%) T8 AR B Em (%) 0 N/A N3 A

mery —2-xEe8 |45
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25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS

(continued)

Valuation of the Convertible Notes and the
Warrants (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into with
Asia Equity Value Ltd (the “Subscriber”) on 8 June 2012
(the “Subscription Agreement”), the Company issued a
7% senior guaranteed convertible notes with a principal
amount of HK$176,000,000 (i.e. RMB143,470,000)
(the “2012 Convertible Notes”) to the Subscriber on 21
June 2012 (the “Issuance Date”). No 2012 Convertible
Notes remained outstanding as at 31 December 2015.
In addition, pursuant to the Subscription Agreement,
the Company also issued to the Subscriber warrants (the
“2012 Warrants”) which carry the rights to subscribe for
62,026,431 new Shares as a condition to the issuance of
the 2012 Convertible Notes.

The 2012 Warrants initially give the holder of the 2012
Warrants (the “Warrants Holder”) the rights to subscribe
for 62,026,431 new Shares. The initial subscription
price of the 2012 Warrants is HK$1.53 per share (the
“Subscription Price”), subject to anti-dilution adjustment
for stock dividends, stock splits, dilutive securities
issuances and other customary adjustment events from
time to time in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the 2012 Warrants. The subscription period of the 2012
Warrants commences from 6 months after the Issuance
Date (i.e. 22 December 2012) (the “Warrants Subscription
Date”), and will mature on the fifth anniversary from the
Warrants Subscription Date (i.e. 22 December 2017).

Upon the occurrence of any events of defaults or certain
events as mentioned in the Subscription Agreement,
the Warrants Holder may elect to require the Company
to redeem or repurchase all or a portion of its 2012
Warrants at a price equal to the Black Scholes Value in
respect of the relevant 2012 Warrants as mentioned in the
Subscription Agreement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 # £ —

25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS

(continued)

Valuation of the Convertible Notes and the
Warrants (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(continued)

On 7 February 2013, the Company had entered into
a supplemental instrument with the Subscriber to
amend certain major terms and conditions of the 2012
Warrants (the “Supplemental Warrants Instrument”). The
Supplemental Warrants Instrument had been approved by
the Subscriber as the sole holder of the 2012 Warrants
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 2012
Warrants. In accordance with the Supplemental Warrants
Instrument, the Company and the Subscriber agreed that
any adjustments to the Subscription Price should take
effect if the adjustment is HK$0.01 or more. As a result of
the above, the Subscription Price had been adjusted from
HK$1.53 to HK$1.49 with effect from 12 October 2012 as
a result of the distribution of the 2012 interim dividend of
HK2.5 cents per ordinary share by the Company.

According to the agreement amongst the Subscriber and
three independent third parties (the “Transferees”) on 29
October 2014, the 2012 Warrants were also transferred
from the Subscriber to the Transferees on 29 October
2014.

On 13 March 2015, the Company entered into a new
warrants subscription agreement (the “2015 Warrants
Subscription Agreement”) with two warrants subscribers
(the “2015 Warrants Subscribers”) in relation to the
issue of a total of 88,000,000 warrants (the “2015
Warrants”) to the 2015 Warrants Subscribers at the issue
price of HK$0.07 per 2015 Warrant. The subscription
rights attaching to the 2015 Warrants was expired on 20
October 2016.

Upon full subscription of the 2012 Warrants, a total
of 63,691,570 new Shares will be issued and the net
proceeds upon full subscription are approximately
HK$94,900,000 (i.e. RMB84,889,000).

E—NF+-_A=1+—HIFE
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25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS

(continued)

Valuation of the Convertible Notes and the
Warrants (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(continued)

No warrants have been exercised during both years ended
31 December 2015 and 2016.

The 2012 Warrants and 2015 Warrants (collectively as the
“Warrants”) are classified as derivatives and are accounted
for as financial liabilities at FVTPL upon initial recognition
since it contains embedded foreign exchange derivatives.
The fair values of the Warrants are remeasured at the end
of each reporting period and any gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Valuation

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the fair values of the
2012 Warrants and 2015 Warrants were based on the
valuations performed by Asset Appraisal Limited, which is
an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers and
calculated using the binomial model and the inputs into

the model were as follows:

—NFF+ZA=+—HILFE
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2016 2015
—E—XE —E—RF

2012 Warrants “E-CERRER
Stock price (HK$) BB (A7) 0.99 0.78
Exercise price (HK$) 1T6EE (Bx) 1.49 1.49
Volatility (%) 18 (%) 55.71 82.61
Risk-free rate (% per annum) ER A E(%  §F) 0.85 0.36
Expected life (years) TEERFHR () 0.98 1.98
Expected dividend yield (%) T8 HA A% B e 2 2R (%) 0 0

2015 Warrants —E-AFERAREE
Stock price (HK$) BB (A7) N/A T A 0.78
Exercise price (HK$) 1T1EE (BT) N/A T A 1.50
Volatility (%) 18 (%) N/A RiE H 105.99
Risk-free rate (% per annum) [EL B A (% - &) N/A RiE 0.11
Expected life (years) TEERFH () N/A RiE H 0.81
Expected dividend yield (%) T8 HA A% B e 2 2R (%) N/A T A 0
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

26. PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT

CONSIDERATION

In connection with the acquisition of the Technology
Know-how as explained in note 17, provision for
contingent consideration as at 31 December 2015
represented the acquisition-date fair value of contingent
consideration of i) a maximum of approximately
RMB1,289,409,836 in cash (“Cash Consideration”); and
ii) the contingent convertible notes (“Contingent CNs")
with principal amount of HK$73,920,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB60,590,164), which will be issued
by the Company after fulfilment of certain conditions
specified in the acquisition agreement signed on 14
October 2015 ("Acquisition Agreement”), as part of
the consideration for the acquisition of the Technology
Know-how.

The settlement of Cash Consideration and the
Contingent CNs is subject to the following conditions:

“Second Instalment Conditions” refer to (a) the
registration of the transfer of the PRC Patents and
the US Patent having been completed in the State
Intellectual Property Office of the PRC and the United
States Patent and Trademark Office respectively, such that
the Company having become the applicant of the PRC
Patents (or if the PRC Patents are granted, the Company
having become the PRC Patents owner) under the record
of the State Intellectual Property Office of the PRC, and
the Company having become the US Patent owner under
the record of the United States Patent and Trademark
Office; and (b) the training provided by Bluestone
to the technicians of the Group and its contracted
parties having been completed, such that the Group
and its contracted parties having been able to produce
graphene-based EVA foam material and graphene
deodorizing and sterilizing chips based on the Technology
Know-how independently, and the graphene-based EVA
foam material and graphene deodorizing and sterilizing
chips produced having been certified by an independent
technical organisation at provincial level or above to
meet the inspection standard as stipulated under the
Acquisition Agreement.
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26. PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT

CONSIDERATION (continued)

Upon fulfilment of the Second Instalment Conditions, the
second instalment in the amount of RMB450,000,000
shall be payable by the Company, of which (a)
RMB389,409,836 shall be paid in cash within 6 months
after fulfilment of the Second Instalment Conditions;
and (b) RMB60,590,164 shall be satisfied by issuing
the convertible notes with principal amount of
HK$73,920,000 to Bluestone or its nominee(s) within
15 business days after the fulfilment of the Second
Instalment Conditions.

“Third Instalment Conditions” refer to (a) the accumulated
turnover of a special purpose vehicle (“SPV"”) to be
established by the Group for the sales of graphene-based
EVA foam material, graphene deodorizing and sterilizing
chips and graphene-based wearable devices manufactured
using the Technology Know-how and/or any other
companies (other than companies of the Group) authorised
to use the Technology Know-how having reached
RMB40,000,000; and (b) the sales volume of graphene-
based EVA foam material having reached 20,000 cubic
meters, each within 9 months after the Completion Date (or
such later date as the Company may agree).

Upon fulfilment of the Second Instalment Conditions and
the Third Instalment Conditions, the third instalment in
the amount of RMB270,000,000 shall be payable by the
Company in cash to Bluestone or its nominee(s) within 15
business days after the fulfilment of the Third Instalment
Conditions.

Second Instalment Conditions and Third Instalment
Conditions have been fulfilled and the Company has paid
RMB389,409,836 by way of cash and RMB60,590, 164 by
way of issuing the 2016 Convertible Notes (refer to note
25) and RMB270,000,000 by way of cash on 2 February
2016 and 8 September 2016 respectively.
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26. AR EREF

RE MG ERE FHEBEA
R #450,000,0007T 28 B AN A &) XX
£ & fh(a) A R #389,409,8367T /A
R E B ERK B6E A AR &
S R(b)AR%60,590,1647T B
F_HGHEKRBRISEALXARNER
MELXERBABTASEAR
73,920,000 7T & AT # i% = i 2
(N

[ 55 = BR{& 4 | IE R SERK B BR1£ 91 A
N(HARERENESEBBR) (@A E
BB ESFERRMAREENAE
IREVAZS B M KL A2 E R ILEE S
F & G 2206 B] SRR S B AL Y R RR
B HRAEI([SPV]) &/ sk 1% #E 5 F
RiTAENEAEMQ2a(TEER
SEEQE) RFTEFEEREARK
40,000,0007T : M(b)A 2 HEVAZE
MEHEE 2 3%20,00032 5 K o

P 8B Z BRI 2B = BRI 1% -
£ = Hﬂ % %8 A R #270,000,0007C 28
EEZIK AR =BG ER 1R 15 =
¥ARUREINTFERSERZA

H;Mﬂ#&"”‘ﬁﬁﬂﬂ#akﬁ}z ZiN
T PRIR=ZE—R"F-_AZAMNUR
<5§§1‘JL/\E¢€389,409,8367_E&3§?@
BT AFABRBREEIFAR
#60,590,1647C (2 M E25) R
—E-RNFEAANBUBEEIMAR
#270,000,0007T ©



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_—T—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

26. PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT

CONSIDERATION (continued)

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, upon fulfilment
of the Second Instalment Conditions and the Third
Instalment Conditions, Bluestone is entitled to share
35% of the earnings before interests, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation (“EBITDA”) of the SPV for the
6-month period ended 30 June or 31 December of
each year (“Interim Financial Period”) during which the
Second Instalment Conditions and the Third Instalment
Conditions are fulfilled and each subsequent Interim
Financial Period (until the end of the sixth financial year
ending 31 December from the Completion Date), subject
to a maximum sharing amount of RMB630,000,000 (the
“EBITDA Sharing Mechanism”).

For the avoidance of doubt, the financial year in which
the Completion Date ending on would be considered
as the first financial year for the purpose of the EBITDA
Sharing Mechanism. During the period under the EBITDA
Sharing Mechanism, for each Interim Financial Period, the
Company should appoint an independent auditor to issue
a certificate for the EBITDA of the SPV during the relevant
Interim Financial Period within 4 months from the end
of such Interim Financial Period, and the sharing amount
shall be paid by the Company in cash to Bluestone or its
nominee(s) within 15 business days after the issuance
of such certificate. Any license fees for the Technology
Know-how payable by the SPV to the Group will be
disregarded in the calculation of the EBITDA.

If the accumulated EBITDA of the SPV during the period
under the EBITDA Sharing Mechanism is less than
RMB1,800,000,000 (for the purpose, if the SPV records a
loss in any Interim Financial Period, the EBITDA of the SPV
of that Interim Financial Period would be regarded as zero
in calculating the accumulated EBITDA), the total sharing
amount under the EBITDA Sharing Mechanism will be less
than RMB630,000,000 and the Company is not obligated
to pay the shortfall between RMB630,000,000 and 35%
of the actual accumulated EBITDA of the SPV during the
period under the EBITDA Sharing Mechanism.

26.
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26. PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT 26.
CONSIDERATION (continued)

Provision for contingent consideration as at 31 December
2016 represented the contingent cash consideration
payable to Bluestone or its nominee(s) under the EBITDA
Sharing Mechanism.

AR ER B 7

R-ZE—RNE+-A=1+—HHR
RBE A TEIEIEEBITDA D B # 1| &
EOERZANIARSRE-

The movements of the provision for contingent KRR BEEZ ST :
consideration were as follows:
2016 2015
AL —ZE-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
As at the beginning of the year REA 1,029,203 -
Acquired on acquisition of the Technology &= AR B M7 &0 25 A
Know-how during the year EZE - 1,029,203
Settlement during the year FRNEE (610,420) -
Fair value gain credited to profit or loss  FRRERFTAZ
during the year N ERE (141,915) -
As at end of the year RER 276,868 1,029,203
Current portion included in deposits FTABRNIRSE - HAb RN IR
received, other payables and accruals NIEGTER ZREE D (8,303) (606,918)
Non-current portion EmENE 268,565 422,285

The fair value of the provision for contingent
consideration is calculated using the discounted cash flow
approach (2015: binomial model). The inputs into the
approach/model as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were

HAREBREN QI TFERBRERAS
E(ZE—AfF —HEX)FE-
RIB-—RERZZE-HF+ZA
=t+—R &/ AN E ABEN

as follows: T :
2016 2015
ZE-XRF —T—hF
Stock price (HK$) IRE(BIT) N/A i 0.77
Coupon rate (%) SEME(%) N/A T & fA 0
Conversion price (HK$) BB BT N/A 738 A 0.84
Expected dividend yield (%) AR E W E (%) N/A T iE A 0
Expected volatility (%) (note a) TEERRE 18 (% )(Hata) N/A FiE A 70.14
Expected life (years) (note b) TEEASE EA (S )(Math) N/A T 3.54
Risk free rate (% per annum) (note ¢) ERERRFIR (% » FF)(ffitc) N/A R & 0.83
Discount rate BLIR =X 12.15-12.69% 18.78%
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PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT
CONSIDERATION (continued)

Notes:

(@) Expected volatility was determined by calculating the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price.

(b)  Expected life was the expected remaining life of the
Contingent CNs.

(c)  The risk free rate for the Contingent CNs is determined by
reference to the yield of the Hong Kong Generic Bond.

(d) All Contingent CNs have already been issued as at 31
December 2016.

The provision for contingent consideration is classified
as a financial liability which will then be measured at fair
value and any changes in fair value will be recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The directors of the Company conducted a fair value
assessment of the provision for contingent consideration
as at 31 December 2016, with reference to a valuation
conducted by Ascent Partners.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

The amount represents Group’s withholding taxes to
the dividend payable by a PRC subsidiary amounted
RMB62,075,000 as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

26.

27.

AR ER B F

i at

(a) TAEVRIBTIEBAHEARREBEK
1B R R 1 2 €

(b) TFREIFHALATRERIER AN
BRI FH

(0 ZHATERREZERRNETZ
EEB—REF WA ERMERE

(d R-F-—RF+-_A=+—HBFA
A MR REIGE #1T

RARBEERSEALBAE A
BBEATENE EAATES
B A B R R -

ARTEFESELFHEL 2 Y
—F A+ AS+—HZHAR
BT AT BT -

EEFIBEEE
ZemEAEER —RPEHBA T
JERTRE B TEHIR R —NFE X
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62,075,0007T, ©
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. BA
The details of the authorised and issued share capital of ANRZEERBETRAZ BN
the Company are as follows: N
2016 2015
ZE-RE “T-1%F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETTT
Authorised: T
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each 5,000,000,000/k BIREE0.01 X TTH) &
Bl 342,400 342,400
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
1,084,059,608 (2015: 1,067,579,608) ordinary shares of ~ 1,084,059,608%( = Z—H %
US$0.01 each 1,067,579,608% ) S REE0.01%T
VERR 71,629 70,555
Ordinary shares ZER

Number of ordinary
shares of US$0.01 Nominal value of Nominal value of

each ordinary shares ordinary shares
BREE0.01
EnMEER
G| LERER LERAR
US$'000 RMB'000
TEL ARETT
Authorised: BE
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015, RZE-RE-F-H"
1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 “E-RETZAZT-B
'7: NE-A-ARk
“5-~E+ZA=1-H 5,000,000,000 50,000 342,400
Issued: BRT:
At 1 January 2015 RZE-RF-A—-A 1,013,720,833 10,137 67,258
Conversion of 2012 Convertible Notes (note 25) Bl =F——FARFE
(Hi25) 53,858,775 539 3,297
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R-E—RE+-A=+-HRK
“Z-r"¥-R-H 1,067,579,608 10,676 70,555
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options TR RER ETRRG
(note 29) (Hi£29) 16,480,000 165 1,074
At 31 December 2016 RZE-A"E+ZB=1—-H 1,084,059,608 10,841 71,629
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 8 January 2011, the Company operates a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Eligible participants of the Share
Option Scheme include, among others, the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive directors,
employees, suppliers of goods or services, customers,
consultants of the Group, the Company’s shareholders,
and any non-controlling shareholder in the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Share Option Scheme became effective
on 28 January 2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all option to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Group
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue
at the Listing Date. The maximum number of Shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant
in the Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the Shares in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the Shares in issue and or with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Shares at the
date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

An offer of the grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of
a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors of the Company, and which
shall not exceed 10 years after the date on which the
share options are granted and accepted. The exercise of
any option may be subject to a vesting schedule to be
determined by the Board.

29.

B RESTE
R—_E——F—ANB  KXRREE
—IEME AR EI([ B REETE ) §
ERARNEBER ZKNIEHERZ
BEWRDEEIRHEE &R - AR
BETEEER2EERE(EPRIE)
AAREE(BEBIIENTTESE):
AEEREE ERdRBHER B
F BB ARRRERAR RN E
NA)Z R FEZEAR IR o B IR AERT &
BT ——F%— A -+ /\HBEDS
brIEEEUESASE] BRI HZ B
T FERRIFEER -

R RS B AT 8 R AN SR B B b 5T
ZIRHHPTA BRI TERS ] T 3
THRMESHAE AR EEER
WA EHITRMD Z210% o REMA
T A A BEA - RIEERET S
TEEERZEE ZBRER TET
ZE= R BB AR R 2 1T
1021 % AR o B H R B L IR 5l 2 (E 1]
HBa S AERRNERAE £
HUE ©

RYTARAEE TETBRABRE
ZRA W E TR AL 2 BAE
ARBUFATEST LA E - I
S REH BHREN+ @A HE
A R TFARRRERBRIRIBIIE
HITEFAWEFEAMEAL ZEMA
FBREBA D BT 0.1 % HAREN
BERBERL A B+ A #E
P W Bt E 2 #{E/8 185,000,000
BT AIARERRNIRERERAE EE5E
HUE ©

RHBkigEz 2HORNEL B LT
ZHFNARABAEARAZNZEZRE
B ILIR T AR - FTIR BB AU 2 77
EHMIIHARBESTERE  TNMSHEB
AR L R AR A B BERI10F - (E
ABEREZITEANEXRREETSE
EZEREH -

HigFE —FT—NFER

155



156

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—-FT—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29.

BRESTE (7

The exercise price of share options is determinable by
the directors of the Company, but may not be less than
the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the
Shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer and (jii) the nominal value of the Shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme during the year:

BREZTEERARRESTEE -
HEASERAT2E8SE : ()RHRV
BRERD B MER 2 KWHE
(BRI REZEZN AT AERX S A
PRS2 “F A U {8 R (i) Bt BV
&

BREY T TR A AMEUR B3R
BRRAGHREZHEF -

FA-RIBERETEISARITENE
PREMT -

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—REF

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise of share exercise of share
price options price options
InREF 5 BRE TS =i
TEE #E 11fEE # A

HK$ HK$

BT BT
At 1 January n—H—H 0.83 69,250,000 1.18 10,250,000
Granted during the year FRKE 0.70 105,800,000 0.81 65,000,000
Forfeited during the year FRR UL 1.10 (5,370,000) 1.18 (6,000,000)
Exercised during the year FRITRE 0.81  (16,480,000) - -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 0.73 153,200,000 0.83 69,250,000

105,800,000 (2015: 65,000,000) share options and
16,480,000 (2015: nil) share options were granted and
exercised during the year respectively, and 5,370,000
(2015: 6,000,000) share options were forfeited during
the year due to cessation of employment of the
participants.

The outstanding share options as at 31 December 2016
were vested to the grantees in the following manner:

- 12,002,000 of such share options were vested on
10 December 2015 with an exercise period from 10
December 2015 to 9 December 2020.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

21,176,000 of such share options were vested on
10 December 2016 with an exercise period from 10
December 2016 to 9 December 2020.

5,470,000 of such share options will be vested on
10 December 2017 with an exercise period from 10
December 2017 to 9 December 2020.

4,376,000 of such share options will be vested on
10 December 2018 with an exercise period from 10
December 2018 to 9 December 2020.

4,376,000 of such share options will be vested on
10 December 2019 with an exercise period from 10
December 2019 to 9 December 2020.

52,245,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2016 with an exercise period from 24 June
2016 to 23 June 2021.

36,060,000 of such share options will be vested on
24 June 2017 with an exercise period from 24 June
2017 to 23 June 2021.

3,075,000 of such share options will be vested on
24 June 2018 with an exercise period from 24 June
2018 to 23 June 2021.

2,460,000 of such share options will be vested on
24 June 2019 with an exercise period from 24 June
2019 to 23 June 2021.

2,460,000 of such share options will be vested on
24 June 2020 with an exercise period from 24 June
2020 to 23 June 2021.

1,425,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2016 with an exercise period from 16
December 2016 to 15 December 2021.

1,900,000 of such share options will be vested on
16 December 2017 with an exercise period from 16
December 2017 to 15 December 2021.

e BRRME

E-—NFT_H=1—HIFE

. BIRERT 8 (&)

ZERRER21,176, ooofﬁaﬁA
:g_ﬁ¢+ )EJ+E| R
FEIR— /\¢+_H+Eli
:E;Ti‘l—:ﬂhﬁ o

% % BB IR # #95,470,00017 1§ B
—T—+E+-ATHBB 17
ERR_FT—tFF+_A+HE
—E-FF+-AhB-

5% = BE % 7 894,376,00017 #5 1
— 2 N\Ft+-_A+BERE 17T
FHA_FT—\F+_A+HZE
—E-TF+ZANB-

% 55 BE X #E §94,376,00017 #8 A
“E-—NE+-_ATHEB 17
FHAEA-_T—NAF+_A+HZE
—T-EHFE+_-AAAB-

Z S RERRERY52,245,00000 B
—E—RNFEANAZTHEEE -
TEHAE-_T—RNFEA-+HO
BE_ZE_—FA=-+=H-

Z SRR R936,060,00010 &R
—E—tFA=Z+HEH %E
TESHE T —+FA-+N
BE-_ET_-_—49FA-t+=H-

% 55 BB I #E §93,075,00017 #8 A
—E-N\FEANA-tHBEEEB

TESHAE-_ZE—\FEA=-+NO
BE-_Z-_—9"A-+=H-

7% % BB IR # #92,460,00019 H#EA
—E-NFERNA-THBR

TERAE—Z— j’LE/\H_JFlT_EI
He—_Z-—4%,A-+=H-

% % BB IR #E #92,460,00017 #8 7A
—E-EFEXA-_THBERE-

TERAE_ZE_ZTF A=+
HE—_Z—_—9F-A=-+=H-

% BB A9 1,425,00019 Eﬁé
:2—/\¢+_H+/\El
TEHE-F —/‘*\EJr:HwL/‘*\
Be—_Z-_—F+-_HA+HH-
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29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

2,375,000 of such share options will be vested
16 December 2018 with an exercise period from
December 2018 to 15 December 2021.

1,900,000 of such share options will be vested
16 December 2019 with an exercise period from
December 2019 to 15 December 2021.

1,900,000 of such share options will be vested
16 December 2020 with an exercise period from
December 2020 to 15 December 2021.

on
16

on
16

on
16

The outstanding share options as at 31 December 2015
were vested to the grantees in the following manner:

4,250,000 of such share options were vested
30 August 2012 with an exercise period from
August 2012 to 29 August 2016.

28,650,000 of such share options were vested
10 December 2015 with an exercise period from
December 2015 to 9 December 2020.

21,400,000 of such share options were vested
10 December 2016 with an exercise period from
December 2016 to 9 December 2020.

5,750,000 of such share options will be vested
10 December 2017 with an exercise period from
December 2017 to 9 December 2020.

4,600,000 of such share options will be vested
10 December 2018 with an exercise period from
December 2018 to 9 December 2020.

4,600,000 of such share options will be vested
10 December 2019 with an exercise period from
December 2019 to 9 December 2020.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

29. MRS &l
2 AR E ARITE R BN TTE

B RATERT

2016

ZE-AF

Number of Exercise price

share options HKS$ per share Exercise period

BREHE TEESRET 1TEHA

9,500,000 0.99 16 December 2016 to 15 December 2021
R RF+ZA+RNBEZE=—F+ZATHH

96,300,000 0.67 24 June 2016 to 23 June 2021
—E-REXRNAZtHEBEE=_Z=_—FXA=-+=H

47,400,000 0.81 10 December 2015 to 9 December 2020
TR+ AtRAEZZTEEF+=ANA

2015

—_E-HEF

Number of Exercise price

share options HKS$ per share Exercise period

BREHAR TEESRET 1TEH

65,000,000 0.81 10 December 2015 to 9 December 2020
—E-RAFTA+TRE_ZT_TF+-AANAB

4,250,000 1.18 30 August 2012 to 29 August 2016

—E-——FNA=FHEZZE—RENA=-TANHE

The fair value of the share options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$24,872,000
(equivalent to RMB20,837,000) of which the Group
recognised share option expenses of RMB9,466,000 and
RMB8,532,000 during the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2016 respectively.

The fair value of the share options granted on 24 June
2016 (“Jun 2016") and 16 December 2016 (“Dec 2016")
was HK$18,960,000 (equivalent to RMB16,204,000)
and HK$3,924,000 (equivalent to RMB3,510,000) of
which the Group recognised share option expenses of
RMB11,774,000 and RMB406,000 during the year ended
31 December 2016 respectively.

HE_ZTE—REt+-_A=+—HILF
EERLEMNERERNFTES
24,872,000 jt( 8 & XN A R ¥
20,837,00070) EF AEKERBE =
E—RFER-_ZT—RF+_A=+—
HIEFED RIERERER S AR
9,466,0007T & A R#8,532,0007T °

R-E—RENAZTHEB(ZE—R
FRARZE—RF+—A+A(Z=
T—RNFHZA)BEENEREATE
7 5l 18,960,000 ;T (FHE A A R
16,204,0007T ) 53,924,000/ 7T B &
M AR#3,510,0007T ) EFAEER
BE-_Z—Ft+-A=1+—BIFE
EDFBRABERERIARK
11,774,0007T & A R #406,0007T °
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016
was estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the share options were granted respectively.
The following table lists the inputs to the model used:
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Bt (e

BE_ZT-AFE-_FT-—R"Ft+t_-A
=t HUEFEERENABESE
MBRE R ERA - EEARR S
ARETHE YOREEELZSE
B A BV IR AR R AR - TRIIRER
ZRA B

Dec 2016 Jun 2016 2015
—EE-RE —E—-RE

+=A ANA —ET—AhF

Dividend yield (%) e .25 % (%) 0 0 .

Volatility (%) R IE(%) 65.40 64.65 65.20

Risk-free interest rate (%) 48 &2 1) 2% (%) 1.56 0.69 0.99
Expected life of share options BEAXfETEHAFEA(4F)

(year) 5 5 >

Exercise price (HK$ per share) 17118 (B T) 0.99 0.67 0.81

The expected life of the share options is based on the
historical data and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is
indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily
be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the share options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
16,480,000 of exercised share options with fair value
of approximately RMB4,563,000 which previously
recognised in share options reserve had been transferred
to share premium.

5,370,000 (2015: 6,000,000) of forfeited share options
with fair value of approximately RMB1,474,000 (2015:
RMB1,657,000) which previously recognised in share
options reserve had been transferred to retained profits.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had 153,200,000
(2015: 69,250,000) share options outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme, which represented approximately
14.1% (2015: 6.5%) of the Shares in issue as at that
date. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 153,200,000
(2015: 69,250,000) additional Shares and additional
share capital and share premium of approximately
HK$11,881,000 (equivalent to RMB10,628,000) (2015:
HK$5,367,000 and equivalent to RMB4,496,000)
and approximately HK$100,439,000 (equivalent to
RMB89,844,000) (2015: HK$52,298,000 equivalent to
RMB43,814,000), before issue expenses.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements
therein for the current and prior reporting periods are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

(i) Contributed surplus

On 17 January 2011, CITIC Capital, the Company
and its shareholders had entered into certain
conditional release and discharge agreements,
pursuant to which, the new exchangeable note
would be duly released and discharged, which had
taken place on the Listing Date, 28 January 2011,
and prior to the commencement of the trading of
the Shares on the Stock Exchange. Accordingly,
the liability component of the new exchangeable
note of RMB57,768,000 on the Listing Date was
extinguished and transferred to the contributed
surplus in shareholders’ equity upon the full
conversion of the new exchangeable note.

29.

30.

BIREST R (&
RZZE—RE+-_A=+—8 ' £&A
AR BEREEEBET®S
153,200,000 ( — & — #
69,250,00017 ) i&] R 1T A B R4 - 1
Rz BBHEBEITRMDO141%(=F
—AF :65%) REARRREE
A BEITEZERATENE
J% ¥ 1% 38 B B8 SN E% 17153,200,0000%
(ZZ—F 4 : 69,250,0004% ) IZ 17
REIMNR A R A% 10 342 B (R BR 3 17 F
)2 RI4911,881,0005 7T (AEE R A
R #10,628,000c ( =T — A F :
5,367,000 ;t' M & N AR K
4,496,0007T ) M £7100,439,000/% 7T
(& R A R%89,844,000T (=&
— R4 52,298,000/ 7T 0 HHE R A
R#43,814,0007T)
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30. RESERVES (continued)

()

(i)

(iii)

Contributed surplus (continued)

Pursuant to the stock borrowing agreement entered
into between Best Mark and the Subscriber on 21
June 2012, Best Mark lent 32,000,000 Shares to
the Subscriber. Upon initial recognition, the value
of such contribution amounting to approximately
RMB12,183,000 from the substantial shareholder
was accounted for as a deemed contribution in the
shareholder’s equity. The carrying amount of such
contribution from the substantial shareholder is not
remeasured in subsequent years.

On 10 September 2012, Best Mark and the
Subscriber entered into a letter agreement (the
“Call and Put Option Confirmation”) pursuant to
which the Subscriber had granted to the Best Mark
the right to purchase 32,000,000 of the Shares at
a strike price of HK$1.01 and the Best Mark has
granted the Subscriber the right to require the Best
Mark to purchase 32,000,000 of the Shares at the
same strike price.

On 17 December 2014, the Company was informed
by Best Mark that 32,000,000 Shares had been
transferred by the Subscriber to Best Mark and
the transaction set out in the Call and Put Option
Confirmation was terminated.

Statutory surplus fund

In accordance with the relevant regulations
applicable in the PRC, the Group’s subsidiary
established in the PRC is required to transfer a
certain percentage of its statutory annual profits
after tax (after offsetting any prior period’s losses), if
any, to the statutory surplus fund until the balance
of the fund reaches 50% of its registered capital.
Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the
relevant PRC regulations, the statutory surplus fund
may be used to offset against accumulated losses
of the PRC subsidiary. The amount of the transfer is
subject to the approval of the board of directors of
the PRC subsidiary.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of operations
outside the PRC which are dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 3 to the
financial statements.
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31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 31.

The Group leases a production plant and office premises
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for these
properties are negotiated for terms of two or five years.

KERNTHE
AREBRELEHNOLHAELER
EERAE ZEWENBBLERE
EB_FERF

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

REHRHPR - ARERE S A HEHEL
EAR T 5 B HE R R R RIEE

operating leases falling due as follows: SRRERAT
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETT
Within one year —&FR 398 406
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_ERF(BIEEREMSE) 940 617
1,338 1,023

32. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments
detailed in note 31 above, the Group had the following
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

32. A&E
B b STHEEE31 B 5 i ) 48 A4 FR 40 7R 1R
o A E B 2 SRR I TAME

2016 2015
—EB-RF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT
Contracted for capital commitment in BERKEBARRENGTA
respect of investment in a subsidiary BN EHE 128,171 128,171
Contracted for commitments in respect of: HR4LA I8 B BY5] £IHIE ¢
— advertising and consultancy services —EE REARE 147 37
— research and development contract —REEH 60 410
— property, plant and equipment — W% BB R 1,200 281
1,407 728
miEy —2-xEE8 163
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33.

34,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group is as follows:

. BEALXRS

AEBTZEEABNMESNT

2016 2015

—E-RF —TRF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Fees e — _

Other emoluments: HA 4 :

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4  2BE R EWAIZE 1,980 2,231
Contributions to retirement benefits RNEAIGHEIGERK

schemes 31 33

2,011 2,264

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings (note 24), convertible
notes and warrants (note 25), and provision for
contingent consideration (note 26); net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors of the Company,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at 31 December 2016 and 2015

are as follows:

35.

RERHEINERMTEA
RZE-—RERZZT—RF+_H
St HNSBReRIAKREEN
B

Financial assets ETREE
2016 2015
ZE-RE “Z-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Loans and receivables: EFREWE -
Trade receivables EWE SRR 76,132 39,034
Deposits and other receivables (note 20) e REMRWIE(H20) 4,223 2,290
Pledged deposits BERER 4,283 2,723
Cash and bank balances BE R 4,789 789,836
89,427 833,883
Financial liabilities cRaE
2016 2015
—E-RE “T-HE
Financial Financial
Financial liabilities at Financial liabilities at
liabilities at  amortised liabilities at ~ amortised
FVTPL cost Total FVTPL cost Total
BAYE DR & N g3
TAER  RAHE STABR AETE
WemaRE MEmaE “am NEReE MNeREE ks
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®Tn ARE®TR AEETT ARETR ARET:
Non-derivative financial liabilities:  3#T42BEBE -
Trade and bills payables REGES ]
2B - 53,889 53,889 - 38,679 38,679
Other payables (note 23) Bt NTIA(H23) - 12,985 12,985 - 16,815 16,815
VAT payables (note 23) TE(HSER (H12223) - 4,681 4,681 - - -
Accruals (note 23) FEtER (Hfit23) - 6,719 6,719 - 5,808 5,808
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5 B3F/TfEE = 124,000 124,000 - 129,570 129,570
Provision for contingent KARER B (HH26)
consideration (note 26) 276,868 - 276,868 1,029,203 - 1,029,203
276,868 202,274 479,142 1,029,203 190,872 1,220,075
Derivative financial liabilities: ITERREE -
Warrants AR 5,067 = 5,067 21,590 - 21,590
Convertible notes TRRER 194,824 = 194,824 91,717 - 91,717
199,891 - 199,891 113,307 - 113,307
BB —T—AEER
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36. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value

on a recurring basis

36. TRIT AN A FEFE

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

FEERBEEHEERDFET
ENTREENRSREENATFE

REEZHYPR  AEENETERE
ERTBABRATEFE - TRZ
JnEeMmEERERBBERFEE
EAN(LERAANMGETERS
ABE)RIHBEER -

Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s)

Financial liabilities 31 December 2016 hierarchy and key input(s)
R=ZB—RF

+=A=+-—H REFERETE

Eat= =R NS AEEER WA E

Convertible notes Liabilities, Level 3 Binominal Model

RMB194,824,000 The key inputs are set out in note 25

AR R & BE B —IEAER

AR #194,824,0007T FE@ABESH P25

Warrants Liabilities, Level 3 Binominal Model

RMB5,067,000 The key inputs are set out in note 25

R HEE BE B ZIEAER

AR ™5,067,0007T FE@ABEBSH P25

Provision for Liabilities, Level 3 Discounted Cash Flow Approach

contingent RMB276,868,000 The key inputs are set out in note 26

consideration
IAREREE BE" EF=H ARIRIB & MIE
AR 276,868,0007T FE2 AEHNK 26
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36. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF 36. TR T AN A FENEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
There were no transfers in or out of level 3 for the years HE_ZT—REF;ET—AF+ZA
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. =+—BULEFE F=HIAEE AL
B -
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying RAABEFRE RESUBREE
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities RO EERSRBEMNREE N
recognised in the consolidated financial statements HAVERE -
approximate their fair values.
Fair value hierarchy N EER
As at 31 December 2016 R-ZB—RE+=HA=+—8
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B B& E=H waE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTR AR¥BTR AR%® TR
Convertible notes AR IR - - 194,824 194,824
Warrants i ) - - 5,067 5,067
Provision for contingent AR EREE
consideration - - 276,868 276,868
As at 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF+-A=1+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— FE& E= O
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT ARBTT AREKTT
Convertible notes AR - - 91,717 91,717
Warrants R = = 21,590 21,590
Provision for contingent AR ERE

consideration

- 1,029,203 1,029,203

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
of convertible notes and the warrants

TRERERAREINE=R2
FETERNEH R

RMB’000
AR®ET T
As at 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R-ZE—HF+_A=+—"HBHRK
—E—RF—H—H 113,307
Issued during the year FNET 55,411
Fair value loss charged to profit or loss FARBRABR 2 A FEEBRRFHE
during the year, net 31,173
As at 31 December 2016 (note 25) R-EBE—ARF+_A=+—H
(HKt&t25) 199,891

BN —T—AFEFER

167



168

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—-FT—NF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

36.

37.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
of provision for contingent consideration

36. ERMTANRFEFE#E

FANERENF=ROFETE
¥ BR

RMB’000
AR¥T T
As at 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R_Z—RF+_A=+—H8BRK
—T-RF—-H—H 1,029,203
Settlement during the year FA (610,420)
Fair value gain credited to profit or loss FARBZ=TAZ AT ERE
during the year (141,915)
As at 31 December 2016 (note 26) R-ZE—RF+_A=+—H
(HtzE26) 276,868

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments, include trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, pledged
deposits, cash and bank balances, trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, interest-bearing
bank borrowings, convertible notes, warrants, and
provision for contingent consideration. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk, interest
rate risk, liquidity risk and commodity price risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales transactions and financing
denominated in US dollars (“US$”) and Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"). As the HK$ is virtually pegged to
the US$, the Group does not expect any significant
movements in the US$/HK$ exchange rates and
accordingly.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the US$ exchange rate, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. MKEKREERERBKE)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) SNE LB ()
Increase/
(decrease) in
Increase/  the Group's
(decrease) in loss before
USS$ rate tax
AEBERH
EnEE FBEBELHAS
EFH(FE) (T¥&)
% RMB’000
ARETT
2016 —E—XxE
If US$ strengthens against RMB WETHAREHE 5 2,198
If US$ weakens against RMB WMETHARERE (5) (2,198)
2015 —E—FhF
If US$ strengthens against RMB WETLAREHE 5 551
If US$ weakens against RMB mMETHARERE (5) (551)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy but the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should needs arise.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties and financial guarantees provided by
the Group is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

AEEREIL EINELSHRE - BE
BEEFRINERR TERNEHERE
EREPEAINE R ©

FEERR
R-ZZB—RE+-_A=+—H0 K&
EFEGAS S RERITEERAEASE
B R EA B EER MG AN ERESE K
MBBERANEREERR  TRER
REPMBARRAERMASIBEBBZERS
R & ERBREE -

RBEERREERE RAEEBERE
EEZRKEENHEEEEEFEER
BmHEEE URERHEMBEER
Fr DA R 2 A Ui (00 780 A (B TR R R R AE
T8t AEBERZ2HBRGF
BB R 5 B A] YL [0 2058 -
R EH R SEY IR E & 1R A BN R BE
WEINEE BT AARES
R ARENEERRD AREE-

BN —T—AFEFER
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for
46% (2015: 22%) of the total trade receivables as at 31
December 2016.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 39%
(2015: 16%) and 91% (2015: 77%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-
bearing bank borrowings with floating interest rates.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the floating
interest rate borrowings in order to manage its interest
rate risks. The interest-bearing bank borrowings, cash
and short term deposits are stated at amortised cost
and not revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate
interest income and expenses are credited/charged to the
statement of profit or loss as earned/incurred.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s net loss before tax
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings)
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37. MEREREBFERBER(#

EERR(E)

ANEBIZMWEME S D H’J;i*f &+
BEEREFRE PRMER= /\¢
+=—A=+— EIH’JFEH&TT%HEM
B146%( —Z—HF : 22%)°

KE@ﬁEqﬂ SERK  RERER
Z HERA %Em39%( T—RE:
16%)&9V%L_i RE:77%) 5
DRIRERAEBNZARERAKX
BE o

R 2= @
R SRR B R
BN E EIRE B ERE B fE{T{ﬁ@q
B -

AEBTFHEERENZEEENE
BEMEER s BRTEE -RE
MESERIREBERAAR Mg
FTHEMG - ZEWARST HRIBRR
WIZEBE, B EL T KRR 0Bk -

TERETMAA S BRETE
AEERHANERIE(RTREE
2O UESES - LT AL
i

Increase in

Increase in loss before
interest rate tax
RR B Al

FI 2= 38 N BB
(basis points) RMB’000

(£H) AR®BTx

2016 —E—REF
2015 —T—hF
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2016, the
Group has no available unutilised overdraft (2015:
RMB4,500,000) and short-term bank loan facilities (2015:
RMB9,400,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

37.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. WKRKBEEBERBEKR (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) nEBESREK(E)
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the RERBPAR WA EREZHFE
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve BIRYTIR & RIR F R AR T & -

at the end of the reporting period.

2016
—E-ARF
On Less than 1to5 Carrying
demand 12 months years Total amount
DR
REXRE +=@A -—-ZI#F mE fREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTRT ARBTRT ARBTRT AR%®TR
Non-derivative financial FTESRAE
liabilities:
Trade and bills payables FERTE 5 BRF M B+
B3 - 53,889 - 53,889 53,889
Other payables (note 23) Hib (708
(Hfit23) - 12,985 - 12,985 12,985
VAT payables (note 23) PG ER (A7F23) - 4,681 - 4,681 4,681
Accruals (note 23) FET &R (KfiF23) - 6,719 - 6,719 6,719
Interest-bearing bank ARRITEE
borrowings - 126,985 - 126,985 124,000
Provision for contingent K ARERE
consideration (note 26) (Kizt26) - 8,678 404,589 413,267 276,868

= 213,937 404,589 618,526 479,142

Derivative financial liabilities: T4 2R EE
Convertible notes B &3 - - 165,305 165,305 194,824
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. KEREEEERBE &
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) nREESER(E)
2015
—E—RF
Less than 1to5 Carrying
On demand 12 months years Total amount
N
RERKE +Z@A —Z1F R AREE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTIT ARBTT
Non-derivative financial FTESRIAE
liabilities:
Trade and bills payables 8 SRR RIER
=i - 38,679 - 38,679 38,679
Other payables (note 23) L AN
(ffzt23) - 16,815 - 16,815 16,815
Accruals (note 23) FEst B (Mfat23) - 5,808 - 5,808 5,808
Interest-bearing bank HERITEE
borrowings - 132,990 - 132,990 129,570
Provision for contingent SHANRE R
consideration (note 26) (KiF26) - 711,176 640,163 1,351,339 1,029,203
- 905,468 640,163 1,545,631 1,220,075
Derivative financial liabilities: T4 BI&E :
Convertible notes AR EE - - 92,893 92,893 91,717
The amounts included above for variable interest rate B R E B HE BN 2 MERE
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are EMEMMEE - 5T A LAIETE SR
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates BENSEFHNETAHEKSE
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at EEE o
the end of the reporting period.
Commodity price risk 7 E AR R B
The major raw materials used in the production of AEEREEMNEZRMEBIER
the Group’s products include rubber and plastics. The BRIER - NE B2 IR &R
Group is exposed to fluctuations in the prices of these KERLSHZERMBEREB AR
raw materials which are influenced by global as well as %o RM A EREB A REE AEER
regional supply and demand conditions. Fluctuations in MBREABINEE - NEBBEIW
the prices of raw materials could adversely affect the EET R R AT T B LA A]
Group’s financial performance. The Group historically has HIR AP B IRE o
not entered into any commodity derivative instruments to
hedge the potential commodity price changes.
EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 38. 2HMEEE

The Group obtained a facility of RMB40,000,000 from a
financial institution in June 2017 which was guaranteed
by a subsidiary of the Group.

AREBR-_T—tFNAR—HE2R
1% B 1§ A K #40,000,0007T #Y &l
B ZREdaAEE -HNBARE
& e

BN —T—AFEFER
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39. COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENT OF 39.

FINANCIAL POSITION

HIFFEZE
RRQE) 2B BERR TR
2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—hF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

W ARMTT ARETT

NON- CURRENT ASSET FRBEE

Intangible assets BEE

Interest in subsidiaries LRI EEPNGIE N

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE

Prepayments, deposits and other TARTERIE - R e R EMAE
receivables W skI8

Cash and bank balances e MIRTTAA R

CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE

Deposits received, other payables and B Uizs « H b e
accruals FIE N EETE

Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHT B A B FIE

Warrants R HERE

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRHEE
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE

Convertible notes Al AR IR

Provision for contingent consideration sk /A(E B &

NET ASSETS BEEFE
EQUITY EE
Share capital f% 7
Reserves G
TOTAL EQUITY EREEE

Approved and authorised for issue by the Company’s
board of directors on 28 July 2017 and signed on its
behalf by:

ZHENG Jingdong
BER
Director

EF
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1,150,000 1,476,616
893,338 889,578
2,043,338 2,366,194
328 673

47 =

375 673
9,818 611,326
1,112,991 453,566
5,067 21,590
1,127,876 1,086,482

(1,127,501) (1,085,809)

915,837 1,280,385

194,824 91,717

268,565 422,285

463,389 514,002

452,448 766,383

71,629 70,555

i 380,819 695,828
452,448 766,383

ARREFER _T—LtFLtH
T NABRERRETIE  AHIAT
ATRERE

LEUNG Tsz Chung
RFH
Director

EF
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39. COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENT OF 39. RXAB AR &K (&
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
Note Bt
i) Reserves of the Company i) VNN
Capital Share
Share  Contributed  redemption options  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve Losses Total
R iEE EMRS BARERE BRERE ZitEE &t

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTL  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  AR¥Tn  ARETR

At 1 January 2015 R-E-HE—F—H 350,935 395,026 524 2,879 (79,959) 669,405
Issue of shares upon conversion of RERTAREEE
convertible notes ¥kH 50,704 - - - - 50,704

Loss and total comprehensive expense for - £REERZER T
the year ot - - - - (33.747) (33,147)

Equity-settled share option arrangements RS RERES 5 - - - 7,809 1,657 9,466

At 31December 2015 and 1 January ~ R=Z-EF

2016 t2A=1-Bk
“5-73%-B-H 401,639 395,026 524 10,688 (112,049) 695,828
Issue of shares upon exercise of share T RER
options Bk 14,686 - - (4,563) - 10,123
Loss and total comprehensive expense EREER2ERX
for the year ag - - - - (345,844) (345,844)
Forfeiture of share options RUERE - - - (1,474) 1474 =
Equity-settled share option NWREGENERE
arrangements g3 - - - 20,712 - 20,712
At 31 December 2016 R=B-AF
TZA=t+-H 416,325 395,026 524 25,363 (456,419) 380,819

mery —2-x568 | /5
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY

40. ARBREEMBLRRNFE

Place of registration/

incorporation and Issued and fully Percentage of equity

Name operations paid up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
B8/4MAIR  CRAREH
£ Rewy HEER AAREEEREDN TEER
Direct Indirect
HE k3
BAOF International Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Trading of slippers
and provision of
management services

ERHEARARRA Bk 10,0007 100 - EBERERREEERS

Quanzhou Baofeng Shoes Co., Ltd.*  PRC RMB544,229,000 = 100 Manufacture and sale of
("Quanzhou Baofeng”) slippers, sandals and

casual footwear

FMEEESXBERAR EF ARH - 100 HERHEEHEE RER
([FMEE]) 544,229,00070 NG

Baofeng Modern (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Dormant

EBEH (BE)FRAA ; 10,0005 7T 100 - EEEX

Astute Sino Developments Limited ~ BVI US$1 100 - Dormant

EEERARLA EBRAHS B 100 - EEEX

2D Material Technology Company ~ Hong Kong HK$100 100 - Dormant
Limited

WEMHHMBARAA &E 1007 100 - EEex

2D Material Technology Limited BVI Us$100 100 - Dormant

ABRRAS 100%7T 100 - EEE%

Xinfeng 2D (Fujian) Material PRC RMB7,500,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale
Technology Company Limited of Graphene-based
("Xinfeng 2D")** Products

BREME_EMHMRERAR @ AEH - 100 HERHEARBE
([FE=t])* 7,500,0007C

& Quanzhou Baofeng is a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise & RINE & BRI BE R

established under the law of the PRC. RSN B E AR e
**  Xinfeng 2D is a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise OB —HARR - R"F-HANR
established under the law of the PRC on 8 February 2016. RIERBEERRKZAINEGEE
#,

41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 41. BIRERR 2 HE

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 28 July 2017.

BB RCEEFEN_T—tFtH
—H N\ BRI T -
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